
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
DECEMBER 6, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

December 6, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mrs. Anne McCauslin from Central 
Woodward Christian Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  a) Auditor’s Presentation Given by Larry Simon – Doeren Mayhew 
and Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year 
Ended June 30, 2004 to City Council by John M. Lamerato – Assistant City 
Manage/Finance and Administration; b) City of Troy Citizens Academy VIII 
Graduation Ceremony 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 
40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
Refer to: Item J-09 – Communication From Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine Street 
Regarding Suggested Ordinance Revisions Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions. (These Proposals Have Not Been Reviewed by City 
Management, the City Attorney’s Office, the Planning Commission or Troy’s 
Planning Consultant.) 1 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Minutes:  Special and Regular Meetings of November 29, 2004 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No City of Troy Proclamations proposed 3 

E-4  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwells #88-20-12-100-
004 & 005, Section 12, 2216 & 2238 E. Square Lake Rd. 3 

E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Paul & Helen A. Kaleto, 2839 Thames, 
Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 3 

E-6  Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit & 
Authorization for Payment, South Boulevard and Rochester Intersection 
Improvements – CMAQ Project No. 01.103.5, Sidwells #88-20-02-101-001 & -003 3 

E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Troy Commons, LLC – 
Sidwells #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 043 4 

E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Traffic Control Signs 4 

E-9  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah, 2851 
Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-226-006, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 4 

E-10  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwells #88-20-24-451-
058 & 059, Section 24, 2583 E. Big Beaver & Adjacent Lot 4 

E-11  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Thien Van Le and Yen Lu, 2919 
Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 5 



E-12  2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1 5 

E-13  Private Agreement for Jonna Retail, Project No. 03.920.3 5 

E-14  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Leonard 
Family Limited Partnership – 1095 Naughton, Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 5 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 6 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; Planning Commission and (b) City Council Appointments: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; 
Historic District Commission; Troy Daze Committee 6 

F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host  - Annual Banquets 11 

F-3 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Signs/Agreements, Sylvan Glen Subdivision 11 

F-4 Troy v. Switlicki et. al 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood – Scheduled for December 20, 
2004 ................................................................................................................... 12 

b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater – Scheduled for December 20, 
2004 ................................................................................................................... 12 

c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R – Scheduled for December 20, 
2004 ................................................................................................................... 12 

d) Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West Side of 
Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) – Scheduled for 
December 20, 2004 ............................................................................................ 12 

e) Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – The Eastern Half of Alger Street, 
Between Birchwood and Vermont, Located West of John R Road, North of 
Maple Road, Section 26 – Scheduled for December 20, 2004........................... 12 

G-2 Agenda Items for Future Consideration 12 

a) Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility ......................................... 12 



COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1  No Council Referrals advanced 12 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 

I-1  No Council Comments advanced 12 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 13, 2004.... 13 
b) Library Board/Final – October 14, 2004.............................................................. 13 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2004............................................ 13 
d) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 25, 2004.................................. 13 
e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – October 25, 2004.................................. 13 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 26, 2004.......................... 13 
g) Youth Council/Final – October 27, 2004............................................................. 13 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 2, 2004 ........................ 13 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 3, 2004............................... 13 
j) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2004............................................... 13 
k) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 10, 

2004 ................................................................................................................... 13 
l) Library Board/Draft – November 11, 2004.......................................................... 13 
m) Youth Council/Draft – November 17, 2004 ......................................................... 13 
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – November 23, 2004.............................. 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Concession Stand Operations Report ................................................................ 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter from Larson Middle School PTO to Detective Jim Mork, Thanking Him 
for Speaking to the Organization About Internet Safety...................................... 13 

b) Letter from Alliance Mobile Health to Lt. Tom Houghton, Thanking Officers 
Harrison, Coombs, Novak, and Villerot for Their Assistance During an 
Ambulance Request ........................................................................................... 13 

c) Letter from Troy Families for Safe Homes to Chief Craft, Thanking Him for 
Speaking at Their November 3, 2004 Luncheon ................................................ 13 

d) Letter from Troy Community Coalition to Chief Craft, Thanking Sergeant 
Robert Redmond for His Presentation at Their November 4, 2004 Meeting....... 13 

e) Letter from COTHA to Sergeant Ostrowski, Thanking Him for His 
Presentation at Their November Meeting and Thanking Lieutenant Scherlinck 
for His Continued Support of COTHA................................................................. 13 

f) Letter from Clackamas County to Chief Craft, Thanking His Participation in 
the 2nd Annual National Family Violence Appreciation Detail.............................. 13 



g) Letter from Schroeder Elementary Cub Scout Den 2, Pack 1010 to Alliance 
Mobil Health, Thanking Them for Their Presentation on November 8, 2004 ...... 13 

h) Letter from Paul DeGregorio, Commissioner – U.S. Election Assistance 
Commission to Tonni Bartholomew Thanking Her for Meeting with Him During 
His Visit to Michigan and for Serving on the Board of Advisors of the U.S. 
Election Assistance Commission........................................................................ 13 

i) Letter from Jeffrey D. Werner, Bloomfield Township Chief of Police in 
Appreciation for the Troy Police Department’s Assistance During the 35th 
Ryder Cup Matches............................................................................................ 13 

j) Letter from Ken Aud, Area Manager for the Department of Corrections for 
Oakland County Circuit Court Probation to Lt. David Livingston in 
Appreciation of His Participation with Their Operation Nighthawk Training ........ 13 

k) Thank You Note from Vivian Brokenshire to MaryAnn Hays in Appreciation of 
Her Assistance in Locating Deceased Members of Her Family in City of Troy 
Cemeteries ......................................................................................................... 13 

l) Letter from Richard G. Patterson, Chief of Police for the Birmingham Police 
Department to Chief Craft Thanking Officer Meinzinger for His Assistance in 
Apprehending a Suspect Involved in an Unarmed Robbery ............................... 14 

m) Letter from JoJo Cosman, Manager of Corporate Training Services for Kelly 
Services to Chief Craft in Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Her Presentation 
Regarding General Safety .................................................................................. 14 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None proposed 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 - Copy 
of Report Available for Public Viewing at the Troy City Clerk’s Office 14 

J-7 Correspondence: Michael W. Reaves, President – Michigan Association of Public 
Employee Retirement Systems (MAPERS), Re: MAPERS Achievement Program – 
John M. Lamerato’s Successful Completion of the Intermediate Fiduciary 
Examination 14 

J-8 Memorandum, Re: Class C “Quota” Licenses 14 

J-9 Correspondence: Tom Krent - 3184 Alpine, Re: Suggested Zoning Ordinance 
Revisions to Prevent Another Industrial Warehouse from Being Built in Residential 
Districts; Refer to Item C-1: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions (Item J-09 Contains a Resident Communication 
Offering Alternate Ordinance Language That Has Not Been Formally Reviewed by 
Staff, the Planning Commission or a Planning Consultant.) 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1  No Study Items submitted 14 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 14 

RECESSED 15 

RECONVENED 15 

ADJOURNMENT 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, December 20, 2004 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, January 10, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, January 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, February 7, 2005 Regular City Council................................................... 15 
Monday, February 21, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 15 
Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 15 
Monday, March 7, 2005 Regular City Council ....................................................... 15 
Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 15 
Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mrs. Anne McCauslin from 
Central Woodward Christian Church 

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  a) Auditor’s Presentation Given by Larry Simon – Doeren Mayhew 
and Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year 
Ended June 30, 2004 to City Council by John M. Lamerato – Assistant City 
Manage/Finance and Administration; b) City of Troy Citizens Academy VIII 
Graduation Ceremony 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 
40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
Refer to: Item J-09 – Communication From Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine Street 
Regarding Suggested Ordinance Revisions Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions. (These Proposals Have Not Been Reviewed by City 
Management, the City Attorney’s Office, the Planning Commission or Troy’s 
Planning Consultant.) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

bittnera
Cross-Out

bittnera
Inserted Text



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

(a) Proposed Resolution A as Recommended by City Management 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (Definitions) and Article XL (General Provisions) of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE 
TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A), Version A, as recommended by City Management. 
 
OR 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution B as Recommended by Planning Commission 
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (Definitions) and Article XL (General Provisions) of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE 
TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A), Version B, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

E-2  Minutes:  Special and Regular Meetings of November 29, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special Meeting and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM 
Regular Meeting of November 29, 2004 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No City of Troy Proclamations proposed 
 
E-4  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwells #88-20-12-100-004 

& 005, Section 12, 2216 & 2238 E. Square Lake Rd. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the sanitary sewer easements from William L. 
Fletcher & Hester May Quarrella, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-12-100-004, and 
from Akram Kthar & Moaeed Khedher, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-12-100-005, 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Paul & Helen A. Kaleto, 2839 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Paul and Helen A. Kaleto 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2839 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-005, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $19,781.50. 
 
E-6  Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit & 

Authorization for Payment, South Boulevard and Rochester Intersection 
Improvements – CMAQ Project No. 01.103.5, Sidwells #88-20-02-101-001 & -003 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from Joseph and 
Josephine Petruzzello, owners of the property having Sidwells #88-20-02-101-001 and -003, is 
hereby ACCEPTED for the Rochester and South Boulevard Intersection Improvement Project 
and payment is AUTHORIZED in the amount of $8,150.00. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Troy Commons, LLC – 
Sidwells #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 043 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the three attached easements for watermain, sidewalk and sanitary sewer 
from Troy Commons, LLC, owner of property having Sidwells #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 
043 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Traffic Control Signs 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, 
Vulcan Signs, Rocal, Inc., and Hall Signs at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
November 16, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, and the contracts shall expire December 16, 2005. 
 
E-9  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah, 2851 

Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-226-006, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2851 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-006, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $15,476.94. 
 
E-10  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwells #88-20-24-451-058 

& 059, Section 24, 2583 E. Big Beaver & Adjacent Lot 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the sanitary sewer easements from Umberto and 
Venerina Basilisco owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-24-451-058, and from Stephan 
and Carole Gueccia, and Julius Ceasar and Michelle Spognardi, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-24-451-059, and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Thien Van Le and Yen Lu, 2919 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Thien Van Le and Yen Lu 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2919 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-229-002, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $1,170.00. 
 
E-12  2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That Budget Amendment No. 1 of the 2004-05 budget be APPROVED to provide 
funds for outstanding purchase orders at June 30, 2004, reconcile capital projects in various 
stages of completion at June 30, 2004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of the Budget Amendment No. 1 be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-13  Private Agreement for Jonna Retail, Project No. 03.920.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Jonna Management Group, is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, deceleration lane, approaches, sidewalks and 
soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Leonard 

Family Limited Partnership – 1095 Naughton, Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the watermain easement from Leonard Family Limited Partnership, owner of 
property at 1095 Naughton, having Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 is hereby ACCEPTED for the 
operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time 
that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 

Development Authority; Planning Commission and (b) City Council Appointments: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Historic 
District Commission; Troy Daze Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold red lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 

 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/08 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/08 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/08 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
Name Date Applied Sent to Council 
None on File   
 
Planning Commission 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 12-31-07 
 
 Term expires 12-31-07 
 
  Term expires 12-31-07 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Chamberlain, Gary G 12/31/05 
Drake-Batts, Lynn 12/31/06 
Littman, Larry 12/31/04 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Schultz, Robert M 12/31/05 
Khan, Fazlullah M 12/31/06 
Strat, Thomas 12/31/05 
Vleck, Mark J 12/31/04 
Waller, David T 12/31/06 
Wright, Wayne C 12/31/04 
Wu, Howard (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Baughman, Deborah L. 03/29/01-06/18/01-05/2003 04/09/01-07/09/01 
Bertin, Leonard G. 10/10/02 11/04/02 
Culpepper, Michael 12/1997  
D’Anna, Philip 02/08/99  
Gauri, Kul 07/03/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Hall, Patrick C 01/26/01-03/10/03-03/2005 02/05/01-03/17/03 
Hanna, Atef A 10/28/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Hoef, Paul V 08/14/02-08/2004  
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Kaiser, Dan 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Keisling, Laurence G 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Kohut, Gary L 02/17/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Lakin, David 01/13/04-01/2006 02/2/2004 
Lin, Paul Chu 05/22/00-06/17/03-06/2005 06/05/00-07/07/03 
Manetta, Pauline 11/26/01 12/03/01 
Milia, Carmelo 06/14/01-06/4/03-05/2005 07/09/01-06/16/03 
Nelson, Albert Taylor   
Ogg, David 02/9/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-05/2005 04/23/01-06/16/03 
Peard, James R 11/25/02-06/9/03-05/2005 12/02/02-06/16/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/03-04/23/04-04/2006 02/02/04-05/03/04 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Smits, Beatrice G 12/2/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Ullmann, Lon M 03/19/01 04/09/01 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Wilberding, Bruce 08/05/99-06/17/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Yousif, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11/01/2007 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bertin, Leonard G. 11/01/05 
Buchanan, Cynthia 11/01/07 
Robosan-Burt, Susan 11/01/06 
Done, Angela 11/01/05 
Fuhrman, Adam (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Gauri, Kul B 11/01/05 
House, Theodora 11/01/06 
Johnson, Nancy (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kuschinsky, Dick 11/01/04 
Manetta, Pauline 11/01/06 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 11/01/07 
Pritzloff, Mark (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Wiqar, Anbereen (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Laudicina, M.K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Werpetinski, Susan 11/14/04-11/2006 12/06/04 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/30/2007 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Harriet Barnard (Resigned) 09/30/2004 
Kathleen Melchert 09/30/2007 
Al Petrulis 09/30/2005 
Jayne Saeger 09/30/2006 
Vincent James Viola 09/30/2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Larue, Patricia M 08/12/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 

 Unexpired term expires 05/15/2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers 03/01/05 
Paul C Lin 05/15/06 
Ann Partian 03/01/05 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Dorothy  Scott (Resigned) 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Krivoshein, Kerry S 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 11/08/04 
Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 07/09/01-11/08/04 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04-11/08/04 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berk, Robert A 11/30/06 
Cyrulewski, Jim D. 11/30/04 
Dilley, Cecile 11/30/04 
Gonda, Michael S 11/30/06 
Kaltsounis, Kessie 11/30/05 
Hall, William F 11/30/05 
Mehta, Dhwani (Student) 07/01/05 
Musick, Marilyn K. 11/30/04 
Stewart, Jeffrey (Rep to Parks/Rec Board) 09/30/06 
Preston, Robert S 11/30/05 
Whitton-Kaszubski, Cheryl A 11/30/06 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Asjad, Zarina J 05/01/0-05/2005 05/05/03 
Freliga, Mary E 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  
Huber, Laurie G 09/22/00-06/18/01-05/2003 09/22/00-07/09/01 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

Lenivov, Victor 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/04 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 07/10/01-07/2003 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solarte, Remedios A. 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Wells, Alexandra 08/22/02-08/2004 09/09/02 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host  - Annual Banquets 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That _____________________ WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and Official 
Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2005 Boards 
& Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 12, 2005); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ________________________ WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2005 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 21, 2005). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Signs/Agreements, Sylvan Glen Subdivision 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the sign applications submitted by the Sylvan Glen Homeowners Association 
for the placement of a sign in the median of Falmouth at the intersection of Long Lake Road, as 
well as the median of Hampshire at the intersection of Livernois, are hereby APPROVED as to 
the design and materials proposed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the agreements regarding the maintenance and liability 
coverage for the signs are also APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
to sign the attached agreements on behalf of the City. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

F-4 Troy v. Switlicki et. al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Consent Judgment in the matter of City of Troy v Michael Switlicki, et al 
is hereby APPROVED by the City of Troy, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to execute the 
document on behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
d) Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West Side of Rochester Road, 

Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
e) Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – The Eastern Half of Alger Street, Between 

Birchwood and Vermont, Located West of John R Road, North of Maple Road, Section 
26 – Scheduled for December 20, 2004 

 
G-2 Agenda Items for Future Consideration 
a) Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

REPORTS:  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 13, 2004  
b) Library Board/Final – October 14, 2004  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2004  
d) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 25, 2004  
e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – October 25, 2004 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 26, 2004   
g) Youth Council/Final – October 27, 2004  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 2, 2004 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 3, 2004   
j) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2004 
k) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 10, 2004  
l) Library Board/Draft – November 11, 2004 
m) Youth Council/Draft – November 17, 2004  
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – November 23, 2004 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Concession Stand Operations Report 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Larson Middle School PTO to Detective Jim Mork, Thanking Him for 

Speaking to the Organization About Internet Safety 
b) Letter from Alliance Mobile Health to Lt. Tom Houghton, Thanking Officers Harrison, 

Coombs, Novak, and Villerot for Their Assistance During an Ambulance Request   
c) Letter from Troy Families for Safe Homes to Chief Craft, Thanking Him for Speaking at 

Their November 3, 2004 Luncheon 
d) Letter from Troy Community Coalition to Chief Craft, Thanking Sergeant Robert 

Redmond for His Presentation at Their November 4, 2004 Meeting 
e) Letter from COTHA to Sergeant Ostrowski, Thanking Him for His Presentation at Their 

November Meeting and Thanking Lieutenant Scherlinck for His Continued Support of 
COTHA 

f) Letter from Clackamas County to Chief Craft, Thanking His Participation in the 2nd 
Annual National Family Violence Appreciation Detail 

g) Letter from Schroeder Elementary Cub Scout Den 2, Pack 1010 to Alliance Mobil Health, 
Thanking Them for Their Presentation on November 8, 2004 

h) Letter from Paul DeGregorio, Commissioner – U.S. Election Assistance Commission to 
Tonni Bartholomew Thanking Her for Meeting with Him During His Visit to Michigan and 
for Serving on the Board of Advisors of the U.S. Election Assistance Commission 

i) Letter from Jeffrey D. Werner, Bloomfield Township Chief of Police in Appreciation for 
the Troy Police Department’s Assistance During the 35th Ryder Cup Matches 

j) Letter from Ken Aud, Area Manager for the Department of Corrections for Oakland 
County Circuit Court Probation to Lt. David Livingston in Appreciation of His Participation 
with Their Operation Nighthawk Training 

k) Thank You Note from Vivian Brokenshire to MaryAnn Hays in Appreciation of Her 
Assistance in Locating Deceased Members of Her Family in City of Troy Cemeteries 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

l) Letter from Richard G. Patterson, Chief of Police for the Birmingham Police Department 
to Chief Craft Thanking Officer Meinzinger for His Assistance in Apprehending a Suspect 
Involved in an Unarmed Robbery  

m) Letter from JoJo Cosman, Manager of Corporate Training Services for Kelly Services to 
Chief Craft in Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Her Presentation Regarding General Safety  

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 - Copy 

of Report Available for Public Viewing at the Troy City Clerk’s Office 
 
J-7 Correspondence: Michael W. Reaves, President – Michigan Association of Public 

Employee Retirement Systems (MAPERS), Re: MAPERS Achievement Program – 
John M. Lamerato’s Successful Completion of the Intermediate Fiduciary 
Examination 

 

J-8 Memorandum, Re: Class C “Quota” Licenses 
 

J-9 Correspondence: Tom Krent - 3184 Alpine, Re: Suggested Zoning Ordinance 
Revisions to Prevent Another Industrial Warehouse from Being Built in Residential 
Districts; Refer to Item C-1: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions (Item J-09 Contains a Resident Communication 
Offering Alternate Ordinance Language That Has Not Been Formally Reviewed by 
Staff, the Planning Commission or a Planning Consultant.) 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 6, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, December 20, 2004 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 10, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, January 24, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 7, 2005 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 21, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 28, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 7, 2005............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 21, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 28, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 

 



TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Admin.  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Citizens Academy  
 
DATE:   November 30, 2004 
 
 

Attached is the list of Citizen Academy VIII participants as requested by the 

Mayor and City Council for their graduation presentation on December 6, 2004.   

 

Jerry Bloom, Patrick Caldwell, Gloria Dixon, Merrill Dixon, Kimberly Newberry, 

Darla Oyama, Lisa Paisley, Jill Perry, Stacey Pilut, Josephine Rhoads, Rebecca 

Snell, Kent Voigt, Terrie Voigt, James Werpetinski, Susan Werpetinski 

 
 
 
CS 

bittnera
Text Box
A-01b



DATE: December 1, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark S. Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-
40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the ZOTA 215 A, as proposed in provided 
resolution version A.  This is identical to the Planning Commission’s recommended ZOTA 
215 A version B, except for the elimination of the restriction of garage door height to not 
more than eight (8) feet.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City Council adopted a resolution on October 4, 2004 which authorized the Planning 
Commission and City Management to address accessory structures and neighborhood 
compatibility within the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts, addressing size, use and 
compatibility.  City Council requested that the Planning Commission forward a 
recommendation to City Council in the fastest time period possible.  City Management 
developed an operational definition of compatibility as an issue related to size and use 
of accessory structures.  Therefore, compatibility of accessory structures has been 
addressed in a zoning ordinance text amendment through the traditional regulatory 
methods:  height, size, setbacks and use. 
 
City Management engaged Richard Carlisle, City Planning Consultant, to assist in 
preparing the zoning ordinance text amendments.  Mr. Carlisle prepared an initial draft that 
served as a working draft for City Management and the Planning Commission.  This item 
was discussed at the October 26, 2004 and November 2, 2004 Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetings.  City Management recommended dividing ZOTA 215 into three 
separate items to be considered separately but concurrently.  These items are Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions (ZOTA 215A), Commercial Vehicle Definitions (ZOTA 
215B), and Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals (ZOTA 215C).  The Planning 
Commission held a Public Hearing on the three separate items on November 9, 2004, and 
recommended approval of ZOTA 215A (Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions).  
Furthermore, the Planning Commission tabled ZOTA 215B and ZOTA 215C to provide 
additional time for further review.  
 
City Management and the Planning Commission have made every attempt to consider this 
item as quickly as possible, as requested by City Council.  A copy of the draft text was 
reviewed by the City Attorney’s office. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



The proposed text reorganizes the existing text and improves definitions, which helps with 
clarification.  The proposed text restricts the size of attached accessory buildings to one-
half of the ground floor living area or six hundred square feet, whichever is greater.  This is 
a reasonable approach to limiting the size of attached accessory structures, as the 
minimum 600 square foot size is equivalent to a 2 ½ car garage.   
 
Detached accessory structures are limited to no more than two per parcel and are further 
limited in area to 450 square feet plus two percent of the lot area.  The combined floor 
area of all detached accessory structures shall not exceed the ground floor footprint of the 
living area of the dwelling or 600 square feet, whichever is greater.  City Management 
finds this to be a reasonable restriction on detached accessory buildings, as the minimum 
size of 600 square feet provides for a 2 ½ car garage. 
 
City Management and the City’s Planning Consultant find the restriction on maximum size 
of attached and detached accessory buildings to be reasonable. City Council is 
responsible in determining the community’s values related to the size of these types of 
structures.  Therefore, City Council may advise City Management to adjust the formulas to 
determine maximum accessory building size.  City Management requests that if City 
Council desires to adjust these formulas, they we have sufficient time to determine the 
appropriateness and reasonableness of the desired changes. 
 
A new category of building called accessory supplemental buildings was created to 
provide regulations on buildings used for hobby or recreational purposes.  The provisions 
restrict the number to three, and total size not to exceed 200 square feet of accessory 
supplemental buildings.  The area of accessory supplemental buildings is counted toward 
the total area of detached accessory buildings. 
 
For both attached and detached accessory buildings, the maximum door height was 
limited to eight (8) feet.  City Management finds this to be unnecessarily restrictive.  For 
example, a recreational vehicle owner who can legally park a vehicle within an accessory 
building may be required to request a variance from the door height requirement from the 
BZA.  
 
A copy of the modified draft was provided to Mr. Carlisle for review and comment.  His 
attached comments provide a brief summary of the proposed provisions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _________________________ _______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 



Attachments: 
1. Memorandum from Richard K. Carlisle, dated November 23, 2004. 
2. ZOTA 215A, Version A - City Management Version 
3. ZOTA 215A, Version B – Planning Commission Version 
4. Minutes from October 4, 2004 City Council meeting. 
5. Minutes from October 26, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
6. Minutes from November 2, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
7. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
cc: File/ZOTA 215A 
 Planning Commission 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\CC Public Hearing 12 6 04 ZOTA 215A.doc 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/MSS 
 
 







 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
VERSION A 

Recommended by City Management 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV and XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XL GENERAL PROVISIONS of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is 
amended to modify the regulations relating to accessory buildings, accessory supplemental 
buildings and accessory structures.  Furthermore, Article IV DEFINITIONS of Chapter 39 is 
amended to bring the definitions in compliance with the modified regulations.  
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes) 
 
[Revise Section 04.20.00 DEFINITIONS as follows]: 
 
04.20.01 ACCESSORY BUILDING:  A subordinate building, or portion thereof, the 
use of which is clearly incidental to that of supplemental or subordinate to the main 
building or to the use of the land and is devoted exclusively to an accessory use.  The 
various types of accessory buildings shall be further defined as follows: 
 

A. BARN:  A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm animals 
such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats, and fowl, other than a 
dog house. 

 
B. GARAGE:  A building, or portion of the main building, of not less than one 

hundred eighty (180) square feet designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard 
maintenance equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, 
boats, trailers, all terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. 

 
C. STORAGE BUILDING/SHED:  A building designed and intended to be used 

for the storage of tools, garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small 
recreation vehicles such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV’s, and 
motor scooters,  

 
04.20.02 ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL BUILDING.  An accessory building used 
by the occupants of the principal building for recreation or pleasure, such as a gazebo, a 



 2

swimming pool cabana, a building housing a spa, or greenhouse.  The various types of 
accessory supplemental buildings shall be further defined as follows: 

A. CABANA:  A building used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used for 
no other purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool accessories 
such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms and safety 
equipment, and/or changing of clothes.  

 
B. DOG HOUSE:  A building designed and used for housing not more than three 

dogs, cats or other similar animals owned by the occupant of the parcel on 
which it is located. 

 
C. GAZEBO:  A detached, roofed or sheltered structure, which is generally of 

open, screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating.   

 
D. GREENHOUSE:  A detached, building constructed of permanent or 

temporary framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass 
panels or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants.  

 
E. PLAY HOUSE:  A detached building designed and used for children’s play. 
 

40.20.02 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE:  A structure, or portion thereof, which is 
supplemental or subordinate to the main building or to the use of the land. 
 
04.20.03 ACCESSORY USE:  is a  A use which is supplemental and subordinate 
to the main use on a lot and  serves purposes clearly incidental to those of the main use. 
 
04.20.10 ANTENNAS:  Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 
 
 
[Revise Section 40.55.00 – 40.59.00 as follows]: 
 
40.55.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUILDINGS AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

In addition to the applicable requirements of Sections 40.56.00 and 
40.58.00, all accessory buildings, accessory supplemental buildings 
and accessory structures shall  comply with the following provisions: 

 
 A. By their definition and nature they shall be supplemental or 

subordinate to the principal building on a parcel of land.  
 
 B.  They shall therefore not be permitted as the only building or structure be 

on a the same parcel of land, as the principal building they serve. 
 
 C. Their construction, erection, installation or placement shall be in 

accordance with the requirements of the Building Code and the Electrical 
Code. Permits shall be required for buildings greater than thirty-six (36) 



 3

square feet in area and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Permits 
shall be required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted 
antennas greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-
mounted antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
 D. Detached buildings and structures may be prefabricated or built on the 

site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations not less than 
twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor and walls are 
located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying ground. Trailer-
mounted buildings and structures are prohibited. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

  E.They shall not be located within a dedicated easement or right-of-way. 
 
40.56.00 The various types of accessory buildings and structures shall be defined as 
follows: 
 

ANTENNAS: Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 

 
BARNS: A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm 
animals such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats and fowl, 
other than a dog house, so called. 

 
CABANAS: A building of not more than one-hundred (100) square feet 
used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used for no other 
purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool accessories 
such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms and 
safety equipment, and/or changing of clothes. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
DOG HOUSES: A building of not more than thirty-six (36) square feet 
with a total height of not more than four feet, designed and used for 
housing not more than three dogs, cats or other similar animals owned 
by the occupant of the parcel on which located. (Rev. 04-2301) 

 
GARAGES: A building of not less than one hundred eighty (180) square 
feet designed and intended to be used for the periodic parking or 
storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard maintenance 
equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, boats, 
trailers, all-terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
GAZEBO: A roofed or sheltered structure, not more than one hundred 
seventy nine (179) square feet in area, which is generally of open, 
screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

GREEN HOUSES: A building constructed of permanent or temporary 
framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass panels 
or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants from 
seed. 



 4

 
SHEDS: A building of not more than one hundred seventy nine (179) 
square feet designed and intended to be used for the storage of tools, 
garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small recreation vehicles 
such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV's, motor scooters, or used 
as doll houses, play houses or children's club houses. (Rev. 04-2301) 
 

40.56.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN R-1A THROUGH R-1E, R-2 and CR-1 
ZONING DISTRICTS 

 
40.57.01 Detached accessory buildings and structures may be prefabricated or 

built on the site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations 
not less than twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor 
and walls are located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying 
ground. Trailer-mounted accessory buildings and structures are 
prohibited. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings 
 
40.57.02  A. Where the accessory building or structure is structurally attached to a 

main building, it shall be subject to, and must conform to, all regulations 
of this chapter applicable to a main building in addition to the 
requirements of this Section. 
 
B. The area of attached accessory buildings shall not exceed one-half 
(1/2) of the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six 
hundred (600) square feet whichever is greater.   
 

40.56.02 Detached Accessory Buildings 
 

A. There shall be no more than two detached accessory buildings per lot 
or parcel, excluding accessory supplemental buildings as set forth in 
Section 40.56.03. 

 
40.57.03  B. Detached accessory buildings shall not be erected in any yard, except 

a rear yard. 
 
40.57.04  C. Detached accessory buildings and detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall occupy not more than twenty-five (25) percent of a 
required rear yard. In no instance shall  

 
 D. The combined ground floor area of all detached accessory buildings 

and detached accessory supplemental buildings six hundred (600) square 
feet or one-half of the ground floor area of the main building, whichever is 
greater. (Rev. 04-23-01) shall not exceed four hundred-fifty (450) square 
feet plus two (2) percent of the total lot area.  However, in no instance 
shall the combined floor area of all detached accessory buildings and 
detached accessory supplemental buildings exceed the ground floor 



 5

footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six hundred (600) square feet 
whichever is greater. 

 
40.57.05  E. No detached accessory building or structure except antennas, dog 

houses or cabanas shall be located closer than ten (10) feet to any main 
building, nor shall any accessory building or structure be located closer 
than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line.  

 
40.57.06 F. No A detached accessory building or structure, in any Residential, C-F, 

B-1, and P-1 shall not exceed one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if used in 
accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio Service License 
issued by the Federal Communications Commission or permitted under 
Federal Regulation by a reciprocal agreement with a foreign country. 
Other pole, mast type antennas may, however, be permitted to be 
constructed to a height equal to the permitted maximum height of 
structures in these Districts. Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type 
antennas which are roof-mounted or attached to a building shall not 
extend more than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. 
Satellite dish antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more than 
fourteen (14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, shall not 
exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish and amateur 
radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can occur without 
encroachment into the required setback. (Rev. 01-05-04)   
 
G. An accessory building defined as a barn or a greenhouse shall be 
subject to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
40.57.07 Accessory buildings and structures in all Districts not specified in Section 

40.57.06 may be constructed to one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in 
height or may, subject to Board of Appeals review and approval, be 
constructed equal to the permitted maximum height of the structures in 
said Districts. Exception: Roof-mounted antennas, not extending more 
than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof, are not subject to 
Board of Appeals review. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
40.56.03 Accessory Supplemental Buildings 
 

A. No more than three (3) detached accessory supplemental 
buildings shall be permitted on a parcel. 

 
B. The total floor area of all detached accessory supplemental 

buildings on a parcel shall not exceed two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

 
C. An accessory supplemental building shall not be located in any 

required yard other than a rear front yard. 



 6

D. No detached accessory supplemental building shall be located 
closer than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line. 

 
E. A detached accessory supplemental building shall not exceed one 

(1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
 
 

40.57.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN OTHER ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

A. All accessory buildings shall be subject to the same placement 
and height requirements applicable to principal structures in the 
district in which located. 

 
40.58.00 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

 
A. Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if 

used in accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio 
Service License issued by the Federal Communications 
Commission or permitted under Federal Regulation by a 
reciprocal agreement with a foreign country. Other pole, mast type 
antennas may, however, be permitted to be constructed to a 
height equal to the permitted maximum height of structures in 
these Districts. Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type antennas 
which are roof-mounted or attached to a building shall not extend 
more than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. 
Satellite dish antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more 
than fourteen (14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, 
shall not exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish 
and amateur radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can 
occur without encroachment into the required setback. 

 
40.57.08  B. No more than two (2) antenna structures (no more than one of which 

may be ground-mounted, and thus detached from the main building) shall 
be permitted for each lot or parcel, with the following exception: 

 
A.1. On non-residential parcels, two (2) antenna structures shall be 

permitted for the first twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of 
gross building area, with one antenna structure permitted for 
each additional twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of gross 
building area, or major portion thereof. 

 
B 2. The numerical limits of this Section shall not apply in the following 

situations: 
 

1.a. Panel-type antennas which are visually integrated with 
the building surface on which they are mounted (similar 
color, not extending above wall, equipment penthouse or 
enclosure surface). 



 7

 
2.b. Pole, mast, whip, or panel-type antennas mounted on or 

adjacent to the roof of residential or non-residential 
buildings sixty (60) feet or more in height. 

 
40.57.09  When an accessory building or structure is located on a corner lot, the 

side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the front lot line of 
the lot or parcel to its rear, said building or structure shall not project 
beyond the front setback line required on the lot or parcel to the rear of 
such corner lot. When an accessory building or structure is located on a 
corner lot, the side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the 
side lot line of the lot to its rear, said building shall not project beyond the 
side yard line of the lot or parcel to the rear of such corner lot. 

 
40.57.10  When an accessory building or structure in any Residence, Business or 

Office District is defined as other than an antenna, cabana, dog house, 
garage or shed, construction or placement of the accessory building or 
structure shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
Examples of those structures requiring Board of Zoning Appeals approval 
would thus include, but not be limited to, Barns, Greenhouses, and free-
standing Gazebos. Gazebos constructed as a part of attached open 
patios or deck structures in a rear yard shall be regulated in accordance 
with Section 41.45.00 of this Chapter, and shall not require Board of 
Zoning Appeals approval. 

 
40.57.11 NEIGHBORS NOTIFICATION: 

Applications for permits for the placement or construction of sheds 
located in platted subdivisions or on acreage parcels of less than two (2) 
acres shall be submitted with evidence of notification of placement or 
construction, to the owners of record of fifty percent (50%) of the 
developed lots or parcels which are immediately abutting the parcel on 
which the subject building or structure is to be placed. On acreage 
parcels of two (2) acres or more, evidence of notification shall be provided 
in relation to all owners of record of developed land within one hundred 
(100) feet of the subject building or structure. Evidence of notification 
shall consist of either certified mail receipts, or a signed affidavit, from the 
required number of property owners. 

 
40.57.12 

The construction, erection, installation or placement of accessory 
buildings or structures shall be in accordance with the requirements of the 
Building Code and the Electrical Code. Building Permits shall be required 
for accessory buildings greater than thirty-six (36) square feet in area 
and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Building permits shall be 
required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted antennas 
greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-mounted 
antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 



 8

A. Recreation uses. 
 

B. Porch, patio, terrace, or entranceway areas. 
 

In no instance shall the area encompassed, together with main and 
accessory buildings, exceed the lot area coverage provisions indicated in 
Section 30.10.00 "Schedule of Regulations-Residential". Such covering or 
enclosure must also comply with the main building setback requirements 
included in Section 30.10.00. Porch, patio, terrace or entranceway covers 
may be permitted to encroach into such yards in accordance with Section 
41.50.00. Recreation facilities involving temporary covers, on sites in 
excess of one acre in area, shall conform to the requirements of Section 
10.30.06, Sub-Sections (C) and (D). 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
VERSION B 

Recommended by Planning Commission 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV and XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XL GENERAL PROVISIONS of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is 
amended to modify the regulations relating to accessory buildings, accessory supplemental 
buildings and accessory structures.  Furthermore, Article IV DEFINITIONS of Chapter 39 is 
amended to bring the definitions in compliance with the modified regulations.  
 
(Underlining, except for major section titles, denotes changes) 
 
[Revise Section 04.20.00 DEFINITIONS as follows]: 
 
04.20.01 ACCESSORY BUILDING:  A subordinate building, or portion thereof, the 
use of which is clearly incidental to that of supplemental or subordinate to the main 
building or to the use of the land and is devoted exclusively to an accessory use.  The 
various types of accessory buildings shall be further defined as follows: 
 

A. BARN:  A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm animals 
such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats, and fowl, other than a 
dog house. 

 
B. GARAGE:  A building, or portion of the main building, of not less than one 

hundred eighty (180) square feet designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard 
maintenance equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, 
boats, trailers, all terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. 

 
C. STORAGE BUILDING/SHED:  A building designed and intended to be used 

for the storage of tools, garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small 
recreation vehicles such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV’s, and 
motor scooters,  

 
04.20.02 ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL BUILDING.  An accessory building used 
by the occupants of the principal building for recreation or pleasure, such as a gazebo, a 



 2

swimming pool cabana, a building housing a spa, or greenhouse.  The various types of 
accessory supplemental buildings shall be further defined as follows: 

A. CABANA:  A building used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used for 
no other purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool accessories 
such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms and safety 
equipment, and/or changing of clothes.  

 
B. DOG HOUSE:  A building designed and used for housing not more than three 

dogs, cats or other similar animals owned by the occupant of the parcel on 
which it is located. 

 
C. GAZEBO:  A detached, roofed or sheltered structure, which is generally of 

open, screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating.   

 
D. GREENHOUSE:  A detached, building constructed of permanent or 

temporary framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass 
panels or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants.  

 
E. PLAY HOUSE:  A detached building designed and used for children’s play. 
 

40.20.02 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE:  A structure, or portion thereof, which is 
supplemental or subordinate to the main building or to the use of the land. 
 
04.20.03 ACCESSORY USE:  is a  A use which is supplemental and subordinate 
to the main use on a lot and  serves purposes clearly incidental to those of the main use. 
 
04.20.10 ANTENNAS:  Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 
 
 
[Revise Section 40.55.00 – 40.59.00 as follows]: 
 
40.55.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUILDINGS AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

In addition to the applicable requirements of Sections 40.56.00 and 
40.58.00, all accessory buildings, accessory supplemental buildings 
and accessory structures shall  comply with the following provisions: 

 
 A. By their definition and nature they shall be supplemental or 

subordinate to the principal building on a parcel of land.  
 
 B.  They shall therefore not be permitted as the only building or structure be 

on a the same parcel of land, as the principal building they serve. 
 
 C. Their construction, erection, installation or placement shall be in 

accordance with the requirements of the Building Code and the Electrical 
Code. Permits shall be required for buildings greater than thirty-six (36) 



 3

square feet in area and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Permits 
shall be required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted 
antennas greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-
mounted antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
 D. Detached buildings and structures may be prefabricated or built on the 

site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations not less than 
twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor and walls are 
located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying ground. Trailer-
mounted buildings and structures are prohibited. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

  E.They shall not be located within a dedicated easement or right-of-way. 
 
40.56.00 The various types of accessory buildings and structures shall be defined as 
follows: 
 

ANTENNAS: Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 

 
BARNS: A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm 
animals such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats and fowl, 
other than a dog house, so called. 

 
CABANAS: A building of not more than one-hundred (100) square feet 
used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used for no other 
purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool accessories 
such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms and 
safety equipment, and/or changing of clothes. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
DOG HOUSES: A building of not more than thirty-six (36) square feet 
with a total height of not more than four feet, designed and used for 
housing not more than three dogs, cats or other similar animals owned 
by the occupant of the parcel on which located. (Rev. 04-2301) 

 
GARAGES: A building of not less than one hundred eighty (180) square 
feet designed and intended to be used for the periodic parking or 
storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard maintenance 
equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, boats, 
trailers, all-terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
GAZEBO: A roofed or sheltered structure, not more than one hundred 
seventy nine (179) square feet in area, which is generally of open, 
screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

GREEN HOUSES: A building constructed of permanent or temporary 
framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass panels 
or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants from 
seed. 



 4

SHEDS: A building of not more than one hundred seventy nine (179) 
square feet designed and intended to be used for the storage of tools, 
garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small recreation vehicles 
such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV's, motor scooters, or used 
as doll houses, play houses or children's club houses. (Rev. 04-2301) 

 
40.56.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN R-1A THROUGH R-1E, R-2 and CR-1 

ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
40.57.01 Detached accessory buildings and structures may be prefabricated or 

built on the site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations 
not less than twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor 
and walls are located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying 
ground. Trailer-mounted accessory buildings and structures are 
prohibited. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings 
 
40.57.02  A. Where the accessory building or structure is structurally attached to a 

main building, it shall be subject to, and must conform to, all regulations 
of this chapter applicable to a main building in addition to the 
requirements of this Section. 
 
B. The area of attached accessory buildings shall not exceed one-half 
(1/2) of the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six 
hundred (600) square feet whichever is greater.   
 
C. The size of any door to an attached accessory building shall not 
exceed eight (8) feet in height. 

 
40.56.02 Detached Accessory Buildings 
 

A. There shall be no more than two detached accessory buildings per lot 
or parcel, excluding accessory supplemental buildings as set forth in 
Section 40.56.03. 

 
40.57.03  B. Detached accessory buildings shall not be erected in any yard, except 

a rear yard. 
 
40.57.04  C. Detached accessory buildings and detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall occupy not more than twenty-five (25) percent of a 
required rear yard. In no instance shall  



 5

 D. The combined ground floor area of all detached accessory buildings 
and detached accessory supplemental buildings six hundred (600) square 
feet or one-half of the ground floor area of the main building, whichever is 
greater. (Rev. 04-23-01) shall not exceed four hundred-fifty (450) square 
feet plus two (2) percent of the total lot area.  However, in no instance 
shall the combined floor area of all detached accessory buildings and 
detached accessory supplemental buildings exceed the ground floor 
footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six hundred (600) square feet 
whichever is greater. 

 
40.57.05  E. No detached accessory building or structure except antennas, dog 

houses or cabanas shall be located closer than ten (10) feet to any main 
building, nor shall any accessory building or structure be located closer 
than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line.  

 
40.57.06 F. No A detached accessory building or structure, in any Residential, C-F, 

B-1, and P-1 shall not exceed one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if used in 
accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio Service License 
issued by the Federal Communications Commission or permitted under 
Federal Regulation by a reciprocal agreement with a foreign country. 
Other pole, mast type antennas may, however, be permitted to be 
constructed to a height equal to the permitted maximum height of 
structures in these Districts. Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type 
antennas which are roof-mounted or attached to a building shall not 
extend more than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. 
Satellite dish antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more than 
fourteen (14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, shall not 
exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish and amateur 
radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can occur without 
encroachment into the required setback. (Rev. 01-05-04)   
 

 G. The size of any door to a detached accessory building shall not 
exceed eight (8) feet in height. 

 
H. An accessory building defined as a barn or a greenhouse shall be 
subject to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
40.57.07 Accessory buildings and structures in all Districts not specified in Section 

40.57.06 may be constructed to one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in 
height or may, subject to Board of Appeals review and approval, be 
constructed equal to the permitted maximum height of the structures in 
said Districts. Exception: Roof-mounted antennas, not extending more 
than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof, are not subject to 
Board of Appeals review. (Rev. 04-23-01) 



 6

40.56.03 Accessory Supplemental Buildings 
 

A. No more than three (3) detached accessory supplemental 
buildings shall be permitted on a parcel. 

 
B. The total floor area of all detached accessory supplemental 

buildings on a parcel shall not exceed two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

 
C. An accessory supplemental building shall not be located in any 

required yard other than a rear front yard. 
 
D. No detached accessory supplemental building shall be located 

closer than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line. 
 
E. A detached accessory supplemental building shall not exceed one 

(1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
 
F. The size of any door to an accessory supplemental building shall 

not exceed eight (8) feet in height. 
 

40.57.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN OTHER ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

A. All accessory buildings shall be subject to the same placement 
and height requirements applicable to principal structures in the 
district in which located. 

 
40.58.00 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

 
A. Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if 

used in accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio 
Service License issued by the Federal Communications 
Commission or permitted under Federal Regulation by a 
reciprocal agreement with a foreign country. Other pole, mast type 
antennas may, however, be permitted to be constructed to a 
height equal to the permitted maximum height of structures in 
these Districts. Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type antennas 
which are roof-mounted or attached to a building shall not extend 
more than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. 
Satellite dish antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more 
than fourteen (14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, 
shall not exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish 
and amateur radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can 
occur without encroachment into the required setback. 

 
40.57.08  B. No more than two (2) antenna structures (no more than one of which 

may be ground-mounted, and thus detached from the main building) shall 
be permitted for each lot or parcel, with the following exception: 



 7

A.1. On non-residential parcels, two (2) antenna structures shall be 
permitted for the first twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of 
gross building area, with one antenna structure permitted for 
each additional twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of gross 
building area, or major portion thereof. 

 
B 2. The numerical limits of this Section shall not apply in the following 

situations: 
 

1.a. Panel-type antennas which are visually integrated with 
the building surface on which they are mounted (similar 
color, not extending above wall, equipment penthouse or 
enclosure surface). 

 
2.b. Pole, mast, whip, or panel-type antennas mounted on or 

adjacent to the roof of residential or non-residential 
buildings sixty (60) feet or more in height. 

 
40.57.09  When an accessory building or structure is located on a corner lot, the 

side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the front lot line of 
the lot or parcel to its rear, said building or structure shall not project 
beyond the front setback line required on the lot or parcel to the rear of 
such corner lot. When an accessory building or structure is located on a 
corner lot, the side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the 
side lot line of the lot to its rear, said building shall not project beyond the 
side yard line of the lot or parcel to the rear of such corner lot. 

 
40.57.10  When an accessory building or structure in any Residence, Business or 

Office District is defined as other than an antenna, cabana, dog house, 
garage or shed, construction or placement of the accessory building or 
structure shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
Examples of those structures requiring Board of Zoning Appeals approval 
would thus include, but not be limited to, Barns, Greenhouses, and free-
standing Gazebos. Gazebos constructed as a part of attached open 
patios or deck structures in a rear yard shall be regulated in accordance 
with Section 41.45.00 of this Chapter, and shall not require Board of 
Zoning Appeals approval. 

 
40.57.11 NEIGHBORS NOTIFICATION: 

Applications for permits for the placement or construction of sheds 
located in platted subdivisions or on acreage parcels of less than two (2) 
acres shall be submitted with evidence of notification of placement or 
construction, to the owners of record of fifty percent (50%) of the 
developed lots or parcels which are immediately abutting the parcel on 
which the subject building or structure is to be placed. On acreage 
parcels of two (2) acres or more, evidence of notification shall be provided 
in relation to all owners of record of developed land within one hundred 
(100) feet of the subject building or structure. Evidence of notification 



 8

shall consist of either certified mail receipts, or a signed affidavit, from the 
required number of property owners. 

 
40.57.12 

The construction, erection, installation or placement of accessory 
buildings or structures shall be in accordance with the requirements of the 
Building Code and the Electrical Code. Building Permits shall be required 
for accessory buildings greater than thirty-six (36) square feet in area 
and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Building permits shall be 
required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted antennas 
greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-mounted 
antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
A. Recreation uses. 

 
B. Porch, patio, terrace, or entranceway areas. 

 
In no instance shall the area encompassed, together with main and 
accessory buildings, exceed the lot area coverage provisions indicated in 
Section 30.10.00 "Schedule of Regulations-Residential". Such covering or 
enclosure must also comply with the main building setback requirements 
included in Section 30.10.00. Porch, patio, terrace or entranceway covers 
may be permitted to encroach into such yards in accordance with Section 
41.50.00. Recreation facilities involving temporary covers, on sites in 
excess of one acre in area, shall conform to the requirements of Section 
10.30.06, Sub-Sections (C) and (D). 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



 9

Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 





PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the City representatives who were present for discussion of 
the matter and informed those present of the presentation format that would be 
followed. 
 
Mr. Szerlag announced that the situation on Alpine resulted from a resident finding 
a loophole in the Zoning Ordinance that would allow a monster garage to be built.  
City Council’s concern resulted in a study session with City staff and the Planning 
Consultant.  The recommendation of City Council was to have the Planning 
Commission find a way to plug the loopholes that currently exist in the ordinance 
and amend the ordinance to allow for better compatibility on attached and detached 
accessory structures.  Mr. Szerlag said regulation of size, use and compatibility was 
discussed at the study session, and that compatibility was defined as the 
conditional element of size, use, height, and setbacks, but not materials.  On behalf 
of City Council, Mr. Szerlag stressed the urgency to find a solution that would plug 
the loopholes in the ordinance and stop future construction of monster garages or 
accessory structures.  He explained that City staff is continuing its negotiations with 
the Alpine property owner to resolve the matter of that particular monster garage. 
 
Mr. Miller provided a slide presentation.  The presentation displayed 14 homes in 
the City that have existing garages with more square footage than the actual 
homes.   
 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:48 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Stimac said the garages displayed in the slide presentation are all attached 
garages, but acknowledged there are homes in the City with detached garages that 
exceed the ground floor area of the living space of the home.  Mr. Stimac reviewed 
various changes that were made in the Zoning Ordinance, and cited examples of 
related accessory structures.  He reported that cases before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals requesting to construct detached garages of significant size have been 
based on the City requirement to store commercial vehicles.  Mr. Stimac said that, 
in part, the construction of large garages is the result of residents complying with 
the ordinance that requires residents to store their commercial vehicles indoors. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked the number of parcels with attached and detached large 
garages that were constructed in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance 
requirement to store commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Stimac estimated 30 parcels, but noted that a study has not been done.  Mr. 
Stimac said the parameter of the 14 garages displayed in the slide presentation 
was that the square footage of the garage exceeds the square footage of the 
house, and that detached garages were not covered in the slide presentation.  Mr. 
Stimac said it is his opinion that many of the large garages in the City, both 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

attached and detached, have been generated in part by the desire to house 
commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Strat asked how many of the garages have been built in the last 5 to 10 years. 
 
Mr. Stimac responded that approximately 20 out of the estimated 30 garages were 
built within the last 8 to 10 years.   
 
Mr. Carlisle distributed two informational items: (1) proposed definitions and 
ordinance language changes relating to outdoor parking and commercial vehicles 
in residential districts and a revised definition of a commercial vehicle; and (2) Truck 
Driver’s Guidebook.  Mr. Carlisle provided the material as a preface to his opinion 
that the current regulations relating to parking of commercial vehicles have in part 
led to the concern of monster accessory structures.  He said, to some degree, the 
construction of extremely large buildings has resulted from the regulations placed 
on parking of commercial vehicles in residential areas.  Mr. Carlisle would ultimately 
like to see parking of commercial vehicles restricted in residential districts.  Mr. 
Carlisle said that if commercial parking is not addressed, the City is in essence 
doing only half the job as it addresses monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Carlisle highlighted his observations of the current Zoning Ordinance and 
reviewed his recommended revisions to the ordinance that were provided in his 
October 21, 2004 memorandum.  Mr. Carlisle suggested that material compatibility 
be addressed in the future.   
 
Specific items discussed were: 

• Definition of “incidental” 
• Material compatibility 
• Garage door height and size / definition of measurement 
• Size limitation on greenhouse 
• “Barn” designation in the ordinance 
• Ground floor living area 
• Definition of play structures; recreational structures 
• User-friendly Zoning Ordinance (readability, indexing, etc.) 
• Appeal process 
• City Council’s aspect 

 
Mr. Strat referenced his “revised” e-mail that was inadvertently not distributed to the 
Commission members prior to tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Strat said he is not in favor of 
a percentage of lot size as a consideration in the size of an accessory building; i.e., 
narrow lots.  He said the size of a garage door should be limited.  Mr. Strat 
suggested that an appeal process be in place to grant exceptions, and that 
consideration be given to Special Land Use approval that would require a Public 
Hearing.  He suggested that building elevations and identification of materials be 
requirements of the review process.  Mr. Strat said it is very difficult to legislate and 
enforce material compatibility. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Mr. Schultz said enforcement of the current Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
commercial vehicles is most important.  He agrees that the garage door height 
should be limited.  Mr. Schultz said the material used for an accessory structure is a 
matter of preference and should not be dictated by the City.  Mr. Schultz said he 
would be in favor of limiting an attached accessory structure to 750 square feet, or 
¾ of the ground floor living area of the house. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts would like the ordinance to address material compatibility.  She 
questioned if the suggested limitations on the garage door would be enough.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned (1) the clarity of the phrase “clearly incidental” in Section 
04.20.01, (2) no size limitation on greenhouses, and (3) the meaning of ground floor 
living area. 
 
There was a brief discussion whether the ordinance should provide definitions of 
specific structures that are related to recreational hobbies; i.e., playhouses.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that play structures need to be specifically defined in the 
ordinance.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said there was discussion at the City Council level that residents should 
not be penalized from being able to have recreational types of structures.  Those 
types of structures are not used for storage, are not typically large in size and have 
a specific purpose as well as design. 
 
Chair Waller suggested the ordinance reflect some sort of indexing and referencing 
for a user-friendly ordinance. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the text in the Special Use ordinance has been reorganized 
and has not moved forward.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the main issue to solve is the problem of monster commercial 
garages.  He said the slide presentation tonight showed some garages that were 
compatible with the home and the land.  He said the heart of the whole issue and 
where the process should begin is with the definition of commercial vehicles.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said staff is asking for direction in the next two weeks, prior to the 
Public Hearing.  Mr. Chamberlain said the door height is important and it is 
necessary to make sure that the garage door disappears into the ceiling.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said that Special Land Use approval would not work.  He said it would 
become a crapshoot for anyone who wants to construct an accessory building 
because they would not know whether the City would approve it.  Mr. Chamberlain 
said the ordinance must be written with the appropriate text and size limitations, 
and appeals to any restrictions would go before the BZA for review and approval.  
Mr. Chamberlain said the City should not get involved in building material 
compatibility because the building appearance is in the eyes of the beholder and 
this is not a Communist country.  Mr. Chamberlain said the concern with narrow lot 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

size is not an issue, and noted that setbacks within the ordinance would resolve 
that concern.  Mr. Chamberlain said he agrees with the recommendations of Mr. 
Carlisle except that the garage door height should be addressed, and his 
preference would be that it be over 8 feet.   
 
Mr. Wright said he likes the commercial vehicle definition created by Mr. Carlisle.  
He noted the definition was an item with which the Commission struggled in the late 
1980’s and early 1990’s. 
 
Mr. Strat commended Mr. Carlisle’s recommendations.  He stated the garage door 
would not dictate the height of the door as far as internal clearance.  Mr. Strat again 
stressed that the matter should be considered by Special Land Use approval and 
that the BZA is not the appropriate appeal process.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked that there be a height limitation indicated for supplemental 
buildings.  Mr. Stimac noted that it would not be difficult for a resident to prove a 
hardship to the Board of Zoning Appeals with respect to the garage door height 
limitation.   
 
Mr. Stimac acknowledged that stacked condominiums should be addressed, where 
the first floor of the building is primarily a garage.  He said consideration should be 
given to the definition of building versus multiple buildings and how the formula 
would apply to non single-family residential detached structures, such as carports.   
 
Mr. Szerlag suggested a tiered approach in addressing (1) monster accessory 
buildings, (2) commercial vehicles, and (3) material compatibility.  He stressed the 
immediate need to address the size of accessory structures and to enable the 
Building Department to not issue building permits for monster garages.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the exact proposed ordinance text amendment does not 
have to be published prior to the Public Hearing.  It is required to publish only a 
summary of the ordinance sections in which proposed revisions are being 
considered.  Mr. Miller reminded the Commission that the matter could be 
discussed further at the next study session.     
 
Council Member Robin Beltramini was present.  Ms. Beltramini commended Mr. 
Carlisle for a good job in summarizing the will of the City Council.  She said she 
appreciates the tiered approach suggested by Mr. Szerlag.  Ms. Beltramini said she 
surmised by tonight’s comments and her good notes that at least half of the 
members believe the concern of monster accessory structures is driven by the 
commercial vehicle issue, and that she agrees.  She said she heard a fair amount 
of consensus from the members with respect to the ordinance provisions.  Ms. 
Beltramini said she would prefer that the members brainstorm on the heart of the 
matter, and address the material compatibility at a later date.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Council Member Jeanne Stine was present.  Ms. Stine said the crux of the matter is 
dependent on the need to hide commercial vehicles, and she was very pleased that 
Mr. Carlisle addressed that aspect with the City Council.  She asked for clarification 
on the definition of “incidental”, as cited in Section 40.55.01.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said “incidental” is defined as secondary; not primary.   
 
Ms. Stine asked if that would deal with size also.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said that is a very important point.  He said it is highly suspect when an 
“accessory structure” exceeds the principle structure by three or four times.   
 
Ms. Stine referenced the accessory structure located on Windmill [from the slide 
presentation].  Ms. Stine said it is the size of the garage that is so disconcerting, not 
so much the materials.  She said the neighbors are not happy, and the purpose of 
that particular garage is to house commercial vehicles.  Ms. Stine said one of the 
initial purposes of the Alpine monster garage was to house recreational vehicles.  
She suggested that a definition be created for “recreational vehicle”.   
 
Mr. Smith commented that there has been a lot of discussion on the three uses of 
accessory buildings, storage, recreation and vehicles.  He suggested that the uses 
be incorporated into the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Strat briefly addressed outdoor storage facilities with respect to housing 
commercial and recreational vehicles.   
 
Discussion followed with the approach to take on the matter. 
 
Ms. Beltramini said she believes City Council wants some definable effort on this 
issue on the part of the Planning Commission members prior to the City Council 
Public Hearing in November.  She said they would take “half a loaf” should that be 
all that is available.   
 
Ms. Stine said she is familiar with City Council objectives, attitude and concerns, 
and is appreciative of the City Manager’s suggested tiered approach.  Ms. Stine 
said the “whole loaf” might be more acceptable to City Council.  She said that 
commercial vehicles is a difficult matter to address at the table.   
 
Mr. Szerlag said he also sensed that from City Council, and thinks it would be 
reasonable to address commercial vehicles and material compatibility in 30 to 45 
days after addressing the immediate concern of monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the definition of commercial vehicle is adequate and City 
Council should be given the “whole loaf”.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Mr. Szerlag said City Management and the Legal Department would work together 
to move the matter forward.   
 
Revisions to the proposed amendments: 

• Height of garage door (consensus 8 feet, arrived from straw vote) 
• Height of garage (14 foot) 
• Limitation of 200 square feet on all supplemental accessory buildings 
• Add height limit to supplemental buildings 
• Address condominiums with respect to ground floor living area 
• Definition list to have specificity 

 
It was determined that separate reports and separate proposed amendments would 
be prepared for accessory structures and commercial vehicles, and material 
compatibility would be addressed in the very near future.  
 
Chair Waller asked Mr. Carlisle if a chart could be created showing parameters of 
accessory buildings.   
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller reported that extensive meetings have been held wherein the Planning 
Department and Building Department reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendments as revised by the Planning Commission at its last meeting.  Mr. Miller 
distributed the most current revisions.  He noted that the Planning Consultant, 
Richard Carlisle, has reviewed the revisions and said the changes are appropriate.  
Mr. Miller reported that Mr. Carlisle was not able to attend tonight’s meeting due to 
a conflict in his calendar.  Mr. Miller reported that the proposed language has not 
been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office for legalities or format.   
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that three separate resolutions are being prepared so that the 
resolutions can be considered independently.  The three resolutions relate to (1) 
accessory building provisions; (2) commercial vehicle definitions; and (3) the 
commercial vehicle appeal process.   
 
Chair Waller asked around the table whether the members would like to consider 
submitting commercial vehicles to City Council as part of their review on accessory 
buildings and neighborhood compatibility. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to consider all three items.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the publication of the Public Hearing notice for the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.  The Attorney’s Office will provide an 
opinion prior to the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting.   
 
Discussion followed on specific sections of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
Section 04.20.32 
It was determined that trailers should be defined.   
 
Section 40.65.02 
Mr. Stimac explained the revision cleans up a long-standing inconsistency in the 
section.  Mr. Stimac noted that the revision has no impact on the proposed 
amendments relating to accessory structures.   
 
The typographical error in the third line will be corrected; i.e., change the word “of” 
to “or”.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

Section 40.66.00 
There was discussion on: 

• Gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) 
• Lettering, graphics, advertising on vehicles 
• Dual use of vehicles (commercial and personal) 
• Limitation on the number of vehicles 
• Household occupancy; i.e., more than one family member in same 

commercial business 
• Indoor and outdoor parking and storage 
• Home occupation ordinance and enforcement 

 
___________ 

 
There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons. 
 

___________ 
 
Proposed revision.  Outdoor parking of more than one commercial vehicle with the 
gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of less than 10,000 pounds or the indoor or 
outdoor parking of any commercial vehicle with the gross vehicle weight rating 
(GVWR) above 10,001 pounds shall be prohibited. 
 
Sections 43.74.00, 43.74.01, 43.74.02 
There was discussion on: 

• Time period of appeals 
• Tracking / updating of VIN numbers 
• Administration approval 
• Fee for appeals and renewals 

 
Proposed revision:  The BZA may grant appeals for an initial period not to exceed 
two years, and may thereafter extend such actions for a period up to 3 years.   
 
04.20.01, 04.20.02 Definitions 
Proposed revision:  Include public parking garages in definitions. 
 
Section 40.56.01 
There was discussion on: 

• Building height limitation 
• Ground floor living area formula; i.e., quad, tri-level, 3-car garage 
• Footprint language 
• Door height limitation 
• Limitations on number of detached accessory buildings 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

___________ 
 
There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons. 
 

___________ 
 
Section 40.56.02 
There was discussion on: 

• Footprint language relating to combined ground floor area 
 
Section 40.56.03 
There was discussion on: 
Limitations on number of detached accessory supplemental buildings 
Locations of detached accessory supplemental buildings  
Carports, sheds 
 
Proposed revisions:  
(1)  Reword Section 40.56.03 (C) with respect to setbacks 
(2)  Change limitation of detached accessory supplement buildings to 3 
 
Section 40.57.06 
There was discussion on: 

• Variance requirements for barns and greenhouses 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A) 
– Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment that relates specifically to accessory building definitions and 
provisions.  He reviewed the revisions that were made after the November 2, 
2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Miller recommended an 
additional change to Section 40.56.03(C).  He said the intent and clarity of the 
section would be better if it read:  “An accessory supplemental building shall not 
be allowed in a front yard.”  Mr. Miller also noted that the number of accessory 
supplemental buildings was changed from 2 to 3.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said he would like to see all three proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments considered tonight and recommendations forwarded 
to City Council.   
 
Mr. Vleck disagreed and said he would like more time to consider the proposed 
amendments.  Mr. Vleck said the members had a very short timeframe to 
consider the matter, and that more time and consideration was put into other 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments that had much less of an affect on 
residents.  Mr. Vleck voiced dissatisfaction with the Public Hearing notice.  He 
said anyone reading the Public Hearing notice would not have a clue that the City 
has taken under consideration restricting the size of accessory buildings and 
changing commercial vehicle provisions.  Mr. Vleck said he would like more time 
to discuss the 8-foot height restriction of garage doors.  He said the height of mini 
conversion vans range from 8 feet 2 inches to 9 feet 10 inches.  He suggested 
restricting the size of an attached or detached accessory building to the square 
footage of the house.  Mr. Vleck said that the proposed amendments are overall 
too restrictive.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned if the revision to Section 40.56.03 adequately handles a 
corner lot that is considered a double front. 
 
Mr. Miller said they are both considered front yards.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is comfortable moving forward with the accessory building 
proposed amendments, but not comfortable going forward with the proposed 
amendments relating to commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   
 
Mr. Wright said he agrees with Mr. Chamberlain.  He would like to see all three 
items off the Planning Commission table and onto the City Council table.  Mr. 
Wright said the commercial vehicle section is simple and has been bandied 
around for 15 years.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door 
height.  Mr. Littman agreed to move forward with the amendments relating to 
accessory buildings, but would like more time to review and get further input from 
the Planning Consultant on commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

Ms. Drake-Batts said she would like to see a higher height restriction on the garage 
door.  She would also like to see language added so that materials used on an 
accessory building are consistent with materials of the residence.  Ms. Drake-Batts 
said she would like to see all three text amendments considered and forwarded to 
City Council tonight.   
 
Mr. Strat said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height.  
Mr. Strat said the members and staff worked very hard on the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments relating to accessory buildings and would like to see 
that go forward to City Council.  He would prefer more time to review the text 
amendments relating to commercial vehicle definitions.   
 
Mr. Khan said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height 
and going forward on all three proposed text amendments.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent said the proposed 
amendments relating to the size of accessory structures are too restrictive.  Mr. 
Krent brought to the attention of the Commission that the 2% growth factor 
formula was added to the proposed amendment on detached accessory 
structures but not attached accessory structures.  Mr. Krent distributed a 
photograph that depicts a neighbor’s view of a large “warehouse garage”.  Mr. 
Krent said such a building would be horrible to the character and continuity of the 
neighborhood.  Mr. Krent also addressed materials.  He said ribbed steel panel 
material that is used on industrial storage facilities does not belong in a 
residential neighborhood.  He noted that the Zoning Ordinance as currently 
written allows the material.  Mr. Krent said he has spoken to neighboring 
community officials who agree that ribbed steel panel material should not be 
used in residential areas.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck agrees with the comments of Mr. Krent with respect to the size 
restrictions of accessory structures and doors.  Mr. Vleck would like to see 
materials addressed and language added to the Zoning Ordinance that materials 
must be consistent with the residence.   
 
It was noted by the Planning Department and confirmed that the language to 
incorporate the 2% growth factor formula for attached accessory structures could 
be accomplished prior to the City Council Public Hearing.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked for comments from around the table.   
 
Mr. Vleck recommended that all accessory structures be equal to the ground floor 
space, and the construction of attached or detached structures is at the 
homeowner’s discretion.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

Vice Chair Chamberlain said that would not work with some of the large existing 
parcels in the City.  He recommended the separation of detached and attached 
structures.   
 
Mr. Khan said the proposed amendments are good to go before City Council and, if 
necessary, revisions to the text could be made in the future.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred with the comments of Mr. Khan.  He said the ordinance should 
be designed for the norm and not the exception, and that the exceptions can go 
before the BZA.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed text is good to go.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is fine with the proposed text.  He questioned the rationale for 
attached buildings being 600 square feet and detached buildings being 450 square 
feet plus the 2% growth factor.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said it works out to be the same number. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the general direction is to provide more of a limit on the 
attached structures in an effort to model traditional home development. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is okay with the proposed text as printed.  He would like to see 
compatible materials addressed in the near future.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is fine with the proposed text as printed.  He would not like to 
see the 2% growth factor on attached accessory structures.  Mr. Schultz said that 
under no circumstances should an attached accessory structure be greater than 
the size of the home.  Mr. Schultz said he would like to see an additional paragraph 
under 40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings that would state exterior finishes of 
attached accessory buildings shall be similar or compatible with the exterior of the 
principal structure.  Mr. Schultz said he would not support similar language for 
detached accessory structures.  
 
Mr. Vleck questioned if the latest text revisions have been reviewed by the City’s 
Planning Consultant and the City Attorney’s office.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle, reviewed 
the revisions as of Monday, November 8.  Mr. Carlisle is in concurrence with the 
revisions and stated it is the discretion of individual communities to determine the 
size of accessory structures as a part of the community character.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the 
following condition.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-134 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor that if there are changes to the 
proposed text by either City Council or City staff, that said recommendations or 
requests be returned to the Planning Commission for its consideration for 
inclusion and resubmission of the ZOTA to City Council. 
 
Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-135 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add under Section 40.56.01 
Attached Accessory Buildings, paragraph D, to read:  “The exterior materials on 
any attached accessory buildings shall be compatible with the exterior materials 
of the main dwelling structure.”   
 
Discussion on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan said it is normal to have the same material for an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Wright and other members referenced the photograph submitted by Mr. Krent 
and confirmed that the 3129 Alpine structure is attached and is constructed of 
different material than the house.   
 
Mr. Littman asked the definition of “compatible” and who would be the 
determining party.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the definition of “compatible”. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts suggested using the word “consistent” instead of “compatible”.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned the enforceability of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
“compatible” or “consistent” materials.  He said it is an interpretation, and he 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

would assume the determining party would be the Building Department’s plan 
reviewer. 
 
Mr. Motzny said whenever the words “compatible, consistent, typical” or similar 
terms are used, a problem is created.  The ordinance is vague because it leaves 
too much discretion to the person who has to make a decision.  Mr. Motzny said 
the cure to the problem is to provide standards as to what “compatible” or similar 
terms mean.  Mr. Motzny said whether the ordinance is enforceable or not is 
whether or not some judge says there are sufficient standards to define what 
“compatible” or similar terms mean.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain reminded the members that a Public Hearing in front of 
City Council has been scheduled at the end of the month.   
 
Vote on the [amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 
Vote on the original motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the 
following condition.  
 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck made the following comments on his no vote.   
(1) Section 40.57.02 B – The area of the attached accessory building should be 

equal to the square footage of the house and not half the ground floor print; 
and the 600 square feet should be 800 square feet. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

(2) Section 40.57.02 C – Should be stricken, or the 8 feet should be increased to 
either 10 or 12 feet because it does not include standard conversion vans 
that are used by the physically disabled. 

(3) Section 40.57.04 D – The 450 square feet should be 600 square feet plus 2% 
of the total lot area. 

(4) Section 40.57.06 G – Should be stricken and any other references to garage 
door height should deleted or increased to 10 or 12 feet.   

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 29, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:34 PM. 

Pastor Dan Lewis, Troy Christian Chapel, gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentation: Mayor Schilling presented Leonard Bertin, Chair of the Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities, with a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy 
recognizing December 3, 2004 as International Day of Persons with Disabilities. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Consent Judgment City of Troy v. Premium Development  
 
Resolution #2004-11-599 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Consent Judgment in the matter of City of Troy v. Premium 
Construction, L.L.C., et. al. (Case No. 01-035191-CC) is hereby REJECTED. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:07 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:24 PM. 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal -1855 Boulan 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, 1855 Boulan, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for one-year. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Beltramini 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “and that the vehicle be 
parked in an area directly behind the house” AFTER “one-year”. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, 1855 Boulan, for waiver of Chapter 39, 
Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube 
van in a residential district is hereby POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, December 6, 2004. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-11-600 
Moved by Howrylak      
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, that the Resolution to postpone be AMENDED by STRIKING, “December 6, 
2004“ and INSERTING, “December 20, 2004”. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling  
No: Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-11-601 
Moved by Howrylak      
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, 1855 Boulan, for waiver of Chapter 39, 
Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube 
van in a residential district is hereby POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, December 20, 2004. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini   
No: Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal - 2887 E. Wattles Road 
 
Resolution #2004-11-602 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
  
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Costel Luca, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years. 
 
Yes:  Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:  Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-4 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3035 Heritage 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: None specified 
by City Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, 3035 
Heritage, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a GMC Cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-11-603 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution denying the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC Cube van in a residential district be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED by INSERTING: 
 
“WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, 3035 
Heritage, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a GMC Cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for three 
months.” 
 
Yes:  Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No:  Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2004-11-604 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, 3035 
Heritage, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a GMC Cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for three 
months. 
 
Yes:  Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No:  Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-5 Parking Variance – 1715-1717 Stutz Drive 
 
Resolution #2004-11-605 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 
zoning district. 

4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Joseph Damico of Damico 
Contracting, Inc, for waiver of 4 additional parking spaces at the development at 1715-1717 
Stutz be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
C-6 Rezoning (Z-697) West Side of Crooks Road, North of Big Beaver Road – Section 

20 – P-1 to O-1 and B-3 
 
Resolution #2004-11-606 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, that the P-1 to O-1 and B-3 rezoning request, located on the west side of Crooks 
Road, north of Big Beaver Road, Section 20, being 3.11 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family 
Cluster Option 

 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-11-607 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XII, R-1T (One Family Attached Residential District) and Article 
XXXIV (Residential Development Options), Article IV (Definitions) and Article X (One Family 
Residential Districts) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be POSTPONED until the Regular 
City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, January 10, 2005. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-11-608 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-11-608-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
  
Resolution #2004-11-608-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
a) International Day of Persons with Disabilities – December 3, 2004 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: No appointments to Boards and 

Committees scheduled. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions – 
Scheduled for December 6, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Items Submitted 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Resolution Affirming the Principles of Federalism and Civil Liberties – Advanced 
by Council Member Eisenbacher 

 
Resolution #2004-11-609 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy believes there is no inherent conflict between national security 
and the preservation of liberty, and affirms its strong support of the rights of Americans to be 
both safe and free; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy recognizes the Constitution of the United States as our nation’s 
charter of liberty, and that the Bill of Rights enshrines the fundamental and inalienable rights of 
America, including the freedoms of speech, religion, assembly, privacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has a distinguished record of upholding the Constitution, and the 
Bill of Rights, and safeguarding the freedoms and rights of American residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 11, 2001, terrorists from abroad attacked the U.S. by 
commandeering four commercial airliners, and destroyed the World Trade Center in New York, 
significantly damaged the Pentagon, and caused a jetliner crash resulting in significant civilian 
casualties; and 
 
WHEREAS, The terrorist attack was an attack on a nation that is home to a diverse population 
and plunged the nation into deep concern regarding its national security and vulnerability to 
future attacks; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy condemns all terrorist acts wherever occurring; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy believes that efforts to prevent and respond to acts of terrorism 
require extensive coordination, cooperation, and accountability among the federal, state, and 
local level; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy recognizes that protecting our citizens against future terrorist 
attacks requires the federal government to aggressively pursue potential terrorists but these 
efforts to combat terrorism should not disproportionately infringe on the civil rights and liberties 
of the people of the U.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, The prevention of future terrorists attacks is a critical national priority, but it is 
equally important to preserve the civil liberties and personal freedoms embodied in the Bill of 
Rights over 200 years ago, and which have been preserved through a constant vigilance 
against periodic threats to its principles; and 
 
WHEREAS, In response to the terrorist attacks, on October 26, 2001, the U.S. Congress 
passed, and President Bush signed into law, the USA PATRIOT Act, an acronym for “Uniting 
and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct 
Terrorism,” by a Senate vote of 98-1 and a House of Representative vote of 357-66; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy believes that a number of provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act 
threaten fundamental rights and civil liberties, including: 
 

• Section 213 which permits law enforcement to perform searches with no one present 
and to delay notification of the search of a citizens home; 

• Section 215 which permits the FBI Director to seek records from bookstores and libraries 
including books of patrons based on minimal evidence of wrongdoing and prohibits 
librarians and bookstore employees from disclosing the fact that they have been ordered 
to produce such documents; 

• Section 218 which amends the “probable cause” requirement before conducting secret 
searches or surveillance to obtain evidence of a crime; 

• Sections 215, 218, 358 and 508 which permit law enforcement authorities to have broad 
access to sensitive mental health, library, business, financial and educational records 
despite the existence of previously adopted state and federal laws which were intended 
to strengthen the protection of these types of records; 

• Sections 411 and 412 which give the Secretary of State broad powers to designate 
domestic groups as “terrorist organizations” and the Attorney General power to subject 
immigrants to indefinite detention or deportation even if no crime has been committed; 

• Sections 507 and 508 which impose an unfunded mandate on state and local public 
universities who must collect information on students that may be of interest to the 
Attorney General. 

 
WHEREAS, Municipal government budgets across the nation are strained and these added 
duties constitute unfunded mandates on cities police departments, libraries, universities, etc. 
that cities cannot financially absorb; and 
 
WHEREAS, New legislation has been drafted entitled the Domestic Security Enhancement Act 
(DSEA) (also known as PATRIOT II) which contains numerous new sweeping law enforcement 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

and intelligence gathering powers, many of which are not related to terrorism, and which would 
severely dilute, if not undermine, many basic constitutional rights; and 
 
WHEREAS, In response to the threats against civil liberties embodied in certain provisions of 
the PATRIOT Act, legislation has been introduced in the House and Senate that would roll back 
certain provisions of the Patriot Act. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy SUPPORTS the U.S. campaign 
against terrorism, but the City of Troy AFFIRMS its commitment to the U.S. Constitution and 
respective state constitutions; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy URGES President George W. Bush, and 
executive branch members to review, revise and rescind executive orders and policies adopted 
since the terrorist attacks, that limit or compromise the liberties guaranteed by the Constitution 
and the Bill of Rights; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy URGES the U.S. Congress to amend the 
PATRIOT Act in order to restore and protect our nation’s fundamental and inalienable rights 
and liberties; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy SUPPORTS the “Freedom to Read 
Protection Act of 2003” that would reinstate legal standards for libraries and bookstores and the 
“Protecting the Rights of Individuals Act “ which would require a court order before conducting 
electronic surveillance; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy SUPPORTS the sunset of key provisions 
of the PATRIOT Act and increased Congressional oversight over the role of the agencies 
responsible for enforcing the law; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy CALLS on Congress, the Department of 
Homeland Security and other related agencies to partner with cities to protect our hometowns 
while simultaneously preserving the liberties of Americans; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this Resolution BE FORWARDED to the U.S. 
President George W. Bush, the Secretary of State nominee Dr. Condoleezza Rice, the U.S. 
Attorney General nominee Alberto Gonzalez, Senator Debbie Stabenow, Senator Carl Levin 
and State Representative Joseph Knollenberg. 
 
Yes:  Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:  Lambert, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Brought Forward 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

REPORTS:  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: No Minutes Submitted 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) October 31, 2004 Monthly Financial Report   
b) State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract, and Status Report on 

Troy’s Ash Borer Control Program 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 
a) Resolution Adopted by Royal Oak City Commission, November 8, 2004 Regarding:  

House Bill 4358 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS: 

K-1  Alternative Sites for Minor League Baseball Facility – Study Session Carryover item 
from 6:00 P.M. Special Meeting not required. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:15 AM on Tuesday, November 30, 2004. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 29, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6: 03 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini (Arrived 6:04 PM) 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

  
STUDY ITEMS: 

1.  Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility  
 
Andy Appleby, of General Sports, provided City Council with an overview and responded to 
questions raised regarding a proposed minor league baseball facility in the City of Troy. 
 
Resolution #2004-11-597 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy CEASE consideration of placing a minor league baseball 
facility on the Civic Center site. 
 
Yes: Howrylak  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution #2004-11-598 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City Staff to CONTINUE discussions with 
General Sports regarding the placement of a minor league baseball stadium at the Civic Center 
site with additional consideration given to financial arrangements, alcohol use and before this 
issue is brought back before City Council, additional public input is solicited from City of Troy 
boards and committees. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Schilling   
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 29, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:27 PM. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



November 18, 2004 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
    
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF SANITARY 

SEWER EASEMENTS, SIDWELL #88-20-12-100-004 & 005 
 SECTION 12, 2216 & 2238 E. Square Lake Rd. 
 
 
As part of the development of a single lot being split into two building parcels, 
which is located in Section 12, on the south side of E. Square Lake Road, east of 
John R Rd., the Real Estate & Development Department has acquired 2 sanitary 
sewer easements.  In order to extend sanitary sewer to the newly split parcel, an 
easement for sanitary sewer is necessary. The owners of the parcel being split, 
Akram Kthar & Moaeed Khedher, have signed an easement enabling the 
extension of an existing sanitary sewer to the new building parcels. This parcel is 
Sidwell #88-20-12-100-005. 
 
The second easement is from the abutting property owners on the west, as it is 
necessary to cross the corner of their property to extend the sanitary sewer. This 
property is owned by William L. Fletcher & Hester May Quarrella, Sidwell #88-20-
12-100-004 
 
The consideration on both documents is $1.00.  Management recommends that 
City Council accept the attached 2 sanitary sewer easements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04



 

Planned extension 
of Sanitary Sewer 

Exsisting 
Sanitary Sewer 

Easement area 

 











November 23, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION 

CLAIM, PAUL & HELEN A. KALETO, 2839 THAMES,  
SIDWELL #88-20-25-226-005, PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG 
BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2839 
Thames from Helen A. Kaleto (nee Rychlewski), and a closing was held on 
September 23, 2004.  Paul and Helen Kaleto have found a replacement dwelling in 
Macomb Township, Michigan and plan to move prior to December 1, 2004. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. & Mrs. Kaleto are 
eligible for a Price Differential Payment as well as incidental closing and moving 
costs associated with the acquisition of their new property located at 51821 Flyer 
Drive, Macomb Twp.  The amount necessary to acquire a comparable replacement 
dwelling after a market search of available housing was calculated at $14,900.  The 
Kaleto’s will pay the excess of the purchase price of their new home. 
 
The property owner is eligible for incidental closing costs in the total amount of 
$3,281.50.  Mr. & Mrs. Kaleto have chosen to be paid for moving costs from a fixed 
rate schedule and are eligible to claim $1,600 based on the number of rooms in 
their house.  
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed 
documentation to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the 
acquisition of this parcel, staff requests that City Council approve the attached 
Relocation Claim from Paul and Helen A. Kaleto in the total amount of $19,781.50, 
and authorize payment.  Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to 
Dequindre project. 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-05







November 30, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF 

REGRADING AND TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION PERMIT & 
AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYMENT  
SOUTH BOULEVARD AND ROCHESTER INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS – CMAQ PROJECT NO. 01.103.5 
SIDWELL# 88-20-02-101-001 & -003  

 
 
As part of upcoming improvements to the intersection of Rochester and South 
Boulevard, an agreement has been reached with Joseph and Josephine 
Petruzzello, owners of the property located at 6950 Rochester Road, to acquire a 
10-foot wide Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit.  The property is 
located at the Southeast corner of Rochester and South Boulevard. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Robert W. Scherer, State Certified General 
Appraiser, of Colliers International Appraisal and Consulting Service, and 
reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City Assessor, management believes 
that $8,150, the compensation agreed upon, is justifiable for the use of this 10 
foot wide area. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit, management requests that City Council accept 
the attached permit and authorize payment in the amount of $8,150. 
 
Funds will come from the Local Capital Roads budget for CMAQ projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06











 
 
 
 
November 23, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A 

PERMANENT EASEMENTS FROM TROY COMMONS, LLC – 
Sidwell #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 043 

 
 
In connection with the redevelopment of the northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Rochester Road, the Troy Commons Plaza and specifically the current location 
of Big Boy Restaurant and vacant land abutting Rochester Road, the Real Estate 
and Development Department has acquired three easements for watermain, 
sidewalk and sanitary sewer from the property owner, Troy Commons, LLC.  The 
consideration on these documents is $1.00 each. 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-07



TROY COMMONS, LLC 
TROY COMMONS PLAZA AND VACANT LAND 

SIDWELL #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038, 043 
 

 

88-20-22-477-043 

88-20-22-477-038 

88-20-22-477-047 

88-20-22-477-039 

 
 

 















November 24, 2004  
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – 

Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Traffic Control Signs 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened November 16, 2004, for one (1) year requirements of 
Traffic Control Signs with an option to renew for one (1) year.  After reviewing the 
bid proposals, City management recommends awarding contracts to the lowest 
bidders meeting specifications, Vulcan Signs, Rocal Inc., and Hall Signs Inc. at 
an estimated total cost of $25,911.00 per year, at unit prices contained in the 
attached bid tabulation.  These signs are required for new installations, as well as 
for repair and replacement.  Material to be ordered throughout the year as 
needed. 
 
SUMMARY 
VULCAN SIGNS 
 
ITEM ESTIMATED  DESCRIPTION   UNIT 
       QTY       PRICE  
PROPOSAL A:  Complete signs, single face, 3M High Intensity on Aluminum 
1. 100   36” Yield    $15.99 
2. 100   30” Stop    $23.75 
3. 100   36” Stop    $34.20 
 
PROPOSAL B:  Complete Signs, Single Face, 3M Diamond Grade, VIP 
Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green on Aluminum 
1. 20   36” S1-1 School Advance  $64.92 
2. 10   W16-7 Left School Arrow 12x24 $15.20 
 
PROPOSAL C:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- One Color EG on Aluminum 
2. 50   12”x18”    $  4.46 
3. 20   12”x36”    $  8.61 
4. 10   12”x48”    $  8.24 
5. 10   12”x60”    $10.30 
6. 5   12”x72”    $12.36 
8. 30   18”x18”    $  4.64 
9. 20   18”x24”    $  6.18 
10. 1   18”x48”    $12.36 
11. 2   18”x60”    $15.45 

1 of 4 

bittnera
Text Box
E-08



November 24, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Traffic Control Signs 
Page 2 of 4 
 
SUMMARY – continued 
 
VULCAN SIGNS 
PROPOSAL C: 
12. 2   18”X72”    $18.54 
13. 1   24”X24”    $  8.24 
14. 50   24”X30”    $10.30 
15. 1   24”X36”    $12.36 
16. 10   24”X48”    $16.48 
17. 50   30”X30”    $12.88 
18. 10   30”X36”    $14.52 
19. 10   36”X36”    $18.54 
20. 5   36”X48”    $24.72 
21. 10   48”X30”    $20.60 
22. 10   48”X48”    $32.96 
23. 50   12”X30” Hi Int w/round corners $  9.86 
24. 100   12”X36” Hi Int w/round corners $12.08 
25. 20   12”X42” Hi Int w/round corners $13.78 
26 100   12”X48” Hi Int w/round corners $15.71 
 
PROPOSAL D:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- Two or more colors EG on Aluminum 
9. 10   36”x48” Two Color   $38.95 
 
PROPOSAL F:  Complete signs, Double Faced, Two Sided on White – One Color 
1. 50  24”x30” 3M Scotchlite on Aluminum $21.00  
2. 40   9”x30” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $14.88 
3. 40   9”x36” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $17.84 
4. 40   9”x42” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $20.85 
5. 40   6”x24” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $  8.25 
6. 100   6”x30” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $10.50 
7. 100   6”x36” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $12.35 
 
PROPOSAL G:  Set up fees for any listed size to fabricate a non-standard sign. 
         Call for pricing. 
 
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $21,909.04 
 
 
 
 
 



November 24, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Traffic Control Signs 
Page 3 of 4 
 
SUMMARY – continued 
 
ROCAL INC. 
PROPOSAL C:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- One Color EG on Aluminum. 
1. 15   12”x6” One Color   $1.70 
7. 50   18”x6” One Color   $2.50 
     
PROPOSAL D:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- Two or more colors EG on Aluminum. 
1. 50   12”x12” Two Color   $  3.40 
2. 1   12”x12” Three Color   $  3.80 
3. 50   12”x18” Two Color   $  4.98 
5. 15   24”x48” Three Color   $27.30 
 
PROPOSAL E:  3M Standard pre-printed traffic sign faces. 
1. 500   12”x12” No Parking Symbol  $  1.10 
2. 20   24” Hi Int. Stop   $  7.80 
3. 20   30” Hi Int. Stop   $12.18 
 
PROPOSAL F:  Double Faced, two sided on white. 
8. 50   6”x42” Extruded Hi Int Wht  $16.56 
 
PROPOSAL G:  Set up fees for any listed size to fabricate a non-standard sign.  
         $40.00 
 
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $2,760.40 
 
HALL SIGNS 
PROPOSAL D:  Complete Signs, Standard, Warning Diamond, Rectangular or 
Square- Two or more colors EG on Aluminum. 
4. 15   24”X24” Two Color   $13.17 
6. 15   30”x30” Two Color   $20.29 
7. 15   36”x36” Two Color   $28.95 
8. 10   36”x36” Three Color   $30.56 
PROPOSAL G:  Set up fees for any listed size to fabricate a non-standard sign. 
         $91.84/set-up 
 Plus square foot of material    EG   $ .76/ sq. ft. 
(Does not include fluorescent colors)  HI   $1.88/sq. ft.  
            DG   $5.00/sq. ft. 
 
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL -   $1,241.75 



 
 
November 24, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
RE: Bid Award – Traffic Control Signs 
Page 4 of 4 
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
Hall Signs submitted a bid under Proposal F: Complete Signs, Double Faced, 
Two Sided on White for a 24”x30” sign.  The item as bid contained the following 
exception – MUTCD (Michigan Uniform Traffic Control Devices) signs only.  The 
signs purchased under this item are the City’s weight limit signs and are not a 
standard MUTCD sign.  Therefore, the item cannot be considered for award. 
     
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Streets Department 2004-2005 Operating Budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
110 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
3 No Bids: (2) Companies do not handle the products specified. 

(1) Company could not accept City terms – requires 50% downpayment for all 
orders over $1,000. 

 
 

Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda12-6-04 SR2 Traffic Control Signs.doc 
 
 
      
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-54
Opening Date -- 11-16-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS

VENDOR NAME: VULCAN ROCAL HALL INTEGRATED

SIGNS INC SIGNS INC SUPPLY

MANAGEMENT INC

EST UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM -
1. 100 36" YIELD 15.99$          19.19$          20.13$           21.20$         
2. 100 30" STOP 23.75$          25.97$          25.37$           28.60$         
3. 100 36" STOP 34.20$          37.40$         36.24$          41.30$        

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- 7,394.00$     -$             -$              -$            
PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M Diamond Grade, VIP Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green

1. 20 36" S1-1 School Advance 64.92$          69.58$          69.29$           77.00$         
2. 10 W 16-7 Left School Arrow 12 x 24 15.20$          15.70$         16.14$          17.40$        

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- 1,450.40$     -$             -$              -$            

PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR
1. 15 12" X 6" One Color 2.06$             1.70$            1.96$             1.95$           
2. 50 12" X 18" One Color 4.46$            4.90$            4.99$             5.63$           
3. 20 12" X 36" One Color 8.61$            9.80$            9.45$             10.80$         
4. 10 12" X 48" One Color 8.24$            13.06$          12.60$           14.40$         
5. 10 12" X 60" One Color 10.30$          16.33$          15.75$           18.00$         
6. 5 12" X 72" One Color 12.36$          19.60$          18.90$           21.60$         
7. 50 18" X 6" One Color 2.60$             2.50$            2.68$             2.87$           
8. 30 18" X 18" One Color 4.64$            7.35$            7.35$             8.40$           
9. 20 18" X 24" One Color 6.18$            9.80$            9.54$             10.80$         
10. 1 18" X 48" One Color 12.36$          19.60$          18.90$           21.70$         
11. 2 18" X 60" One Color 15.45$          24.50$          23.63$           27.00$         
12. 2 18" X 72" One Color 18.54$          29.40$          28.35$           32.30$         
13. 1 24" X 24" One Color 8.24$            13.06$          12.51$           14.50$         
14. 50 24" X 30" One Color 10.30$          16.33$          15.49$           18.00$         
15. 1 24" X 36" One Color 12.36$          19.60$          18.48$           21.70$         
16. 10 24" X 48" One Color 16.48$          26.13$          25.03$           28.80$         
17. 50 30" X 30" One Color 12.88$          20.40$          19.28$           22.50$         
18. 10 30" X 36" One Color 14.52$          24.50$          23.01$           27.00$         
19. 10 36" X 36" One Color 18.54$          29.40$          27.50$           32.30$         
20. 5 36" X 48" One Color 24.72$          39.20$          38.03$           43.00$         
21. 10 48" X 30" One Color 20.60$          32.66$          31.42$           36.10$         
22. 10 48" X 48" One Color 32.96$          52.26$          51.17$           57.80$         
23. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 9.86$            10.66$          10.70$           18.80$         
24. 100 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 12.08$          12.79$          12.84$           14.20$         
25. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 13.78$          14.93$          14.98$           16.50$         
26. 100 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 15.71$          17.06$         17.12$          18.80$        

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 6,867.34$     150.50$       -$              -$            

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS
1. 50 12" X 12" Two Color 6.71$             3.40$            3.73$             3.91$           
2. 1 12" X 12" Three Color 9.75$             3.80$            3.93$             4.22$           
3. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 7.66$             4.98$            5.25$             5.53$           
4. 15 24" X 24" Two Color 15.03$           13.26$          13.17$          14.70$         
5. 15 24" X 48" Three Color 28.99$           27.30$         27.81$           30.20$         
6. 15 30" X 30" Two Color 21.76$           20.72$          20.29$          23.00$         
7. 15 36" X 36" Two Color 29.98$           29.84$          28.95$          32.80$         
8. 10 36" X 36" Three Color 33.07$           33.40$          30.56$          36.80$         
9. 10 36" X 48" Two Color 38.95$          39.80$         40.03$          43.80$        

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 389.50$        832.30$       1,241.75$      -$            



CITY OF TROY SBP 04-54
Opening Date -- 11-16-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS

VENDOR NAME: VULCAN ROCAL HALL INTEGRATED

SIGNS INC SIGNS INC SUPPLY

MANAGEMENT INC

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 1.48$             1.10$            1.46$             1.26$           
2. 20 24" Hi Int Stop 7.92$             7.80$            10.33$           8.96$           
3. 20 30" Hi lnt Stop 12.38$          12.18$         15.82$          13.50$        

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$              949.60$       -$              -$            

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE
1. 50 24" X 30" 3M Scotchlite on Aluminum 21.00$          26.33$          ($15.49) DMS 29.00$         
2. 40 9" X 30" Extruded Hight Intensity White 14.88$          16.40$          25.47$           18.20$         
3. 40 9" X 36" Extruded Hight Intensity White 17.84$          19.66$          30.84$           21.80$         
4. 40 9" X 42" Extruded Hight Intensity White 20.85$          22.94$          35.97$           25.20$         
5. 40 6" X 24" Extruded Hight Intensity White 8.25$            9.46$            14.33$           10.51$         
6. 100 6" X 30" Extruded Hight Intensity White 10.50$          11.83$          17.84$           13.10$         
7. 100 6" X 36" Extruded Hight Intensity White 12.35$          14.19$          21.34$           15.70$         
8. 50 6" X 42" Extruded Hight Intensity White 16.75$          16.56$         24.85$          18.30$        

PROPOSAL F:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- 5,807.80$     828.00$       -$              -$            
+SQFT OF MATL

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES CALL FOR PRICING 40.00$         91.84$          45.00$        

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 21,909.04$   2,760.40     1,241.75$      -$             
DELIVERY:

Minimum Shipment $50.00 $1,000.00 BLANK $1,000
# of Days 30-45 30-45 30-45 2-4 WEEKS

CONTACT: Hrs of Operation 7-4PM CST 8-4:30PM EST 8-5PM M-F 8-5:30PM M-F
Phone # (800)633-6845 BLANK (800)284-7446 (313)580-2371

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: STANDARD 3M STANDARD 3M ATTACHED TO BID MFG

DELIVERY: 30-45 DAYS ARO 30-45 DAYS ARO 30-45 DAYS ARO 2-4 WEEKS

+ 10% ORANGE

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BACKGROUND BLANK
MUTCD SIGNS ONLY

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES YES YES
NO BIDS:
  Carrier & Gable
  Images Unlimited BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
  LA Exhibits Inc
ATTEST:
  David Black
  Emily Frontera ______________________________
  MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 04-54 Traffic Control Signs



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-54
Opening Date -- 11-16-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS

VENDOR NAME: MICHIGAN

STATE

INDUSTRIES

EST UNIT
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE

PROPOSAL A: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M HIGH INTENSITY ON ALUMINUM -
1. 100 36" YIELD 87.75$          
2. 100 30" STOP 87.75$          
3. 100 36" STOP 87.75$         

PROPOSAL A:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- -$             
PROPOSAL B: COMPLETE SIGNS, SINGLE FACE 3M Diamond Grade, VIP Sheeting, Fluorescent yellow green

1. 20 36" S1-1 School Advance 105.75$        
2. 10 W 16-7 Left School Arrow 12 x 24 23.50$         

PROPOSAL B:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS -- -$             
PROPOSAL C: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE - ONE COLOR

1. 15 12" X 6" One Color 2.75$            
2. 50 12" X 18" One Color 8.25$            
3. 20 12" X 36" One Color 16.50$          
4. 10 12" X 48" One Color 22.03$          
5. 10 12" X 60" One Color 27.55$          
6. 5 12" X 72" One Color 33.05$          
7. 50 18" X 6" One Color 4.15$            
8. 30 18" X 18" One Color 12.40$          
9. 20 18" X 24" One Color 16.50$          
10. 1 18" X 48" One Color 33.05$          
11. 2 18" X 60" One Color 41.30$          
12. 2 18" X 72" One Color 49.55$          
13. 1 24" X 24" One Color 22.03$          
14. 50 24" X 30" One Color 27.55$          
15. 1 24" X 36" One Color 33.05$          
16. 10 24" X 48" One Color 44.05$          
17. 50 30" X 30" One Color 34.45$          
18. 10 30" X 36" One Color 41.30$          
19. 10 36" X 36" One Color 49.55$          
20. 5 36" X 48" One Color 67.30$          
21. 10 48" X 30" One Color 55.10$          
22. 10 48" X 48" One Color 89.75$          
23. 50 12" X 30 Hi Int W/Round Corners 29.25$          
24. 100 12" X 36 Hi Int W/Round Corners 29.25$          
25. 20 12" X 42 Hi Int W/Round Corners 39.00$          
26. 100 12" X 48 Hi Int W/Round Corners 39.00$         

PROPOSAL C:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$             

PROPOSAL D: STANDARD, WARNING DIAMOND, RECTANGULAR OR SQUARE, TWO OR MORE COLORS
1. 50 12" X 12" Two Color 5.50$            
2. 1 12" X 12" Three Color 5.50$            
3. 50 12" X 18" Two Color 8.25$            
4. 15 24" X 24" Two Color 22.03$          
5. 15 24" X 48" Three Color 44.05$          
6. 15 30" X 30" Two Color 34.45$          
7. 15 36" X 36" Two Color 49.55$          
8. 10 36" X 36" Three Color 49.55$          
9. 10 36" X 48" Two Color 67.30$         

PROPOSAL D:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$             



CITY OF TROY SBP 04-54
Opening Date -- 11-16-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS

VENDOR NAME: MICHIGAN

STATE 

INDUSTRIES

PROPOSAL E: 3M STANDARD PRE-PRINTED TRAFFIC SIGN FACES
1. 500 12" X 12" No Parking Symbol R8-3A 5.50$            
2. 20 24" Hi Int Stop 39.00$          
3. 20 30" Hi lnt Stop 87.75$         

PROPOSAL E:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$             

PROPOSAL F: DOUBLE FACED, TWO SIDED ON WHITE
1. 50 24" X 30" 3M Scotchlite on Aluminum 55.00$          
2. 40 9" X 30" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
3. 40 9" X 36" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
4. 40 9" X 42" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
5. 40 6" X 24" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
6. 100 6" X 30" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
7. 100 6" X 36" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A
8. 50 6" X 42" Extruded Hight Intensity White N/A

PROPOSAL F:  EST TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS-- -$             

PROPOSAL G: SET UP FEES $8/SQFT - $7 SET-UP/SINGLE SIDED - $14/COLOR FOR DOUBLE SIDED

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: -$              
DELIVERY:

Minimum Shipment BLANK
# of Days 30-45

CONTACT: Hrs of Operation 7-4PM 
Phone # (517)780-6217

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: BLANK

DELIVERY: 30-45 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-54 Traffic Control Signs











November 30, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION CLAIM, 

MAHMOUD AND NAHLA ABDALLAH 
2851 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-226-006, 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2851 Thames from 
Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah as well as a claim for a price differential payment. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. and Mrs. Abdallah are 
eligible for an additional relocation payment in the amount of $15,476.94.  This 
reimbursement is for costs associated with the acquisition of their new property located 
at 4140 Glenbrook, in Sterling Heights, Michigan.  These costs include an interest 
differential payment, incidental closing costs and moving expenses as shown on the 
attached claim form. 
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed project, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from Mahmoud and 
Nahla Abdallah in the total amount of $15,476.94, and authorize payment.  Funds will 
come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-09









November 23, 2004 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF SANITARY 

SEWER EASEMENTS, SIDWELL #88-20-24-451-058 & 059 
 SECTION 24, 2583 E. BIG BEAVER & ADJACENT LOT 
 
 
As part of the development of a single lot located in Section 24, on the north side 
of Big Beaver Road, west of Waterfall, the Real Estate & Development 
Department has acquired 2 sanitary sewer easements.  A larger parcel owned by 
Umberto and Venerina Basilisco, located at 2583 E. Big Beaver, having Sidwell 
#88-20-24-451-058, was split and they have signed an easement allowing the 
extension of an existing sanitary sewer to the new lot. 
 
The second easement is from the property owners of the newly split lot, Stephan 
and Carole Gueccia, and Julius Ceasar and Michelle Spognardi, having Sidwell 
#88-20-24-451-059. 
 
The consideration on both documents is $1.00.  Management recommends that 
City Council accept the attached 2 sanitary sewer easements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-10



 
2583 E. BIG BEAVER AND ADJACENT LOT SPLIT 

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City owned lot & approx. 
location of sewer manhole 

Sidwell #88-20-24-451-058 
2583 E. Big Beaver 
Umberto & Venerina Basilisco 

Newly split lot 
Sidwell #88-20-24-451-059 
 













November 30, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION CLAIM,  
 THIEN VAN LE AND YEN LU 

2919 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-229-002 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2919 Thames from 
Thien Van Le and Yen Lu as well as a claim for a Replacement Housing Supplement 
and a Fixed Moving Payment. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Thien Van Le and Yen Lu 
are eligible for an additional relocation payment in the amount of $1,170.00.  This 
reimbursement is for incidental closing costs associated with the acquisition of their new 
property located at 36515 Melbourne Drive, in Sterling Heights, Michigan. 
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed project, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from Thien Van Le 
and Yen Lu in the total amount of $1,170.00, and authorize payment.  Funds will come 
from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-11









 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
RE: 2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
DATE: November 15, 2004 
 
 
 
Upon completion of the annual audit it has been customary to present City Council a 
Budget Amendment reconciling capital projects that were estimated at budget time and 
outstanding purchase orders as of the end of the fiscal year. The attached amendments 
are for capital items that were included in the 2003-04 budget that were in various 
stages of completion at June 30, 2004 and will be completed in 2005. Please note that 
the attached amendments are not for projects coming in over budget. 
 
Some of the major capital expenditures requiring amendments are: 
 

• Major road projects – Dequindre, Wattles to Long Lake 
• Technology enhancements 
• Drainage improvements 
• Library general repairs 
• Museum improvements 

 
It is requested that the attached Budget Amendment No. 1 be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/jml\AGENDA ITEMS\2004\12.06.04 - 2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1 

bittnera
Text Box
E-12



2004-05 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 1

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

REVENUE:

FUND BALANCE
   UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED 14,501,594$       (5,834,880)$    8,666,714$              
   RESERVE FOR ENCUMBRANCES 815,190              (815,190)         -                          

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUE 6,650,070$    

EXPENDITURES:

PURCHASING

EQUIPMENT - OFFICE -$                    20,000$          20,000$                   

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 135,000$            93,500$          228,500$                 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 199,450              116,250          315,700                   

COMPUTER CONSULTING 471,570              197,500          669,070                   
407,250$        

CITY HALL

OFFICE RENOVATION 100,000$            17,250$          117,250$                 

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 35,000$              50,000$          85,000$                   
EQUIPMENT - OFFICE 15,000                20,000            35,000                    

70,000$          

POLICE

UNIFORM PATROL
     EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 88,900$              36,460$          125,360$                 

COMMUNICATIONS
     COMPUTER SOFTWARE 61,300                110,000          171,300                   
     RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 181,940              41,140            223,080                   

187,600$        



CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

ENGINEERING

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 10,000$              16,000$          26,000$                   
EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 7,000                  9,520              16,520                    

25,520$          

PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL REPAIRS 248,000$            97,430$          345,430$                 

EQUIPMENT - GENERAL -                     45,350            45,350                    

MAJOR ROADS 12,664,000         2,588,370       15,252,370              

LOCAL ROADS 2,765,000           1,139,480       3,904,480                

DRAINS 1,251,000           350,760          1,601,760                

SIDEWALKS 1,100,000           250,570          1,350,570                

TRAFFIC SIGNALS 200,000              111,640          311,640                   
4,583,600$     

PARKS AND RECREATION

PLANNING & PARK DESIGN 25,000$              25,000$          50,000$                   
SCHOOL JOINT PROJECTS 60,000                70,930            130,930                   
PARK DEVELOPMENT
     RAINTREE PARK 30,000                24,300            54,300                    
     SYLVAN GLEN LAKE PARK -                     75,000            75,000                    
     OEC -                     14,400            14,400                    
MUNICIPAL GROUNDS
     CIVIC CENTER 20,000                92,320            112,320                   
     CEMETERY IMPROV. -                     30,000            30,000                    
     COMPUTER IRRIGATION 60,000                10,000            70,000                    
SECTION ONE GOLF COURSE -                     385,500          385,500                   

727,450$        
MUSEUM

HISTORIC GREEN DEV. 5,000$                48,690$          53,690$                   
BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS 87,000                181,320          268,320                   

230,010          



CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

LIBRARY

EQUIPMENT - OFFICE -$                    55,550$          55,550$                   
GENERAL REPAIRS -                     325,840          325,840                   

381,390$        

TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES
6,650,070$    

MOTOR EQUIPMENT FUND

REVENUE:

     UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 3,835,830$         (501,270)$       3,334,560$              
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 501,270$       

EXPENSES:

VEHICLES 1,349,000$         501,270$        1,850,270$              
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENSES 501,270$       

Amendment requested to provide funds for outstanding purchase orders at June 30, 2004, and to 
reconcile capital projects in various stages of completion at June 30, 2004. 



 
 
 
 

November 29, 2004 
 

TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Private Agreement for Jonna Retail 

Project No. 03.920.3 
 
 
 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed and approved plans for this project, 
which includes water main, sanitary sewer, deceleration lane, approaches, sidewalk 
and soil erosion controls. 
 
The Owner has provided a letter of credit for escrow and cash fees in the amount 
of the estimated cost of public improvements, as required. 
 
Approval is recommended. 
 
 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2003\03.920.3 - Jonna Management\Private Agreement Cover Letter.doc 
 

cc: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
James Nash, Financial Services Director 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay, P.E. 
  Civil Engineer 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-13









Enclosed Private Agreement, Detailed Summary, Sketch 
 
 

DETAILED SUMMARY OF REQUIRED ESCROW DEPOSITS AND CASH FEES 
PRIVATE AGREEMENT FOR JONNA RETAIL 

PROJECT NO. 03.920.3 
 

 
 
 
 
The estimated costs of public improvements for the above-mentioned project are as 
follows: 
 
Escrow Deposits: 
 

Watermain 26,000.00 
Sanitary Sewer 2,900.00 
Decel., Approach, S/W 50,000.00 
Soil Erosion 4,000.00 
  

 
Total Escrow Deposits:  (Letter of Credit)    $   82,900.00 
 
 
Cash Fees: 
 
 Review & Inspection    $6,715.00 
 Engineering Review       3,710.00 
 Water Main Testing Fee         650.00 
 Street Cleaning/Road Maintenance  2,500.00 
 Soil Erosion Controls         727.00 
 
Total Cash Fees:  (check)         $  14,302.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 
 
 
 
November 23, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A 

PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN – LEONARD 
FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP – 1095 NAUGHTON
Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 

 
 
In connection with the expansion of the Gardner Sign building, located in the 
northwest quarter of Section 26, east of Stephenson Hwy and south of I-75, the 
Real Estate and Development Department has acquired a watermain easement 
from the property owner, Leonard Family Limited Partnership.  The consideration 
on this document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-14



LEONARD FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
(GARDNER SIGNS) 

SIDWELL #88-20-26-152-012 
1095 NAUGHTON 

WATERMAIN EASEMENT 
 
 

 

88-20-26-152-012 
1095 Naughton 
Leonard Family Limited Partnership 
Watermain Easement 

 
 
 
 

 
 









TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Admin.  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Annual Banquets  
 
DATE:   November 30, 2004 
 
 
As in previous years, the City Council appoints a master of ceremonies for the 
annual Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 12, 2005) and the 
annual Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 21, 2005). 
 
The Community Affairs Department has already begun the planning process for 
the annual banquets to ensure a first class event.  Please have City Council 
appoint a councilperson that will act as the official master of ceremonies that 
evening and work with the Community Affairs Department.  Responsibilities 
include selecting a minister or priest to give the invocation, greeting all guests 
and distributing party favors that evening, and serving as master of ceremonies 
for the program. 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-02



Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2003- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That _____________________ will act as Master of Ceremonies 
and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department 
for the Annual 2005 Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 12, 
2005); 
And 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ________________________ will act as 
Master of Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the 
Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2005 Fire Fighters Appreciation 
Banquet (May 21, 2005). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item 

Approval of Subdivision Entrance Signs/Agreements 
   Sylvan Glen Subdivision 
 
 
 
 
In November of 2001, City Council made revisions to the Sign Ordinance that allowed 
for the placement of subdivision entranceway signs in the medians of public streets.  
Those revisions required that in order to place a sign within a median, City Council must 
approve the sign design and materials.  It also requires the submission of an agreement 
for the maintenance and liability for the sign.   
 
At this time we have completed work on sign proposed by the Sylvan Glen 
Homeowners Association.  This association has previously had a sign approved for the 
intersection of Berwyck and Long Lake Road.  They now wish to obtain approval for two 
additional signs.  The signs are proposed to be located in the median of Falmouth at the 
intersection of Long Lake Road as well as the median of Hampshire at the intersection 
of Livernois.  The signs are primarily comprised of carved boulders.  Staff has reviewed 
the design of the sign as well as the language of the agreement and the supporting 
documentation and recommends approval. 
 
We will be happy to answer any questions that you may have regarding this request. 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and Legality          

   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 

Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-03











































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: December 1, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Troy v. Switlicki et. al  
 

 
 

 
In order to complete the Rochester Road Sidewalk Gap project, the 

City of Troy needed to acquire 32 feet from three parcels on the east side 
of Rochester Road, north of Square Lake Road.  These parcels are owned 
by Michael and Glenna Switlicki, and encumbered by a lien possessed by 
Al and Peggy Hartzell.   

 
Although formal condemnation was initiated, the parties have 

continued settlement discussions, and have focused on a possible 
resolution of this matter in lieu of aggressive litigation at this time.  As a 
result of these negotiations, the parties have reached consensus in a 
settlement for the property, which is contained in the attached proposed 
Consent Judgment.  City Administration recommends approval of the 
attached Consent Judgment.      

 
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please 

let me know.          
     
  
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-04



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 
 v       Case No. 
 
MICHAEL SWITLICKI, GLENNA SWITLICKI,   
AL J. HARTZELL, Trustee of the Al J.  
Hartzell Trust Dated August 21, 2002 and  
PEGGY J. HARTZELL, Trustee of the  
Peggy J. Hartzell Trust Dated August  
21, 2002 
  
                        Defendants. 
_____________________________/ 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
By:  Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
 
James R. Porritt, Jr. (P23222) 
Attorney for Defendants Michael Switlicki,  
 Glenna Switlicki, Al J. Hartzell, and 
 Peggy Hartzell  
436 S. Broadway St., Suite C 
Lake Orion, MI 48362 
(248) 693-5850  
 _______________________________/ 
 

CONSENT JUDGMENT 
 

At a session of Court held in the Courthouse 
in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, 
 
on:  ________________________________ 

 
PRESENT:  HONORABLE EDWARD SOSNICK, CIRCUIT JUDGE  

 



     In this case, the Plaintiff, CITY OF TROY (TROY), and Defendants 

MICHAEL SWITLICKI and GLENNA SWITLICKI (collectively referred to as the 

SWITLICKIS) and Al J. HARTZELL, Trustee of the Al J. Hartzell Trust Dated 

August 21, 2002, and PEGGY J. HARTZELL, Trustee of the Peggy J. Hartzell 

Trust Dated August 21, 2002 (collectively referred to as the HARTZELLS), have 

consented to the entry of this Consent Judgment and the Court being fully 

advised, orders as follows:   

IT IS ORDERED: 
 

1. TROY has approved the completion of the Rochester Road sidewalk gap 

project, which requires the acquisition of Plaintiff’s property, as described in 

the attached Exhibit 1 and in the Complaint for Acquisition of Property and 

Declaration of Taking filed with this Court on August 31, 2004.  The 

necessity of this acquisition is conclusively presumed, pursuant to MCL 

213.56 (7).     

2. Title to this property (described in paragraph one), vests in TROY as of 

August 31, 2004, the date of the filing of the complaint, under MCL 213.57.    

3. Pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et 

seq., and upon stipulation of the parties, Defendants will surrender actual 

physical possession of the Property, as described in paragraph one, upon 

the entry of this Consent Judgment.    

4. For the acquisition of the property (described in paragraph one), Plaintiff 

TROY shall pay to the SWITLICKIS (Defendants) compensation in the 

amount of $81,227.61.  This amount shall be paid within twenty-one days 

after entry of this Consent Judgment, and shall be paid by a check, made 



payable to MICHAEL SWITLICKI and GLENNA SWITLICKI.  TROY shall 

not be obligated to make any payment to or on behalf of the HARTZELLS 

(Defendants) for the acquisition of the property (described in paragraph 

one) or otherwise arising out of the taking for public purposes of said 

property.   

5. Pursuant to the provisions of 1931 PA 270 as amended (MCL 213.291), 

any delinquent taxes, assessments, water bills, or other encumbrances on 

the property (described in paragraph one) shall be deducted by TROY prior 

to payment of the sums, as set forth in paragraph four.     

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section Two of the General Property Tax Act, 

being 1893 PA 206, as amended (MCL 211.2), taxes paid or deducted shall 

be pro-rated, on a due-date basis and adjusted proportionately for the 

amount of the acquisition, and an appropriate adjustment shall be made in 

the amount paid or withheld pursuant to this Consent Judgment.   

7. The parties are aware of a future planned project that would widen 

Rochester Road in front of the property.  The parties are not yet aware of a 

commencement date for this project, which is dependent upon the receipt of 

funding.  However, until the commencement date of this future Rochester 

Road widening project, TROY agrees to temporarily locate the sidewalk to 

allow for the retention of the berm that currently exists on a portion of the 

property.  The SWITLICKIS agree that the berm shall remain in 

substantially the same condition and size as of the date of entry of the 

Consent Judgment.   Once the future Rochester Road widening project is 

officially approved, then TROY, at its cost, shall relocate the sidewalk in 



order to accommodate the future Rochester Road expansion project.  The 

parties agree and understand that the relocation of the sidewalk at that time 

(after approval of the Rochester Road widening project) will impact the 

berm that is currently located in the acquisition area.  TROY will use its best 

efforts at that time to preserve as much of the berm as is possible, and to 

use a retaining wall or other technology, as long as the methods utilized are 

in accordance with accepted engineering standards.        

8. Upon TROY’s payment of the sums recited in paragraph four of this 

Consent Judgment, any and all claims of Defendants which have been 

asserted or which could have been asserted against Plaintiff arising out of 

the taking of the subject property or by reason of any other claims for 

damages which could or may have been asserted by reason of the 

commencement of the instant proceedings shall be forever barred.  

9. This judgment resolves the last pending claims and closes the case.  

 
 

______________________________ 
Edward Sosnick 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 

 
Approved as to substance and form 
Notice of entry waived:  
 
_______________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Attorney for Plaintiff CITY OF TROY  

_______________________________ 
James R. Porritt, Jr. (P23222) 
Attorney for Defendants MICHAEL SWITLICKI, 
GLENNA SWITLICKI, AL J. HARTZELL, and  
PEGGY J. HARTZELL   

 



 
 
DATE:   November 29, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1263 Wrenwood 
 
 
 
 
On November 3, 2004, information was sent to Jane Bulak-Ramsden that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, she was advised that the cube van parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, she has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 2004. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
G-1a



 



 





 



 



 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2875 Bywater 
 
 
 
 
On August 4, 2003, information was sent to Raad Makisi that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford box truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Makisi arranged for off-site storage of the vehicle.  In 
November of 2004, our office began receiving complaints that the vehicle was once 
again being parked on that property.  On November 9, 2004, our inspection of the site 
confirmed that the truck was there in violation of the ordinance and a court summons 
was issued. 
 
In response to our most recent enforcement activities, Mr. Makis has filed an appeal.  
The appeal requests that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the 
ordinance.  A public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 
2004. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01b



 



 



 



 



 

 



 



 
 
DATE:   November 29, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   6903 John R 
 
 
 
 
On November 16, 2004, information was sent to Elena Minetos that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, she was advised that the Peterbuilt semi tractor parked on the property 
did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was 
given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, She has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 2004. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01c



 



 





 



 1

 
November 30, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(DECEMBER 20, 2004) – REZONING APPLICATION  – South side of 
South Boulevard, West side of Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T 
(Z 698) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the R-1T Location 
Standards.  The R-1T Zoning District is compatible with adjacent land uses and zoning 
districts.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at 
the November 9, 2004 Regular meeting.  City Management concurs with the Planning 
Department recommendation. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Frank Ayar.  The applicant is Ted Berlinghof. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of South Boulevard, west of Rochester Road, 
in Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is 2.31 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-1d



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that a 12-unit condominium development is proposed for the 
property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential.  
 
South: Sandalwood Condominiums, a 54-unit R-1T development.    
 
East: Sandalwood Condominiums, a 54-unit R-1T development.  
 
West: Single family residential.   
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-3 One Family Residential (City of Rochester Hills). 
 
South: R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 
 
East: R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in R-1T:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 
accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 

 
 Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 



 3

 Child care centers. 
 

Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The property fronts on South Boulevard.  
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site detention. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are some woodlands on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the property as Medium Density Residential.  
Medium Density Residential correlates with the R-1T Zoning District in the Future Land 
Use Plan.  The application is therefore consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
Section 12.40.01 Location Standards provides the following: 
 

The R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be applied to property 
when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 

 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of 

the Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as 
medium density or high density residential. 

 
The application meets the Location Standards for the R-1T One Family Attached 
Residential District. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letter from petitioner dated September 14, 2004. 
3. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 698) 
 
Prepared by RBS 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-698 Ayar Townhouse Sec 3\Announcement of CC PH Ayar Townhouse 11 18 04.doc 





Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:52:52 PM



Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:48:45 PM



Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:45:49 PM







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 698) – Proposed 
Condominium Development, South side of South Blvd., West of Rochester Road, 
Section 3 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Ted Berlinghof of Architects International, 40 Hague, Detroit, was 
present.   
 
The property owner, Frank Ayar of 6924 Cottonwood Knoll, West Bloomfield, was 
also present. 
 
Mr. Berlinghof provided a brief description of the proposed condominium project.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-130 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the south side of 
South Boulevard, west of Rochester Road, within Section 3, being 2.31 acres in 
size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



 1

November 30, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino A. Licari, City Assessor 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (DECEMBER 20, 2004) – 

STREET VACATION APPLICATION PUBLIC HEARING (SV 179) – The 
eastern half of Alger Street, between Birchwood and Vermont, located 
west of John R Road, north of Maple Road, Section 26 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
that the Alger Street vacation request be approved, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The house at 1767 Alger Street shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
2. The City shall retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger Street right-of-way for the 

purpose of establishing a 60-foot right-of-way on Birchwood. 
 
City Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation and 
recommends an authorizing resolution.  Once the conditions are met City Council may 
consider a Final Vacation of the right-of-way. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of applicant(s): 
Thomas M. Moss and Sam and Shirley Coleman. 
 
Location of property owned by applicant(s): 
The street is located in the John R Garden Subdivision, which was platted in 1926.  Mr. 
Moss owns the property abutting Alger Street to the east, comprised of lots 410, 411, 
432 and 433 of John R Garden Subdivision.  On the west side of the street, Mr. and 
Mrs. Coleman own the house on lot 408 and 409.  Coleman’s Wrecker Service is on lots 
402 through 407 and 434 through 441.  The street abuts lots 409, 410, 433 and 434. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01e



 2

Length and width of right-of-way. 
The Alger Street right-of-way is 50 feet wide.  The applicant is proposing to vacate the 
entire portion (50 feet wide) of Alger Street, between Birchwood Street and Vermont 
Street (vacated), a distance of 260 feet. 
 
History of Right-of-Way: 
A significant portion of the Alger Street right-of-way has been vacated, including the 
entire right-of-way between Woodslee and Brinston.  City and county aerial photographs 
indicate that the western half of the Alger Street right-of-way between Vermont Street 
and Birchwood Street has been vacated.  However, City staff has determined that no 
portion of the Alger Street right-of-way between Birchwood and Vermont has ever been 
vacated. 
 
Mr. Moss applied to vacate this portion of Alger Street in January 2003.  The application 
was considered at the February 11, 2003 Regular Meeting.  At this meeting, it was 
discussed that Alger Street serves the existing non-conforming residence on the west 
side of the street.  Section 40.10.02 requires that any parcel of land zoned in a 
classification other than One-Family or Two-Family Residential has access to an 
approved public street that has been accepted for maintenance by the City.  A 
representative of the Department of Public Works indicated that the City would not 
accept maintenance of a sub-standard street.  Approving this street vacation would 
have the effect of increasing the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel to the 
west.   
 
For these reasons, this item was tabled to the February 25, 2003 Special/Study 
Meeting.  It was tabled again at this meeting.  Following this meeting, the applicant 
withdrew the application until such time that the home at 1767 Alger was removed.    
 
The applicant has resubmitted the application, together with the owners of the non-
conforming house at 1767 Alger Street.  A residential wrecking permit (PB2004-1136) 
for 1767 Alger was issued on October 5, 2004.  As of the date of this report, the 
wrecking permit had not been finalized.  Upon finalization, the street vacation request 
will comply with the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Industrial uses. 
 
South: A single family home and a vacant lot. 
 
East: Vacant. 
 
West: A single family home and a wrecking yard.  The single family home is a non-

conforming use in the M-1 Light Industrial district. 



 3

Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
All parcels abutting Alger Street between Birchwood and Vermont are zoned M-1 Light 
Industrial.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Reason for street vacation (as stated on the Street/Alley Vacation Application): 
Both applicants have provided a letter requesting the street vacation application (see 
attached).   
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use plan as Light Industrial/Research. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letters from applicants. 
3. Minutes from February 11, 2003 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Minutes from February 25, 2003 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
5. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/SV 179 
 
Prepared by RBS 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 179 Alger St N of Birchwood Sec 26\Announcement of CC PH Alger St Vacation 11 18 04.doc 



















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-179) – East ½ of Alger 

Street, abutting Lots 410 and 433 of John R Garden Subdivision, North of 
Birchwood, West of John R, Section 26 – M-1. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed street vacation.  The applicant is proposing to vacate the east half (25 
feet wide) of Alger Street between Birchwood Street and Vermont Street 
(vacated), which is a distance of 260 feet.  Mr. Savidant said that a significant 
portion of the Alger Street right-of-way has been vacated, including the entire 
right-of-way between Woodslee and Brinston.  In reviewing the current use of 
adjacent parcels, Mr. Savidant reported that the parcel to the west contains a 
single family home and a wrecking yard and noted the single family home is a 
non-conforming use in the M-1 Light Industrial district.  All parcels abutting Alger 
Street between Birchwood and Vermont are zoned M-1 Light Industrial.  Mr. 
Savidant stated that the applicant wishes to vacate the eastern half of the street 
to enable the construction of an industrial shop and office building on the site, 
noting that presently it would be difficult, if not impossible, to meet setback 
requirements.   
 
In summary, Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to deny the Alger street vacation request as submitted.  Mr. Savidant 
explained that approving the street vacation would have the effect of increasing 
the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel to the west, which neither the 
Planning Commission nor City Council has the authority to do. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the attorney representing the applicant has contacted the 
Planning Department with a willingness to work with the City to come to some 
kind of an agreement.   
 
Ms. Pennington asked for confirmation that the property located east of Alger 
Street is unbuildable as it is currently zoned. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the site is unbuildable because of the required 
setbacks.   
 
Mr. Waller questioned the width of the street and right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Savidant explained that the right-of-way is currently 50 feet wide and the 
gravel street is 22 feet wide.  He explained that if the 25 feet were to be vacated, 
one half of the gravel street would be lost as well, resulting in roughly an 11-foot 
wide gravel street on a 25-foot wide right-of-way.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

Mr. Waller stated that somebody potentially could shift the gravel over to the west 
to turn the 22 feet into 25 feet. 
 
Mr. Savidant responded yes, potentially. 
 
Ms. Pennington questioned if a utility easement exists on the property.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the Engineering Department did not designate any 
utility easement in the right-of-way.   
 
Arthur Shannon, 43252 Woodward, Bloomfield Hills, was present to represent 
the petitioner.  He explained that Mr. Moss was called out of town and could not 
attend the meeting.  Mr. Shannon commented that the information provided to 
the Commission has been presented accurately.  Mr. Shannon stated that Mr. 
Moss was involved in developing land in the area of Brinston and Bellingham, 
which is located in the same subdivision a little to the north.  He further stated 
that Mr. Moss wishes to relocate his business and office to this site, noting that 
Mr. Moss currently works out of an office on Big Beaver, east of Rochester.   
 
Mr. Shannon recognizes that the main problem to this street vacation is the 
house on Alger, and stated that Mr. Moss is willing to do one of two things.  Mr. 
Moss is willing to grant an easement over the entire road, so that the road as it 
now exists could continue to be used, unless or until some day it could be 
vacated.  Mr. Moss is also willing to grant a permanent easement over the 
roadway so that the roadway would remain unaffected.  Mr. Shannon noted that 
Mr. Moss does not need the roadway; he needs the setbacks in order to build 
within his lots.  Mr. Shannon further noted that the house would probably be 
removed within one year. 
 
Chairman Littman asked if the petitioner would like the matter to be tabled.   
 
Mr. Shannon said that due to time constraints, he is asking the Commission to 
grant approval to the street vacation subject to granting a permanent easement 
over the roadway so the roadway remains unaffected. 
 
Chairman Littman asked for legal advice from the Assistant City Attorney. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that she and Mr. Shannon had discussed the matter earlier in 
the day.  She reported that the granting of an easement may or may not resolve 
the matter.  She cited the ordinance with respect to site access requirements in 
that a permanent and unobstructed private easement can suffice if it is at least 
40 feet in width, noting this would not be the case in this matter.  Ms. Lancaster 
stated that with less than 40 feet, any easement would be subject to the review of 
the City Engineer who is required to receive approval from both the Fire Chief 
and Police Chief.  Ms. Lancaster summarized that preliminary work must be 
conducted to find out if an easement is feasible, and suggested that no action be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

taken to this regard because an easement may not be a viable solution.  Ms. 
Lancaster reminded the Commission that granting a vacation at this time would 
increase the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel.   
 
A short discussion followed.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said that regardless if there is a residence or not, there is a 
viable piece of land that is separately owned, and whoever owns that land has a 
street going to it.  He said there could someday be an industrial building on that 
property with a need for a street, noting then there would be truck traffic as 
opposed to car traffic.  Mr. Chamberlain said then a matter could arise with not 
wanting truck traffic over this easement.  Mr. Chamberlain expressed his 
opposition to vacating the street because it would result in landlocking the 
residence and further commented that he would not vote for any 
recommendation to vacate this street.  
 
Mr. Shannon responded that the house is owned by the same gentleman who 
owns the vacant corner lot to the south of it, and again noted that the house 
would probably not remain a year from now.  Mr. Shannon stated that if there 
were a permanent easement, the same road would be there whether the owner 
wanted to develop the back piece of land separately from the front piece. 
 
Mr. Kramer responded there are two parcels; today it could be one owner, 
tomorrow it could be two owners. 
 
Chairman Littman stated that the Planning Department has on file a letter from 
the Coleman’s voicing their objection to this proposed street vacation.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Mr. Shannon announced that Mr. Moss met with the Coleman’s since that letter 
was written and explained his proposal.  Mr. Shannon stated that the Coleman’s 
do not have an objection to the vacation now.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

Resolution 
 
Moved by Pennington  Seconded by Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, that this item be tabled to the Special/Study Meeting scheduled on 
February 25, 2003. 
 
Yeas Nays 
Kramer Chamberlain 
Littman 
Pennington 
Schultz 
Storrs 
Vleck 
Waller 
Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain stated:  “My negative vote is due to the fact that we are wasting 
everybody’s time here.  You got that sidwell sitting up there that you cannot have 
a legal street to.  It might be all one ownership but right now it’s a different 
sidwell.  The only way you can change that is to change the sidwell to combine it 
with the rest of the properties and that ain’t gonna probably happen and that’s the 
reason for my no vote.” 
 
Ms. Lancaster recommended that the public hearing remain open to avoid re-
sending public hearing notifications to affected residents. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING RE-OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chairman Littman announced that the public hearing will remain open until the 
February 25 Special/Study Meeting.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 25, 2003 

 
8. ALGER STREET VACATION REQUEST – Tabled from February 11, 2003 Regular 

Meeting 
 
Chairman Littman announced that the Public Hearing remains open on this item. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that he and Mr. Savidant met with the petitioner and explained to 
the petitioner that the zoning ordinance requires that the existing home on Alger 
Street be provided access on a road or, as an alternative because it is zoned M-1, 
provided a 40 foot wide easement which includes a 28 foot wide road built to City 
road standards.  Mr. Miller said that all options were discussed with the petitioner 
and the petitioner is considering potential solutions; i.e., changing the complete 
building plan and/or seeking a variance.   
 
A short discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Miller recommended that the petitioner be provided enough time to assess his 
alternatives and that the vacation request be tabled to a regular meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution 
 
Moved by Waller Seconded by Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, that Street Vacation Request (SV-179) be tabled to the April 8, 2003 
Regular Meeting.   
 
Yeas Absent 
All present (8) Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-179) – Alger Street 
between Birchwood and Vermont, approximately 260 feet, abutting Lots 409, 
410, 433 and 434, John R Garden Subdivision, North of Birchwood, West of John 
R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Alger Street vacation.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the request with the conditions that (1) 
the house at 1767 Alger Street be demolished prior to final vacation; and (2) that 
the City retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger street right-of-way for the purpose 
of establishing a 60-foot right of way on Birchwood.   
 
The petitioners, Tom Moss of 1893 Birchwood, Troy, and Shirley Coleman of 
2089 Burdic, Troy, were present.   
 
Mr. Moss said he is the owner of the property located immediately to the east of 
the subject vacation and the Coleman’s are owners of the property immediately 
to the west.  Mr. Moss said the house at 1767 Alger Street is scheduled to be 
demolished next Monday.  He explained the home was recently used by the Troy 
Police Department for SWAT team drills.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-132 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for the Alger Street right-
of-way, located within the John R Gardens Subdivision, abutting lots 409, 410, 
433 and 434, being approximately 260 feet in length and 50 feet in width, in 
Section 26, be approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the structure at 1767 Alger shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
 

2. That the City shall retain the southern 5 feet of Alger Street right-of-way 
for purposes of establishing a 60 foot right-of -way on Birchwood. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



December 2, 2004 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility 
 
 
As instructed at the November 29, 2004 Special Council Meeting, city management is 
proceeding to obtain further information which will be presented at the December 20, 
2004 Council Meeting.  The general areas of concern pertain to financing, infrastructure 
donation by the Downtown Development Authority (DDA), and sale/advertising of 
alcoholic beverages at the proposed stadium. 
 
In addition, I have arranged a joint meeting between the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board, Planning Commission, DDA and the Civic Center Task Force for reason of 
obtaining their input on this proposed project.  This meeting will be held on Tuesday, 
December 7th at 7:00 PM in the Senior Dining Room at the Community Center.  Their 
comments/recommendations will also be advanced to Council for the December 20, 
2004 meeting. 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c:  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
  
JS/bt\my documents\agenda items\12.06.04 – Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility   
    

bittnera
Text Box
G-02a



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final October 13, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, October 13, 2004, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:07 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice 
 Robert Crawford 
 John M. Lamerato 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag 
 
ABSENT: William R. Need  
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 David A. Lambert 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 10 - 037 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the September 8, 2004 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Houghton, Lambert 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
PRIOR GOVERNMENTAL SERVICE 
 
The Board Received and filed the request of Renee Jelley. 
 
DECEMBER 31, 2003 ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 10 – 038 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the December 31, 2003 Actuarial Valuation be received and filed. 
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Houghton, Lambert 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01a



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final October 13, 2004 
 
 

 2

SUMMARY AND ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 10 – 039 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the board receive and file the December 31, 2003 Summary Annual 
Report to Members and distribute to City Council, Full – Time Employees and Retirees. 
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Houghton, Lambert 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 10 – 040 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Sell – Agere B, Agere A, Astrazeneca 
Purchase – 3,500 shares Wells Fargo; 2,500 shares Yum Brands; 2,125 shares Zebra 
Technologies; 4,000 shares Zimmer Holdings; 1,250 shares 3M; 2,000 shares Alliant 
Tech; 5,350 shares AIG; and 4,000 shares Am Gen.  
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Houghton, Lambert 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 10 - 041 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Crawford 
 
RESOLVED, That Thomas Houghton, David A. Lambert and William R. Need be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Houghton, Lambert 
 
 
The next meeting is November 10, 2004 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:11 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final October 13, 2004 
 
 

 3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2004\10-13-04 Minutes_Final.doc 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2004 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, October 14, 2004 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Lauren Andreoff, Student Representative 
   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-10-001 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory and Brian Griffen be excused. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-10-002 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of September 9 2004 be approved. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries. 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-10-003 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  3—Allen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS—None 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01b



 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
The discussion of the Information and Procedures for Exhibitors was postponed until the 
November meeting. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The Oakland County Genealogical Society has agreed to relocate their collection to the 
Oakland County Library.  They are arranging to move the collection before the end of 
the year. The new check-out station in Adult Services is a great success with the public.  
The new Outreach Services brochure has been completed and will be distributed to 
shut-ins via Meals on Wheels. 
 
Board Member comments.   
Zembrzuski commented that the public really likes being able to check out materials 
within the Adult Services and Youth Services departments. 
Wheeler suggested that we keep a supply of the new Outreach brochure available in 
our information rack.  

Andreoff commented on the added public value of the Youth Services checkout station. 
 
SLC Report—No report 
 
Friends of the Library. 
The Friends had their first meeting after the summer break and dealt with the new logo 
and getting letterhead printed.  Also discussed was setting money aside to begin a 
building fund.   
 
Gifts.    
One gift of $10.00 was received. 
 
Informational Items.   
October TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
18 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.  There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:10 P.M. 

 
 
 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



bittnera
Text Box
J-01c











DRAFT 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, October 25, 2004 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:31 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
 Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     
 

Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart  
Dhwani Mehta 
Bob Preston 

 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-26 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the August 24, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved with the correction that Marilyn Musick was in attendance on 8/24/04.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-27 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley   
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from September 8, 2004 are approved as submitted. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
MFEA Convention 
Attendees: Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Bill Hall, Marilyn Musick, Mike Gonda, Kessie 
Kaltsounis, Jim Cyrulewski, Bob Berk 
Thursday wear dark blue, Friday purple, Saturday black 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Advisory Committee offices November Election Slate Formation 

a. Chairman- Bob Berk 
b. Vice Chairman- Kessie Kaltsounis 
c. Treasurer- Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
d. Festival Chairman- Jim Cyrulewski 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01d



Election will be Nov. 23, 2004. 
 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-28 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Bill Hall   
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:35 pm.   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kessie Kaltsounis, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, October 25, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:36 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Leonard Bertin 
Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston  
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley 
Bill Hall 
Tom Kaszubski 
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Bob Berk 

Bob Broquet 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Jeff Stewart 
Dhwani Mehta 
Marilyn Musick 
Sandy Macknis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Bob Bishop 

City Staff Present:
Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick 

   Tonya Perry 
   Gerry Scherlinck 
   Cindy Stewart      
 
Minutes 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from August 24, 2004. 
 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Approved. 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from September 8, 2004. 
Moved by Cecile Dilley 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Appproved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
As of 9/30/04 
Revenue: $115,177.06 
Expenditures: $94,904.36 
 
Correspondence 
 
--October Meeting Notice 
--Thank you letters to Mayor, Council, City Manager for staff support, School Board, Henry 
Ford Medical Center staff 
 



Miscellaneous 
 
4 new people volunteered to help with 2005 
 
Event wrap up summaries turned in or due to chairman. 
 
New Business 
 
Add to agenda: 2. Corporate Sponsors, 3. Ride Vendor Specs, 4. Storage Trailer Followup 
 
Suggestions for 2005- Event Chairpersons Reports 
 
Shuttle Service: Kessie Kaltsounis 

• Increase # of shuttles from 20 to 25 for Saturday & Sunday 
• Volunteer drivers eat during parade and be ready to work when it’s over 
• New chairperson: Jeff Super and cochairs Phil Musick, Brian Troshynski 
• Shuttle service went very well 

 
Treasurer: Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 

• Any outstanding receipts turn into Cheryl ASAP 
 
Opening Ceremony: Tom Kaszubski 

• New chairperson for 2005: Tim McAvoy  
• Agree that we could use more flag stands on the stage 
• Problem: larger tent, but poles in the way- bad for video productions 

 
Parade: Tom Kaszubski 

• Suggestion to hold Parade on Saturday at 10 am so it does not interfere with Sunday 
Festival activities. Gerry Scherlinck suggests looking at route along Northfield 
Parkway, but not on Saturday, it would gridlock the City. 

• No stopping for judging areas – all groups told to perform all along the route. Judges 
will be spaced along the route. 

 
Magic Cauldron: Marilyn Musick 

• A success for first year 
• Several good suggestions- decorate tent with posters, balloons 
• Fire Department said hay bales are flammable/combustible and should not be in the 

tent. There is a spray that can treat hay bales. 
 
Vendors: Cele Dilley 

• Need shuttle drivers on Sunday to get booth vendors to their cars.  
• Control booth vendors better, they can’t hand out anything except from their booth. 
• Booth vendors- only have info facing the front of the booth 
• 84 under tent, 41 business, 43 community 
• Outside- 16 food, 7 business, 1 community 
• Talk about increasing vendor fees for 2005 

 



Info Booth: Bill Hall 
• More info/signage re: foods, exhibit, entertainment 
• Need more ribbon next year. Balloons ordered for 2005. 
• Move parking farther away from info booth-first row 

 
Mr. Troy: Bill Hall 

• Sign on stage (President Tuxedo) in better position for video, get sign posts to overlay 
signs depending on event. 

• DJ’s music not as good as 2003. 
 
PA Announcements: Dhwani Mehta 

• Good idea to get students to read over the script before doing the announcements. 
• Committee agreed Dhwani did a great job! Thanks! Also great job on distributing 

surveys. 
 
Demographics: Bob Preston 

• Survey – 828 surveys completed, 92 zip codes 
• 381 males, 526 females 
• All preliminary numbers, will go back and re-check 
• These numbers are good, exactly what the sponsors are looking for 

 
Day # Completed 
Thursday 20 
Friday 50 
Saturday 320 
Sunday 438 

 
Ages # 
10 & under 143 
11-19 226 
20-29 90 
30-39 182 
40-49 182 
50-59 81 
60+ 57 

 
Income # 
Under $25,000 66 
$25-50,000 90 
$50-75,000 134 
$75-100,000 128 
$100-150,000 110 
$150,000 + 88 
No Response 174 

 
 
 



Area of Interest # Area of Interest # 
Ability Expo 93 Mr. Troy 76 
Rides 516 Naturalization 36 
Booths 427 Opening 

Ceremonies 
46 

Cars 428 Parade 263 
Cutest Toddler 90 Photo Contest 127 
Entertainment 380 Pony Rides 129 
EhtniCity 269 Senior Activities 41 
Fireworks 233 Student Art 178 
Food 395 Parent/Kid 

Contest 
69 

EthniCity 
Entertainment 

217   

 
Student Assistance: Bob Preston  

• 69 hours from Bishop Foley 
• Improved over last year 
• Problems after 6 pm keeping volunteers. Address this next year. 
• Contact Athletic Director next year for support from team members 

 
EthniCity: JoAnn Preston 

• Saturday & Sunday schedule was a change but all groups liked it 
• Keep working with Troy School District re: Poster Contest. Include International 

Academy and Avondale School District. 
• Won’t be at Troy Daze 2005, Doris Schuchter will run EthniCity. 
• City of Troy Community Affairs will coordinate Naturalization Ceremony 
• Podium needs to be shorter, or a step for short people 

 
Ability Expo: Len Bertin 

• Unhappy vendors due to lack of people to Ability Expo Tent. Shuttle drivers took 
seniors straight from Beaumont Health Fair to cars, skipping Ability Expo. 

• Location of Ability Expo should be closer to Beaumont Health Fair. Jeff Stewart has 
ideas to expand Special Needs Adults on Thursday. If this happens it would help the 
Ability Expo. 

• Outstanding participation from vendors – but need to increase audience. Maybe 
Thursday night is not the best night for the event. 

 
Police: Gerry Scherlinck 

• Great working with everyone, from Festival to City Liaisons 
• Parade – think about a different route. Tough to keep entrances closed for so long, 

look at a change in traffic patterns. 
• Major events schedule was excellent- easy for Police to staff 

 
Fire: Bob Matlick 

• Hay bales – lots of comments from people who were told can’t put hay bales in tent 
but saw them in other tents. Flammable unless you treat them. 



• Water battle – block off more on north so we won’t get shuttles wet. Wish they could 
get more audience at event. Everything went well. 

• Booth tent – problem with size and the aisles were too narrow 
 
Operations: Bob Bishop, Mike Gonda 

• Everything went very well, layout outstanding, covered tent in the center was great. 
Tough letting cars in to load vendors to leave but ideal layout 

• Vendors have been happy with shuttles loading and unloading 
• DPW had a lot of signage and barricades out due to Ryder Cup. Did well though. Meet 

with Parks & Rec and DPW staff closer to event re: Festival needs. 
 
Operations: Jeff Biegler 

• Company providing shuttle carts might not be around in 2005. At MFEA Convention 
check for other vendors. Has not been any competition in the area. Check Arnold 
Amusements for any possible companies. 

 
Special Need Kids: Jeff Stewart 

• More kids this year over 2003, 700+ people fed 
• Unloading and loading buses very smooth 
• Problem areas – pizza was late, but confusion with times 11:15-11:30 am 
• 2 liter pop worked out. Need more chips. Ran out of pizza 

#1 Eliminate hot dogs and fries, serve only pizza 
#2 Meet with volunteers at 11 am before kids come in 
#3 Food runners go to tables, do not let teachers come up to food line 
#4 Great to have wrapped cookies donated by Troy Newcomers 

 
Special Need Adults: Jeff Stewart 

• Next year Thursday evening 6-9 pm nothing going on in Entertainment Tent 
• Idea for DJ, pizza, pop, dancing 
• Jeff spoke with Carla Vaughn and Steve Vinson re: pre-registration and charging $3 

fee 
• Give goody bags (tshirt, music items) 
• Parks and Rec may be able to provide transportation from Community Center or just 

have them dropped off at the Festival site. Carla and Jeff will do mailings.  
• Hire DJ or just have a volunteer play CDs.  
• Food- vouchers or just bring pizza and pop in the tent.  
• Name badge is ID to get on rides free for Special Needs Adults evening. 

 
Publicity/Corporate Sponsorship: Cindy Stewart 

• Working to produce video/DVD for potential sponsors.  
• Corporate Sponsor packages out by November 15 is goal.  
• Michigan Living Magazine highlight Magic Cauldron, Ability Expo, Special Needs for 

feature article. 
• Had a lot of info on website and had major press coverage. 

 
Petting Zoo – idea to have open at Special Needs Kids event. Excellent vendor, very 
accommodating. 



 
Jim Cyrulewski will compile all suggestions with response if doable or not. 
 
New Business 

A. Operations Manual Revision- possible to locate existing one? 
a. Goal is to hand out in April 

B. Corporate Sponsor Committee 
a. Identified 2004 sponsors, reevaluated levels 
b. Goal to get out packets by November 15, to all existing sponsors. Follow up 

with phone calls. In January- reach out to new sponsors. 
C. Ride Vendor Specs 

a. Our ride prices well under the market value. Based on that, need to add 
provisions for Special Needs Kids and Adults events. Will do new specs for 3 
year contract. 

D. Storage Trailer Update 
a. International Transmission Company has a storage trailer they want to donate. 

City has no location to store it. Jim Cyrulewski, Mike Gonda, Jeff Winiarski will 
inspect 10/28. If okay, Community Foundation of Troy will accept and the Troy 
School District will store for one year. 

E. Chairperson longer than 3 years will receive a Troy Daze jacket, congratulations! 
a. Jen Tabor, Len Bertin, Mike Gonda, Dan O’Brien, Jim Randels 

F. 2005 Wrap Up Dinner 
a. Mike Gonda- Book San Marino for October 2005 for wrap up dinner. 

 
 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Joann Preston 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 9:38 pm.   



FINAL 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, October 25, 2004 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:31 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
 Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     
 

Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart  
Dhwani Mehta 
Bob Preston 

 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-26 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the August 24, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved with the correction that Marilyn Musick was in attendance on 8/24/04.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-27 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley   
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from September 8, 2004 are approved as submitted. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
MFEA Convention 
Attendees: Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Bill Hall, Marilyn Musick, Mike Gonda, Kessie 
Kaltsounis, Jim Cyrulewski, Bob Berk 
Thursday wear dark blue, Friday purple, Saturday black 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Advisory Committee offices November Election Slate Formation 

a. Chairman- Bob Berk 
b. Vice Chairman- Kessie Kaltsounis 
c. Treasurer- Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
d. Festival Chairman- Jim Cyrulewski 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01e



Election will be Nov. 23, 2004. 
 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-28 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Bill Hall   
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:35 pm.   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kessie Kaltsounis, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, October 25, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:36 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Leonard Bertin 
Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston  
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley 
Bill Hall 
Tom Kaszubski 
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Bob Berk 

Bob Broquet 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Jeff Stewart 
Dhwani Mehta 
Marilyn Musick 
Sandy Macknis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Bob Bishop 

City Staff Present:
Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick 

   Tonya Perry 
   Gerry Scherlinck 
   Cindy Stewart      
 
Minutes 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from August 24, 2004. 
 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Approved. 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from September 8, 2004. 
Moved by Cecile Dilley 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Appproved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
As of 9/30/04 
Revenue: $115,177.06 
Expenditures: $94,904.36 
 
Correspondence 
 
--October Meeting Notice 
--Thank you letters to Mayor, Council, City Manager for staff support, School Board, Henry 
Ford Medical Center staff 
 



Miscellaneous 
 
4 new people volunteered to help with 2005 
 
Event wrap up summaries turned in or due to chairman. 
 
New Business 
 
Add to agenda: 2. Corporate Sponsors, 3. Ride Vendor Specs, 4. Storage Trailer Followup 
 
Suggestions for 2005- Event Chairpersons Reports 
 
Shuttle Service: Kessie Kaltsounis 

• Increase # of shuttles from 20 to 25 for Saturday & Sunday 
• Volunteer drivers eat during parade and be ready to work when it’s over 
• New chairperson: Jeff Super and cochairs Phil Musick, Brian Troshynski 
• Shuttle service went very well 

 
Treasurer: Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 

• Any outstanding receipts turn into Cheryl ASAP 
 
Opening Ceremony: Tom Kaszubski 

• New chairperson for 2005: Tim McAvoy  
• Agree that we could use more flag stands on the stage 
• Problem: larger tent, but poles in the way- bad for video productions 

 
Parade: Tom Kaszubski 

• Suggestion to hold Parade on Saturday at 10 am so it does not interfere with Sunday 
Festival activities. Gerry Scherlinck suggests looking at route along Northfield 
Parkway, but not on Saturday, it would gridlock the City. 

• No stopping for judging areas – all groups told to perform all along the route. Judges 
will be spaced along the route. 

 
Magic Cauldron: Marilyn Musick 

• A success for first year 
• Several good suggestions- decorate tent with posters, balloons 
• Fire Department said hay bales are flammable/combustible and should not be in the 

tent. There is a spray that can treat hay bales. 
 
Vendors: Cele Dilley 

• Need shuttle drivers on Sunday to get booth vendors to their cars.  
• Control booth vendors better, they can’t hand out anything except from their booth. 
• Booth vendors- only have info facing the front of the booth 
• 84 under tent, 41 business, 43 community 
• Outside- 16 food, 7 business, 1 community 
• Talk about increasing vendor fees for 2005 

 



Info Booth: Bill Hall 
• More info/signage re: foods, exhibit, entertainment 
• Need more ribbon next year. Balloons ordered for 2005. 
• Move parking farther away from info booth-first row 

 
Mr. Troy: Bill Hall 

• Sign on stage (President Tuxedo) in better position for video, get sign posts to overlay 
signs depending on event. 

• DJ’s music not as good as 2003. 
 
PA Announcements: Dhwani Mehta 

• Good idea to get students to read over the script before doing the announcements. 
• Committee agreed Dhwani did a great job! Thanks! Also great job on distributing 

surveys. 
 
Demographics: Bob Preston 

• Survey – 828 surveys completed, 92 zip codes 
• 381 males, 526 females 
• All preliminary numbers, will go back and re-check 
• These numbers are good, exactly what the sponsors are looking for 

 
Day # Completed 
Thursday 20 
Friday 50 
Saturday 320 
Sunday 438 

 
Ages # 
10 & under 143 
11-19 226 
20-29 90 
30-39 182 
40-49 182 
50-59 81 
60+ 57 

 
Income # 
Under $25,000 66 
$25-50,000 90 
$50-75,000 134 
$75-100,000 128 
$100-150,000 110 
$150,000 + 88 
No Response 174 

 
 
 



Area of Interest # Area of Interest # 
Ability Expo 93 Mr. Troy 76 
Rides 516 Naturalization 36 
Booths 427 Opening 

Ceremonies 
46 

Cars 428 Parade 263 
Cutest Toddler 90 Photo Contest 127 
Entertainment 380 Pony Rides 129 
EhtniCity 269 Senior Activities 41 
Fireworks 233 Student Art 178 
Food 395 Parent/Kid 

Contest 
69 

EthniCity 
Entertainment 

217   

 
Student Assistance: Bob Preston  

• 69 hours from Bishop Foley 
• Improved over last year 
• Problems after 6 pm keeping volunteers. Address this next year. 
• Contact Athletic Director next year for support from team members 

 
EthniCity: JoAnn Preston 

• Saturday & Sunday schedule was a change but all groups liked it 
• Keep working with Troy School District re: Poster Contest. Include International 

Academy and Avondale School District. 
• Won’t be at Troy Daze 2005, Doris Schuchter will run EthniCity. 
• City of Troy Community Affairs will coordinate Naturalization Ceremony 
• Podium needs to be shorter, or a step for short people 

 
Ability Expo: Len Bertin 

• Unhappy vendors due to lack of people to Ability Expo Tent. Shuttle drivers took 
seniors straight from Beaumont Health Fair to cars, skipping Ability Expo. 

• Location of Ability Expo should be closer to Beaumont Health Fair. Jeff Stewart has 
ideas to expand Special Needs Adults on Thursday. If this happens it would help the 
Ability Expo. 

• Outstanding participation from vendors – but need to increase audience. Maybe 
Thursday night is not the best night for the event. 

 
Police: Gerry Scherlinck 

• Great working with everyone, from Festival to City Liaisons 
• Parade – think about a different route. Tough to keep entrances closed for so long, 

look at a change in traffic patterns. 
• Major events schedule was excellent- easy for Police to staff 

 
Fire: Bob Matlick 

• Hay bales – lots of comments from people who were told can’t put hay bales in tent 
but saw them in other tents. Flammable unless you treat them. 



• Water battle – block off more on north so we won’t get shuttles wet. Wish they could 
get more audience at event. Everything went well. 

• Booth tent – problem with size and the aisles were too narrow 
 
Operations: Bob Bishop, Mike Gonda 

• Everything went very well, layout outstanding, covered tent in the center was great. 
Tough letting cars in to load vendors to leave but ideal layout 

• Vendors have been happy with shuttles loading and unloading 
• DPW had a lot of signage and barricades out due to Ryder Cup. Did well though. Meet 

with Parks & Rec and DPW staff closer to event re: Festival needs. 
 
Operations: Jeff Biegler 

• Company providing shuttle carts might not be around in 2005. At MFEA Convention 
check for other vendors. Has not been any competition in the area. Check Arnold 
Amusements for any possible companies. 

 
Special Need Kids: Jeff Stewart 

• More kids this year over 2003, 700+ people fed 
• Unloading and loading buses very smooth 
• Problem areas – pizza was late, but confusion with times 11:15-11:30 am 
• 2 liter pop worked out. Need more chips. Ran out of pizza 

#1 Eliminate hot dogs and fries, serve only pizza 
#2 Meet with volunteers at 11 am before kids come in 
#3 Food runners go to tables, do not let teachers come up to food line 
#4 Great to have wrapped cookies donated by Troy Newcomers 

 
Special Need Adults: Jeff Stewart 

• Next year Thursday evening 6-9 pm nothing going on in Entertainment Tent 
• Idea for DJ, pizza, pop, dancing 
• Jeff spoke with Carla Vaughn and Steve Vinson re: pre-registration and charging $3 

fee 
• Give goody bags (tshirt, music items) 
• Parks and Rec may be able to provide transportation from Community Center or just 

have them dropped off at the Festival site. Carla and Jeff will do mailings.  
• Hire DJ or just have a volunteer play CDs.  
• Food- vouchers or just bring pizza and pop in the tent.  
• Name badge is ID to get on rides free for Special Needs Adults evening. 

 
Publicity/Corporate Sponsorship: Cindy Stewart 

• Working to produce video/DVD for potential sponsors.  
• Corporate Sponsor packages out by November 15 is goal.  
• Michigan Living Magazine highlight Magic Cauldron, Ability Expo, Special Needs for 

feature article. 
• Had a lot of info on website and had major press coverage. 

 
Petting Zoo – idea to have open at Special Needs Kids event. Excellent vendor, very 
accommodating. 



 
Jim Cyrulewski will compile all suggestions with response if doable or not. 
 
New Business 

A. Operations Manual Revision- possible to locate existing one? 
a. Goal is to hand out in April 

B. Corporate Sponsor Committee 
a. Identified 2004 sponsors, reevaluated levels 
b. Goal to get out packets by November 15, to all existing sponsors. Follow up 

with phone calls. In January- reach out to new sponsors. 
C. Ride Vendor Specs 

a. Our ride prices well under the market value. Based on that, need to add 
provisions for Special Needs Kids and Adults events. Will do new specs for 3 
year contract. 

D. Storage Trailer Update 
a. International Transmission Company has a storage trailer they want to donate. 

City has no location to store it. Jim Cyrulewski, Mike Gonda, Jeff Winiarski will 
inspect 10/28. If okay, Community Foundation of Troy will accept and the Troy 
School District will store for one year. 

E. Chairperson longer than 3 years will receive a Troy Daze jacket, congratulations! 
a. Jen Tabor, Len Bertin, Mike Gonda, Dan O’Brien, Jim Randels 

F. 2005 Wrap Up Dinner 
a. Mike Gonda- Book San Marino for October 2005 for wrap up dinner. 

 
 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Joann Preston 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 9:38 pm.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 7:30 p.m. on October 26, 2004, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Mark J. Vleck 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 7:48 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Mark Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-10-117 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Vleck be excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent:  Strat, Vleck 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-10-118 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 5, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published.   

holmesba
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain, Schultz 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Chair Waller requested that the October 12, 2004 Regular Meeting minutes reflect 
under the Good of the Order that he and Mr. Strat requested the Planning Department 
to provide the list of garages and their locations prior to delivery of the meeting packet. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-10-119 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 12, 2004 Regular Meeting minutes as 
amended.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain, Khan 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals report will be placed on the November 2, 2004 
Special/Study Meeting agenda. 
 
 

5. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
The October 20, 2004 Downtown Development Authority meeting was cancelled.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller gave the following report.  
 
October 25, 2004 City Council Action Items 
 
• Big Beaver Corridor Study – City Management was authorized to proceed with 

the selection process and the City Planning Consultant to prepare the Request 
for Proposal (RFP).  Interviews will be conducted around Thanksgiving 2004.  
The selection committee includes David Eisenbacher (City Council), Dave 
Waller (Planning Commission), Alan Kiriluk (Downtown Development Authority), 
John Szerlag (City Manager), Brian Murphy (Assistant City Manager/Services), 
Doug Smith (Real Estate and Development Director), Mark Miller (Planning 
Director), and Richard Carlisle (City Planning Consultant).  

 
• Final Plat for Wyngate of Troy Subdivision, East Side of Coolidge Highway, North 

of Square Lake Road, Section 5  – Approved 
 
• Multi-Use Facility on Civic Center Site – City Management was authorized to 

further explore a multi-use facility on the Civic Center site; i.e., minor league 
baseball field. 

 
• Rezoning (Z 696), West Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake, Section 3 

– Approved.  Mr. Miller noted that the two lots north of the subject parcel were 
submitted for rezoning by the petitioner and will be incorporated in the future 
development. 

 
Planning Department Items 
 
• PUD 5, Maple Forest Crossing, east side of Rochester Road, south of South 

Boulevard – The proposal is in the very early conceptual phases.  The proposal 
includes retail, medium density residential, single family residential, and combined 
parking with Pettruzello’s banquet facility. 

 
• PUD 4, Platinum Parc, north side of Big Beaver, west of Crooks, between Alpine 

and McClure – Petitioner is moving forward with a more complete package.  
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and Neighborhood 
Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the City representatives who were present for discussion of the 
matter and informed those present of the presentation format that would be followed. 
 
Mr. Szerlag announced that the situation on Alpine resulted from a resident finding a 
loophole in the Zoning Ordinance that would allow a monster garage to be built.  City 
Council’s concern resulted in a study session with City staff and the Planning 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Consultant.  The recommendation of City Council was to have the Planning 
Commission find a way to plug the loopholes that currently exist in the ordinance and 
amend the ordinance to allow for better compatibility on attached and detached 
accessory structures.  Mr. Szerlag said regulation of size, use and compatibility was 
discussed at the study session, and that compatibility was defined as the conditional 
element of size, use, height, and setbacks, but not materials.  On behalf of City 
Council, Mr. Szerlag stressed the urgency to find a solution that would plug the 
loopholes in the ordinance and stop future construction of monster garages or 
accessory structures.  He explained that City staff is continuing its negotiations with 
the Alpine property owner to resolve the matter of that particular monster garage. 
 
Mr. Miller provided a slide presentation.  The presentation displayed 14 homes in 
the City that have existing garages with more square footage than the actual 
homes.   
 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:48 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Stimac said the garages displayed in the slide presentation are all attached 
garages, but acknowledged there are homes in the City with detached garages that 
exceed the ground floor area of the living space of the home.  Mr. Stimac reviewed 
various changes that were made in the Zoning Ordinance, and cited examples of 
related accessory structures.  He reported that cases before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals requesting to construct detached garages of significant size have been based 
on the City requirement to store commercial vehicles.  Mr. Stimac said that, in part, the 
construction of large garages is the result of residents complying with the ordinance 
that requires residents to store their commercial vehicles indoors. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked the number of parcels with attached and detached large 
garages that were constructed in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance requirement 
to store commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Stimac estimated 30 parcels, but noted that a study has not been done.  Mr. 
Stimac said the parameter of the 14 garages displayed in the slide presentation was 
that the square footage of the garage exceeds the square footage of the house, and 
that detached garages were not covered in the slide presentation.  Mr. Stimac said it is 
his opinion that many of the large garages in the City, both attached and detached, 
have been generated in part by the desire to house commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Strat asked how many of the garages have been built in the last 5 to 10 years. 
 
Mr. Stimac responded that approximately 20 out of the estimated 30 garages were 
built within the last 8 to 10 years.   
 
Mr. Carlisle distributed two informational items: (1) proposed definitions and ordinance 
language changes relating to outdoor parking and commercial vehicles in residential 
districts and a revised definition of a commercial vehicle; and (2) Truck Driver’s 
Guidebook.  Mr. Carlisle provided the material as a preface to his opinion that the 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

current regulations relating to parking of commercial vehicles have in part led to the 
concern of monster accessory structures.  He said, to some degree, the construction 
of extremely large buildings has resulted from the regulations placed on parking of 
commercial vehicles in residential areas.  Mr. Carlisle would ultimately like to see 
parking of commercial vehicles restricted in residential districts.  Mr. Carlisle said that if 
commercial parking is not addressed, the City is in essence doing only half the job as 
it addresses monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Carlisle highlighted his observations of the current Zoning Ordinance and 
reviewed his recommended revisions to the ordinance that were provided in his 
October 21, 2004 memorandum.  Mr. Carlisle suggested that material compatibility be 
addressed in the future.   
 
Specific items discussed were: 
• Definition of “incidental” 
• Material compatibility 
• Garage door height and size / definition of measurement 
• Size limitation on greenhouse 
• “Barn” designation in the ordinance 
• Ground floor living area 
• Definition of play structures; recreational structures 
• User-friendly Zoning Ordinance (readability, indexing, etc.) 
• Appeal process 
• City Council’s aspect 
 
Mr. Strat referenced his “revised” e-mail that was inadvertently not distributed to the 
Commission members prior to tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Strat said he is not in favor of a 
percentage of lot size as a consideration in the size of an accessory building; i.e., 
narrow lots.  He said the size of a garage door should be limited.  Mr. Strat suggested 
that an appeal process be in place to grant exceptions, and that consideration be 
given to Special Land Use approval that would require a Public Hearing.  He 
suggested that building elevations and identification of materials be requirements of 
the review process.  Mr. Strat said it is very difficult to legislate and enforce material 
compatibility. 
 
Mr. Schultz said enforcement of the current Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
commercial vehicles is most important.  He agrees that the garage door height should 
be limited.  Mr. Schultz said the material used for an accessory structure is a matter of 
preference and should not be dictated by the City.  Mr. Schultz said he would be in 
favor of limiting an attached accessory structure to 750 square feet, or ¾ of the ground 
floor living area of the house. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts would like the ordinance to address material compatibility.  She 
questioned if the suggested limitations on the garage door would be enough.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Littman questioned (1) the clarity of the phrase “clearly incidental” in Section 
04.20.01, (2) no size limitation on greenhouses, and (3) the meaning of ground floor 
living area. 
 
There was a brief discussion whether the ordinance should provide definitions of 
specific structures that are related to recreational hobbies; i.e., playhouses.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that play structures need to be specifically defined in the ordinance.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said there was discussion at the City Council level that residents should 
not be penalized from being able to have recreational types of structures.  Those 
types of structures are not used for storage, are not typically large in size and have a 
specific purpose as well as design. 
 
Chair Waller suggested the ordinance reflect some sort of indexing and referencing for 
a user-friendly ordinance. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the text in the Special Use ordinance has been reorganized and 
has not moved forward.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the main issue to solve is the problem of monster commercial 
garages.  He said the slide presentation tonight showed some garages that were 
compatible with the home and the land.  He said the heart of the whole issue and 
where the process should begin is with the definition of commercial vehicles.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said staff is asking for direction in the next two weeks, prior to the Public 
Hearing.  Mr. Chamberlain said the door height is important and it is necessary to 
make sure that the garage door disappears into the ceiling.  Mr. Chamberlain said that 
Special Land Use approval would not work.  He said it would become a crapshoot for 
anyone who wants to construct an accessory building because they would not know 
whether the City would approve it.  Mr. Chamberlain said the ordinance must be 
written with the appropriate text and size limitations, and appeals to any restrictions 
would go before the BZA for review and approval.  Mr. Chamberlain said the City 
should not get involved in building material compatibility because the building 
appearance is in the eyes of the beholder and this is not a Communist country.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said the concern with narrow lot size is not an issue, and noted that 
setbacks within the ordinance would resolve that concern.  Mr. Chamberlain said he 
agrees with the recommendations of Mr. Carlisle except that the garage door height 
should be addressed, and his preference would be that it be over 8 feet.   
 
Mr. Wright said he likes the commercial vehicle definition created by Mr. Carlisle.  He 
noted the definition was an item with which the Commission struggled in the late 
1980’s and early 1990’s. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Strat commended Mr. Carlisle’s recommendations.  He stated the garage door 
would not dictate the height of the door as far as internal clearance.  Mr. Strat again 
stressed that the matter should be considered by Special Land Use approval and that 
the BZA is not the appropriate appeal process.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked that there be a height limitation indicated for supplemental buildings.  
Mr. Stimac noted that it would not be difficult for a resident to prove a hardship to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals with respect to the garage door height limitation.   
 
Mr. Stimac acknowledged that stacked condominiums should be addressed, where 
the first floor of the building is primarily a garage.  He said consideration should be 
given to the definition of building versus multiple buildings and how the formula would 
apply to non single-family residential detached structures, such as carports.   
 
Mr. Szerlag suggested a tiered approach in addressing (1) monster accessory 
buildings, (2) commercial vehicles, and (3) material compatibility.  He stressed the 
immediate need to address the size of accessory structures and to enable the Building 
Department to not issue building permits for monster garages.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the exact proposed ordinance text amendment does not have 
to be published prior to the Public Hearing.  It is required to publish only a summary of 
the ordinance sections in which proposed revisions are being considered.  Mr. Miller 
reminded the Commission that the matter could be discussed further at the next study 
session.     
 
Council Member Robin Beltramini was present.  Ms. Beltramini commended Mr. 
Carlisle for a good job in summarizing the will of the City Council.  She said she 
appreciates the tiered approach suggested by Mr. Szerlag.  Ms. Beltramini said she 
surmised by tonight’s comments and her good notes that at least half of the members 
believe the concern of monster accessory structures is driven by the commercial 
vehicle issue, and that she agrees.  She said she heard a fair amount of consensus 
from the members with respect to the ordinance provisions.  Ms. Beltramini said she 
would prefer that the members brainstorm on the heart of the matter, and address the 
material compatibility at a later date.   
 
Council Member Jeanne Stine was present.  Ms. Stine said the crux of the matter is 
dependent on the need to hide commercial vehicles, and she was very pleased that 
Mr. Carlisle addressed that aspect with the City Council.  She asked for clarification on 
the definition of “incidental”, as cited in Section 40.55.01.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said “incidental” is defined as secondary; not primary.   
 
Ms. Stine asked if that would deal with size also.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said that is a very important point.  He said it is highly suspect when an 
“accessory structure” exceeds the principle structure by three or four times.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Ms. Stine referenced the accessory structure located on Windmill [from the slide 
presentation].  Ms. Stine said it is the size of the garage that is so disconcerting, not so 
much the materials.  She said the neighbors are not happy, and the purpose of that 
particular garage is to house commercial vehicles.  Ms. Stine said one of the initial 
purposes of the Alpine monster garage was to house recreational vehicles.  She 
suggested that a definition be created for “recreational vehicle”.   
 
Mr. Smith commented that there has been a lot of discussion on the three uses of 
accessory buildings, storage, recreation and vehicles.  He suggested that the uses be 
incorporated into the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Strat briefly addressed outdoor storage facilities with respect to housing 
commercial and recreational vehicles.   
 
Discussion followed with the approach to take on the matter. 
 
Ms. Beltramini said she believes City Council wants some definable effort on this issue 
on the part of the Planning Commission members prior to the City Council Public 
Hearing in November.  She said they would take “half a loaf” should that be all that is 
available.   
 
Ms. Stine said she is familiar with City Council objectives, attitude and concerns, and 
is appreciative of the City Manager’s suggested tiered approach.  Ms. Stine said the 
“whole loaf” might be more acceptable to City Council.  She said that commercial 
vehicles is a difficult matter to address at the table.   
 
Mr. Szerlag said he also sensed that from City Council, and thinks it would be 
reasonable to address commercial vehicles and material compatibility in 30 to 45 days 
after addressing the immediate concern of monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the definition of commercial vehicle is adequate and City 
Council should be given the “whole loaf”.   
 
Mr. Szerlag said City Management and the Legal Department would work together to 
move the matter forward.   
 
Revisions to the proposed amendments: 
• Height of garage door (consensus 8 feet, arrived from straw vote) 
• Height of garage (14 foot) 
• Limitation of 200 square feet on all supplemental accessory buildings 
• Add height limit to supplemental buildings 
• Address condominiums with respect to ground floor living area 
• Definition list to have specificity 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

It was determined that separate reports and separate proposed amendments would 
be prepared for accessory structures and commercial vehicles, and material 
compatibility would be addressed in the very near future.  
 
Chair Waller asked Mr. Carlisle if a chart could be created showing parameters of 
accessory buildings.   
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent addressed the definitions of 
“incidental” and “secondary”.  He suggested that the proposed ordinance language is 
clear and in simple terms.  Mr. Krent also addressed material compatibility and 
emphasized the importance of placing restrictions on construction materials with 
respect to property values of neighboring homes.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts addressed concern with personal information (i.e., office phone number) 
being given to the public. 
 
Mr. Miller assured Ms. Drake-Batts that personal information of any Commission member 
is not given out from the Planning Department.  He noted information kept in the Clerk’s 
office is considered public information.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she hopes to see the proposed ballpark facility on the Civic Center 
site move forward.   
 
Mr. Schultz said tonight’s session was a good one.  He said fewer items on a study 
session agenda provide more time to review that particular item, and he would hope to see 
future study session agenda items be limited.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the 2005 Planning Commission calendar. 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-10-120 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the meeting schedule of the Troy Planning Commission for the 
2005 calendar year is established as follows:  Regular Meetings will be held on the 
second Tuesday of each month, Special/Study Meetings will be held on the first and 
fourth Tuesday of each month, with the exceptions of July 5, September 6, 
November 22, and December 27.  All meetings are scheduled to begin at 7:30 p.m. 
local time.  This is a tentative schedule for the purpose of providing information for 
the City calendar and shall be officially adopted by this body in January 2005.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-10-121 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To cancel the November 23, 2004 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
Mr. Wright said tonight’s meeting was a very good session. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said he viewed the DVD’s of the two meetings he was not in attendance.  
Mr. Chamberlain referenced the October 12, 2004 Regular Meeting agenda item in which 
the petitioner requested site plan renewal for a proposed office development located on 
the north side of Big Beaver and west of John R in Section 23.  Mr. Chamberlain said he 
was glad that the Legal Department addressed the matter.  He said that a petitioner has 
the right to approach this body and request a renewal.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested regular circulation of pertinent Legal Department informational 
memoranda as a refresher for current members and information for new members.   
 
Chair Waller announced that the reports of the 2004 Michigan Society of Planning Annual 
Conference from staff and members would be moved to next week’s agenda.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed three items:  (1) Next week’s meeting is on Election Day.  He said 
there would be a lot of activity in City Hall that evening.  Off-site meeting locations were 
considered but complications exist.  (2) The November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting agenda is 
quite entailed and could make it for a late evening.  (3) Expense reports for Members Khan 
and Wright for the annual conference are outstanding.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:58 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\10-26-04 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   October 27, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on October 27, 2004 at 7:00 PM at City 
Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  The meeting was called 
to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Juliana D’Amico (arrived 7:09 P.M.) 
Min Chong  
Rishi Joshi 
Jessica Kraft 
Monika Raj 
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale 
YuJing Wang 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Emily Burns 
Catherine Herzog (excused) 
Maniesh Joshi (excused) 
Andrew Kalinowski (excused) 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call: All present 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2004-10-019 
 Moved by Chong 
 Seconded by Wang 
 RESOLVED, That the minutes of 9/22/04 be approved. 
 Yes: All - 8  
 No: None  
           Absent 5 – Burns, D’Amico, Herzog, Joshi, Kalinowski     
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. Attendance Report: Noted and Filed 
4. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 

 Resolution # TY-2004-10-020 
 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by D’Amico 

RESOLVED, That members Herzog, Johsi, and Kalinowski are excused. 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Report on Visit to Farmington Youth Council 

Observations: 
Smaller, 8 members 
Pizza and pop at every meeting 
More staff present; 3 staff members present 
Trying to start a web site 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01g



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   October 27, 2004 
 
 

 2

Liaison with businesses to find job opportunities for youth 
“Meet the Mayor” Night in November 
Host parties (via Parks and Recreation)/”Battle of the Bands” 
 
TYC is interested in visiting other Youth Councils; Fitzpatrick to provide more meeting dates 
and locations 
TYC would like to “Meet the Mayor” at one of their meetings, of if the mayor is not available a 
council members.  Fitzpatrick to look into this. 

 
6. Brainstorm: Ways for Troy Community Coalition to Promote Spring Break Event to 

Students; how can TYC help 
 Announcements on school PA systems 
 Distribute flyers 
 Put “crash car” on display where kids will see it 
 Target SADD groups 
 Distribute ribbons for kids to wear 
 A flyer with TYC endorsement? 

 
7.  City Event: Tree Lighting; Tuesday 12/7 @ 7:00 PM 
 “Toys for Tots” Drop Off Point: The TYC will help promote this event; Fitzpatrick to look into 

encouraging students to donate toys – a school drop off point. 
 
8. Youth Council Comments 

 There is an interest in attending Troy Daze Committee meetings: Sasha, Min, 
Jessica, Manessa, Nicole; Fitzpatrick to email meeting dates 

 Fitzpatrick inquired as to whether there was an interesting in having TYC Founder 
Lusi Fang (now a junior at Harvard and former Student Member of the Planning 
Commission Jordan Keolian speak to the TYC about their college experiences 
relative to their Troy local government experiences.) 

 
9. Miscellaneous Announcements:  

 Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED Nov 17th 7:00 P.M. 
     @ the Community Center 

 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Rishi Joshi, Co-chair 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 7:30 p.m. on November 2, 2004, in the Conference Room of the Troy City 
Library. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark. J. Vleck (arrived 7:32 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Mark Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
Howard Wu, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-122 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Littman be excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Absent:  Drake-Batts, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat reported on the October 19, 2004 BZA meeting.   

holmesba
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

St. Augustine Lutheran Church, 5475 Livernois 
The BZA granted a variance for a one year renewal of relief of the 4’6” high masonry 
wall required along the south and west sides.   
 
3015 Crooks Road 
The BZA granted the petitioner’s request to withdraw the variance request.   
 
D’Anna-Latter, LLC, 400 E. Big Beaver 
The BZA granted relief to maintain the existing 4’6” high concrete screen wall located 
on the east and south sides.   
 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:32 p.m.] 
 
 

4. MICHIGAN SOCIETY OF PLANNING ANNUAL CONFERENCE 2004  
 
Item was postponed to the December 7, 2004 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that a member of City Council has requested reconsideration of 
City Council’s resolution authorizing City Management to move forward with the Big 
Beaver Road Corridor Study.  The requested reconsideration is related to citizen input 
to the RFP process and will be considered at the November 8, 2004 City Council 
meeting. 
 
Chair Waller said the RFP Committee met this past week.  The meeting was an 
overall informational meeting about what has happened to date.  Chair Waller said 
there was a lot of conversation about the need for citizen input throughout the entire 
RFP process. 
 
 
[Ms. Drake-Batts arrived at 7:36 p.m.] 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 326) – Square Lake Marathon 
Station, Southwest corner of Livernois and Square Lake (5991 Livernois), Section 9 – 
H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a review of the Special Use Request and the revised site plan.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that the revised site plan strikes a balance between safety, 
aesthetics and economic viability and is a significant improvement.  Mr. Savidant said 
final consideration of the Site Plan and Special Use Request is on the November 9, 
2004 Regular Meeting agenda.  He noted the petitioner would be required to go before 
the Board of Zoning Appeals for several variances. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller said the Special Use and Site Plan Approvals would be contingent upon the 
petitioner receiving variances on several outstanding items.   
 
There was discussion on the proposed 30-inch screen wall with respect to safety, 
visual obstruction, material, and sidewalk clearance.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if there are any current cross access easements to the 
property to the west.   
 
Mr. Miller said there are no cross access easements.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain requested that a note be placed in the file to assure that any cross 
access easements to the west match the subject property and are legally filed, should 
the property to the west be developed.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned which frontage -- Livernois or Square Lake -- is used to 
determine the canopy setbacks.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that both frontages were used in the setback determinations.   
 
There was discussion on the number of required variances from the BZA and 
clarification on the variances received. 
 
Mr. Strat pointed out discrepancies on the site plan with respect to the variances 
received and the setbacks applied.  Mr. Strat also pointed out that the floor plan of the 
building is not to scale to the actual site plan.  Mr. Strat questioned the parking 
calculations with respect to the snack bar.  He expressed concern with the parking 
requirements, the traffic circulation, retention and the proposed screen wall.   
 
Mr. Miller commented that the evolution of this particular site plan might have resulted 
in the site plan discrepancies.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated that the parking spaces for the snack bar were calculated for retail 
and a restaurant without seating. 
 
Mr. Miller said the parking calculations were determined with respect to the number of 
gas pumps and the retail use. 
 
Mr. Miller further clarified that the Commission has the discretion to allow a wall that 
has masonry or similar material in lieu of the 10-foot landscaping strip, but the 
Commission cannot waive the wall.  He reported that the fence as proposed does not 
meet the Zoning Ordinance standards.  Mr. Miller noted that this site is so tight that it 
becomes a balancing act between the number of pumps, the size of the building, 
parking and landscaping.  Mr. Miller confirmed that the Commission could make a 
recommendation to the BZA with respect to the wall or approve the site plan 
contingent on the wall.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

The petitioner, Mike Elias of 5991 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Elias said it 
was anticipated that the wrought iron fence would make for a good appearance and 
blend in with the makeup of the corner.  Mr. Elias is amenable to suggestions and 
recommendations on the screen wall.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-123 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Public Hearing be continued to the November 9, 2004 
Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent:  Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and Neighborhood 
Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller reported that extensive meetings have been held wherein the Planning 
Department and Building Department reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendments as revised by the Planning Commission at its last meeting.  Mr. Miller 
distributed the most current revisions.  He noted that the Planning Consultant, Richard 
Carlisle, has reviewed the revisions and said the changes are appropriate.  Mr. Miller 
reported that Mr. Carlisle was not able to attend tonight’s meeting due to a conflict in 
his calendar.  Mr. Miller reported that the proposed language has not been reviewed 
by the City Attorney’s Office for legalities or format.   
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that three separate resolutions are being prepared so that the 
resolutions can be considered independently.  The three resolutions relate to (1) 
accessory building provisions; (2) commercial vehicle definitions; and (3) the 
commercial vehicle appeal process.   
 
Chair Waller asked around the table whether the members would like to consider 
submitting commercial vehicles to City Council as part of their review on accessory 
buildings and neighborhood compatibility. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to consider all three items.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the publication of the Public Hearing notice for the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.  The Attorney’s Office will provide an 
opinion on the legality of the notice prior to the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Discussion followed on specific sections of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
Section 04.20.32 
It was determined that trailers should be defined.   
 
Section 40.65.02 
Mr. Stimac explained the revision cleans up a long-standing inconsistency in the 
section.  Mr. Stimac noted that the revision has no impact on the proposed 
amendments relating to accessory structures.   
 
The typographical error in the third line will be corrected; i.e., change the word “of” to 
“or”.  
 
Section 40.66.00 
There was discussion on: 
• Gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) 
• Lettering, graphics, advertising on vehicles 
• Dual use of vehicles (commercial and personal) 
• Limitation on the number of vehicles 
• Household occupancy; i.e., more than one family member in same commercial 

business 
• Indoor and outdoor parking and storage 
• Home occupation ordinance and enforcement 
 

[There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons.] 
 
Proposed revision.  Outdoor parking of more than one commercial vehicle with the 
gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of less than 10,000 pounds or the indoor or 
outdoor parking of any commercial vehicle with the gross vehicle weight rating 
(GVWR) above 10,001 pounds shall be prohibited. 
 
Sections 43.74.00, 43.74.01, 43.74.02 
There was discussion on: 
• Time period of appeals 
• Tracking / updating of VIN numbers 
• Administration approval 
• Fee for appeals and renewals 

 
Proposed revision:  The BZA may grant appeals for an initial period not to exceed two 
years, and may thereafter extend such actions for a period up to 3 years.   
 
04.20.01, 04.20.02 Definitions 
Proposed revision:  Include public parking garages in definitions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Section 40.56.01 
There was discussion on: 
• Building height limitation 
• Ground floor living area formula; i.e., quad, tri-level, 3-car garage 
• Footprint language 
• Door height limitation 
• Limitations on number of detached accessory buildings 
 

[There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons.] 
 
Section 40.56.02 
There was discussion on: 
• Footprint language relating to combined ground floor area 
 
Section 40.56.03 
There was discussion on: 
• Limitations on number of detached accessory supplemental buildings 
• Locations of detached accessory supplemental buildings  
• Carports, sheds 
 
Proposed revisions:  
(1)  Reword Section 40.56.03 (C) with respect to setbacks 
(2)  Change limitation of detached accessory supplement buildings to 3 
 
Section 40.57.06 
There was discussion on: 
• Variance requirements for barns and greenhouses 
 
 

8. REVIEW OF NOVEMBER 9, 2004 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Chamberlain requested that the order of agenda items be rearranged so that the 
Public Hearing items are scheduled at the end of the meeting.   
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent said he lives three doors 
north and across the street from the monster garage at 3129 Alpine.  Mr. Krent 
distributed two documents.  One document provided guidelines to aesthetics.  The 
second document related to suggestions for revisions to the Zoning Ordinance with 
regards to residential accessory buildings.  Mr. Krent addressed the following with 
respect to size, use and compatibility:  (1) Length of structures along a shared 
property line; (2) Maximum ground covering area of attached garages; (3) Home 
business; (4) Intent of compatibility; (5) Preventing industrial looking buildings in 
residential districts.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Vleck said he likes the idea of the correlation of the square footage of the house to 
the attached accessory structure and using similar type of materials. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Mr. Strat brought to the attention of the members that a seminar on sustainable stormwater 
management is being held at the Troy Marriott Hotel on November 16, 2004.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented on the minor league baseball stadium that is under discussion by 
the City Council.   
 
Several members commented on traffic roundabouts and the roundabout simulation 
provided via email by the Planning Department. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:24 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\11-02-04 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



holmesba
Text Box
J-01i















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice 
Chair Chamberlain at 7:31 p.m. on November 9, 2004, in the Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain David T. Waller 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-124 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Waller is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain requested that the October 26, 2004 Special/Study Meeting 
minutes reflect the following change.   
 

Page 8, the second bullet under “Revisions to the proposed amendments” at the 
bottom of the page, change the bullet to read “Height of garage (14 foot)” 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-11-125 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 26, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 326) – Square Lake Marathon 

Station, Southwest corner of Livernois and Square Lake (5991 Livernois), Section 9 – 
H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain announced the petitioner requested that this item be 
postponed to the Regular Meeting in December. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-126 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval request for the Square Lake Marathon 
Station, located on the southwest corner of Square Lake Road and Livernois Road, 
Section 9, within the H-S Zoning District, be tabled, at the request of the petitioner, to 
the December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 843-A) – Marshall Music Company and Retail Building, 

East side of Rochester Road, South of Wattles, Section 23 – B-3 (General 
Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Marshall Music retail building.  He announced that a revised site plan and 
an accompanying cover letter were distributed to the members prior to the meeting.  
Mr. Savidant explained that the original site plan showed a total building square 
footage of 11,475.  Mr. Savidant said that an additional 4,400 square feet was 
factored in for the building’s mezzanine/loft area, bringing the total square footage 
to 15,875.  Therefore, the required number of off-street parking spaces was revised 
to 69, and the site plan exceeds the requirement by 16 parking spaces.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that the petitioner and the property owner to the north have 
agreed to remove both existing entry drives to be replaced by a shared entry drive.  
This will eliminate the sub-standard drive to the north, reduce the number of curb 
cuts and reduce turning conflicts at this location.  The entry drive improvements will 
be the responsibility of the petitioner, to be designed and completed at his expense.  
The property owner to the north will be granted an easement to use the shared 
entry drive.  Mr. Savidant reported that the property owner has indicated his 
willingness to replace the entry drive with a 5-foot sidewalk as well as provide 
landscaping to improve the look to the property to the north.  Mr. Savidant 
commended the petitioner and property owner to the north for getting together to 
make a nicer and safer entry area.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if there are three cross access easements:  (1) at the rear of the 
building immediately to the north; (2) at the south edge of the property; and (3) at 
the far north edge of the property.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that is correct.   
 
Mr. Schultz echoed the Planning Department’s desire for additional landscaping on 
the property.  He said the site plan is an excellent one, and that he would love to do 
business with other petitioners like this on a regular basis.   
 
The petitioner, Dan Ludwig of Ludwig Architects, 127 S. Main, Plymouth, was 
present.  Mr. Ludwig thanked Messrs. Savidant and Figlan for an excellent job in 
guiding them through the Site Plan Approval process; and thanked the City’s Traffic 
Engineer for his assistance with respect to the shared cross access agreement with 
the property owner to the north.  Mr. Ludwig provided a brief history of the Marshall 
Music Company business.  He noted the focus of the new facility would be on sales 
and service, with an emphasis on service to local schools.  Mr. Ludwig said the 
building would be replaced with a building of a much grander scale and more 
appropriate to Marshall Music.  Mr. Ludwig addressed their plans for landscaping.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck asked the petitioner if consideration was given to land banking the excess 
parking spaces.   
 
Mr. Ludwig said consideration was given to land banking.  He stated that Marshall 
Music is optimistic about the new facility’s success, and it is estimated that the 
facility will be operational by the fall of 2005.  Marshall Music would prefer to install 
the number of parking spaces per the site plan instead of making accommodations 
in the future should there be a shortage.  Mr. Ludwig said Marshall Music believes 
the replacement of new trees and landscaped islands is a more appropriate 
scenario and a better fit for the parcel.  
 
Mr. Strat said the site plan was one of the finest drawings and presentations before 
the Commission.  He expressed appreciation on behalf of the administration and 
staff.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-127 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval as requested for Marshall Music 
Company and Retail Building, located on the east side of Rochester Road and south 
of Wattles Road, located in Section 23, within the B-3 zoning district, is hereby 
granted.   
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned what mechanism would be in place to insure that there is a 
cross access easement provided for the property to the north.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that there is an existing cross access easement to and from the 
north, but not to the width that is needed to implement a joint access.  Mr. Miller 
stated it is required that the appropriate documents are prepared and reviewed by 
the City prior to receiving Final Site Plan Approval.  He said the Planning 
Department would insure that the proper steps are in place.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

6. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 910-A) – Dr. Sklar Medical Office Building, North side of 
Maple, between Kirkton and Eastport, Section 27 – O-1 (Office Low Rise) District 
 
Mr. Savidant distributed the relevant building elevations, landscaping plans, and 
preliminary grading plans to the members.  He apologized that the material was not 
inclusive with the meeting packets.   
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed medical office building.  He reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted subject to the following 
conditions:   
 
1. Provide deceleration lane on Maple Road as per City of Troy Traffic Engineer. 
2. Provide a landscape island abutting parking spaces 13 and 18 to the east to 

protect sidewalk users from vehicles using the Maple Road entry drive.  Provide 
a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk within this island.  

3. Relocate fire hydrant from the west side of the building to the south side of the 
Eastport entry drive, as per Troy Fire Department. 

4. Reduce the width of the cross access easement with the property to the east by 
adding a landscaped island on the south side of the shaded easement area.  
This will define the cross access easement, improve safety for easement users, 
and protect cars parked in parking space 24. 

 
Mr. Savidant confirmed the Fire Department’s review indicated there is appropriate 
coverage on the west side of the building, but it is recommended to place a fire 
hydrant at the southeast side of the building. 
 
Messrs. Strat and Khan expressed their concerns on the recommendation that a 
deceleration lane be provided on Maple Road with respect to available access and 
driveway interference.   
 
Mr. Savidant said a deceleration lane is the recommendation of the City Traffic 
Engineer.  He indicated he would advise the City Traffic Engineer of the 
Commission’s concerns with a deceleration lane.   
 
It was noted and discussed that there were differences in the site plan submission 
as relates to the landscape plan and preliminary grading plans.   
 
Mr. Miller said it appears that revisions were made only to the site plan drawings as 
the site plan evolved in the review process.  He noted that all the plans should 
match.  Mr. Miller cited the requirements of Site Plan Approval process as relates to 
the site plan and landscape plan.   
 
Mr. Motzny stated the recent amendment to Site Plan Approval process says the 
Parks and Recreation Department shall review and approve the landscape plan 
prior to site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

There was discussion with respect to the storm water retention located on the 
parking lot surface.  Concerns were expressed that visitors to the building would be 
wading through 6 inches of water to get into the building. 
 
The petitioner, Tom Moss of 1893 Birchwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Moss 
said it was understood that the project was on the right road to receiving preliminary 
site plan approval.  He questioned the Planning Department’s interpretation on the 
second condition to provide a landscape island and 5-foot sidewalk near parking 
spaces 13 and 18.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the City requires a concrete sidewalk to delineate safe walking 
areas from the parking areas.  He indicated that it is adequate to provide striping 
only for the traveled portion of the parking area.  Mr. Savidant explained that the 
intent of the City is to provide a safe haven, or island, for pedestrian traffic.  He said 
it would be more appropriate to create a larger island with a sidewalk going through 
the middle.   
 
Mr. Moss said he understood that the sidewalk would be curbed along parking 
spaces 13 and 18, and the development would not lose those two spaces for 
parking.  Mr. Moss said he would work with the appropriate City departments to 
comply with the conditions cited by the Planning Department.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked the petitioner to address the proposed storm water 
retention.   
 
John DeBruyne of SDA Architects, 2201 Twelve Mile Road, Warren, was present.  
Mr. DeBruyne said the storm water retention would occur only in a limited area 
around the catch basins, and that there would not be 6 inches of water across the 
whole parking lot.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said he would not vote for approval of the site plan should 
there be any storm water retention on the parking lot surface. 
 
Mr. Strat commented that the catch basin in the center of the largest part of the 
parking area would be a bad location to collect storm water.  He noted that 6 inches 
of water is very near the underside of a car door.  Mr. Strat said that many 
municipalities do not allow this type of storm water retention.  He recommended 
reconsideration of the matter by the Engineering Department.   
 
Mr. Wright suggested moving the sidewalk from Maple Road to the west side of the 
parking lot so that pedestrian traffic would not have to cross any driveways.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the disposal of medical waste. 
 
Mr. DeBruyne replied that it is an ophthalmologist office and there would be no 
medical waste.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Moss expressed willingness to work with the Planning and Engineering 
Departments to resolve the concerns of the members, and indicated that time is of 
the essence in receiving preliminary site plan approval on the project.  He asked the 
members to consider granting site plan approval subject to the outstanding 
concerns.   
 
It was the consensus of the members that it would be most appropriate to table the 
matter so the petitioner could address the (1) submission of corresponding plans; 
(2) approval of the landscape plan by the Parks and Recreation Department; (3) 
storm water retention; (4) deceleration lane; and (5) landscape island and sidewalk 
from Maple Road. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-128 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Dr. Sklar 
Medical Office Building, located on the north side of Maple Road, between Kirkton 
and Eastport, located in section 27, within the O-1 zoning district, be tabled to the 
December 7, 2004 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-B) – Existing Clark Station, 
Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington, Section 23 – From B-1 
(Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief history of the rezoning request and reviewed the 
Planning Department’s recommendation to approve the rezoning application as 
submitted.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that one item of public input was distributed to the members 
prior to the meeting.   
 
The petitioner, John DeBruyne of SDA Architects, 2201 Twelve Mile Road, Warren, 
was present.   
 
The owner, Anddraos Kattouah of 3400 Rochester Road, Troy, was also present.  
Mr. Kattouah said he would like to expand the size of the retail space that is 
presently only 200 square feet.  Mr. Kattouah said the service station was built in 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

1966 and is like a “hole in the wall” in comparison to the surrounding development.  
He said the rezoning approval would allow him the opportunity to enhance the 
appearance and provide more services to the surrounding people.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked the owner if he is aware of the 75-foot setback requirement to the 
abutting residential property, should the rezoning request be approved.  
 
Mr. Kattouah said a variance must be granted to meet the 75-foot setback 
requirement.  He said the property is 140 feet x 150 feet.  Mr. Kattouah said the 
tanks and canopy would not be moved.  Mr. Kattouah said he is trying to find a 
solution not only for his benefit but also for the benefit of serving the community.  He 
said there are no nearby convenience stores for residents to buy milk, bread, etc.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Dudek of 1071 Winthrop, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dudek is an adjacent 
property owner to the Clark service station.  He submitted the protest petition on 
August 10, 2004, and attended the September City Council meeting in which the 
matter was referred back to the Planning Commission.  Mr. Dudek asked the status 
of the request by City Council to look into the environmental concerns associated 
with the gas station.  He said there was a leak and contamination within the last 
year.  Mr. Dudek said there are several permanent monitoring wells throughout the 
property, and a receiving well that is located 5 to 10 feet from his property.  Mr. 
Dudek said the gas station has been going strong for 38 years and it will be there 
for the next 38 years, contrary to the owner’s claim that the business will falter 
should there be no expansion.  Mr. Dudek cited several places in the area to shop 
for everyday groceries.  Mr. Dudek said he has had numerous problems with the 
Clark gas station and believes the expansion would create more problems.  Mr. 
Dudek said there is only one direction that the owner can go with the expansion, 
and that is closer to his property and the other two residential properties. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said the environmental concerns should be addressed with 
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ).  Vice Chair 
Chamberlain explained the rezoning procedure that the service station must follow 
in order to make improvements on the property.  He further explained the Site Plan 
Approval process and the Board of Zoning Appeals process should variances be 
required.  Vice Chair Chamberlain cited the criteria that the Commission considers 
in its approval of rezoning requests.  He said the future improvement to the site 
could be a plus for the neighbors on the east side of Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Dudek said he is the neighbor on the east side of Rochester Road and he does 
not believe the proposed expansion would benefit him or his neighbors.  Mr. Dudek 
further expressed concerns with potential cut-through traffic for drivers seeking to 
avoid the Big Beaver and Rochester Road intersection.  Mr. Dudek personally 
thanked Members Wright and Chamberlain for their attention during his 
presentation.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Roy Gantt of Atlas Oil Company, 7731 Gary, Westland, was present.  Mr. Gantt 
addressed the environmental issues associated with the service station recently 
purchased from Atlas Oil Company.  Mr. Gantt reported that Phase 1 and Phase 2 
tests were performed on the site.  He said there is historical contamination but it has 
been remediated.  Mr. Gantt said monitoring wells are on-site and no contamination 
is migrating off-site.  Mr. Gantt said it is the owner’s responsibility to meet the 
MDEQ requirements and forward reports to Atlas Oil Company.  Mr. Gantt reported 
that the service station is in compliance and meets environmental objectives. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked if the tanks and lines on the subject property meet 
Federal guidelines.   
 
Mr. Gantt responded that the tanks and lines are not the latest, but they have been 
upgraded to the current State of Michigan standards.  He said they are inspected on 
a regular basis.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller said the City Manager committed to City Council that (1) research would 
be done on contamination at this site; (2) the resident petition would be provided to 
the Planning Commission; and (3) the notice of Public Hearing would be mailed to 
each resident who signed the petition.  Mr. Miller confirmed that the Planning 
Department has met all three commitments.  Mr. Miller reported the Planning 
Department’s resources on contamination is limited to the MDEQ’s website, and 
provided information obtained from the Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) 
list.  
 
Mr. Khan explained that there is no site plan to review because the matter being 
considered tonight is only the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Khan further explained that 
the Commission has no authority on environmental contamination and it cannot 
regulate nor enforce any environmental issues.  
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-129 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, within Section 23, being 21,000 square feet 
in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 698) – Proposed Condominium 
Development, South side of South Blvd., West of Rochester Road, Section 3 – 
From R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Ted Berlinghof of Architects International, 40 Hague, Detroit, was 
present.   
 
The property owner, Frank Ayar of 6924 Cottonwood Knoll, West Bloomfield, was 
also present. 
 
Mr. Berlinghof provided a brief description of the proposed condominium project.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-130 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the south side of South 
Boulevard, west of Rochester Road, within Section 3, being 2.31 acres in size, be 
granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 323) – Existing Clark Station, 

Northeast corner of Maple and John R (1610 John R), Section 25 – H-S (Highway 
Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to approve the Special Use Request and Site Plan as submitted subject 
to two conditions:  (1) provide deceleration lanes for both entry drives; and (2) 
provide 30-inch screen wall along the west and south property lines.  Mr. Miller 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

confirmed that the request was submitted prior to the requirement of an approved 
landscape plan at site plan approval.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain expressed concerns with the condition to provide 
deceleration lanes on John R.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked for clarification on site access by gasoline tankers.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 S. 
Telegraph, Dearborn Heights, City, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski stated that the 30-
foot wide driveways provide plenty of access for gasoline tankers.  Mr. Kozlowski 
briefly addressed the site plan improvements since the Commission last reviewed 
the site plan and after receiving variances from the BZA; i.e., reduction in the 
building size and the number of gasoline dispensers, green buffer between curb, 
sidewalk and property line.  Mr. Kozlowski said the improvements were an effort to 
make the site safer, more maneuverable, and better in appearance.  Mr. Kozlowski 
addressed the deceleration lanes on John R.  He explained that the Planning 
Department wanted to make sure it was agreeable that deceleration lanes would be 
provided should the Engineering Department make that requirement.  He said the 
Engineering Department has not made a specific request for the deceleration lanes.  
Mr. Kozlowski said he shares the concerns of Mr. Chamberlain that the deceleration 
lanes are not applicable in this case.     
 
Mr. Strat questioned if there is a cross access easement to the property to the 
north.   
 
Mr. Kozlowski replied that a cross access easement is proposed for the neighbor to 
the north, but it is not known whether the property owner to the north is willing to 
make it a reciprocal cross access easement.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief explanation on the cross access easement agreement 
and said it would be recorded at the County level as a private easement.   
 
Mr. Littman asked for clarification on the condition to provide deceleration lanes on 
John R.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that the City Traffic Engineer reserves his determination 
whether deceleration lanes are required until final engineering review has taken 
place.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain recommended that deceleration lanes not be required at 
the site.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-11-131 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 23.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the Clark Station, 
located on the northeast corner of Maple and John R Roads, Section 25, within the 
H-S Zoning District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That a 30-inch screen wall be placed along the western and southern 

property boundaries, as shown on the site plan.  
 
2. That it is recommended deceleration lanes for both Maple and John R as 

recommended by the City of Troy Traffic Engineer are not helpful or practical. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-179) – Alger Street 
between Birchwood and Vermont, approximately 260 feet, abutting Lots 409, 410, 
433 and 434, John R Garden Subdivision, North of Birchwood, West of John R, 
Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Alger Street vacation.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the request with the conditions that (1) the house 
at 1767 Alger Street be demolished prior to final vacation; and (2) that the City 
retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger street right-of-way for the purpose of 
establishing a 60-foot right of way on Birchwood.   
 
The petitioners, Tom Moss of 1893 Birchwood, Troy, and Shirley Coleman of 2089 
Burdic, Troy, were present.   
 
Mr. Moss said he is the owner of the property located immediately to the east of the 
subject vacation and the Coleman’s are owners of the property immediately to the 
west.  Mr. Moss said the house at 1767 Alger Street is scheduled to be demolished 
next Monday.  He explained the home was recently used by the Troy Police 
Department for SWAT team drills.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-132 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for the Alger Street right-of-
way, located within the John R Gardens Subdivision, abutting lots 409, 410, 433 and 
434, being approximately 260 feet in length and 50 feet in width, in Section 26, be 
approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the structure at 1767 Alger shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
 
2. That the City shall retain the southern 5 feet of Alger Street right-of-way for 

purposes of establishing a 60 foot right-of -way on Birchwood. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the members received correspondence from the Assistant 
City Attorney with respect to the legality of dividing this particular proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment into three text amendments, and further that the legal 
requirements of the Public Hearing notices were met.   
 
Mr. Miller reported City Management in recent meetings made a determination to 
recommend to City Council that commercial vehicles be dealt with independent of 
large accessory structures.  He noted that the Planning Commission members have 
the ability and authority this evening to make recommendations on any one of the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.   
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
that relates specifically to accessory building definitions and provisions.  He 
reviewed the revisions that were made after the November 2, 2004 Planning 
Commission Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Miller recommended an additional change 
to Section 40.56.03(C).  He said the intent and clarity of the section would be better 
if it read:  “An accessory supplemental building shall not be allowed in a front yard.”  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Miller also noted that the number of accessory supplemental buildings was 
changed from 2 to 3.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said he would like to see all three proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments considered tonight and recommendations forwarded to 
City Council.   
 
Mr. Vleck disagreed and said he would like more time to consider the proposed 
amendments.  Mr. Vleck said the members had a very short timeframe to consider 
the matter, and that more time and consideration was put into other proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendments that had much less of an affect on residents.  
Mr. Vleck voiced dissatisfaction with the Public Hearing notice.  He said anyone 
reading the Public Hearing notice would not have a clue that the City has taken 
under consideration restricting the size of accessory buildings and changing 
commercial vehicle provisions.  Mr. Vleck said he would like more time to discuss 
the 8-foot height restriction of garage doors.  He said the height of mini conversion 
vans range from 8 feet 2 inches to 9 feet 10 inches.  He suggested restricting the 
size of an attached or detached accessory building to the square footage of the 
house.  Mr. Vleck said that the proposed amendments are overall too restrictive.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned if the revision to Section 40.56.03 adequately handles a 
corner lot that is considered a double front. 
 
Mr. Miller said they are both considered front yards.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is comfortable moving forward with the accessory building 
proposed amendments, but not comfortable going forward with the proposed 
amendments relating to commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   
 
Mr. Wright said he agrees with Mr. Chamberlain.  He would like to see all three 
items off the Planning Commission table and onto the City Council table.  Mr. Wright 
said the commercial vehicle section is simple and has been bandied around for 15 
years.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door 
height.  Mr. Littman agreed to move forward with the amendments relating to 
accessory buildings, but would like more time to review and get further input from 
the Planning Consultant on commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would like to see a higher height restriction on the garage 
door.  She would also like to see language added so that materials used on an 
accessory building are consistent with materials of the residence.  Ms. Drake-Batts 
said she would like to see all three text amendments considered and forwarded to City 
Council tonight.   
 
Mr. Strat said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height.  
Mr. Strat said the members and staff worked very hard on the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments relating to accessory buildings and would like to see that 
go forward to City Council.  He would prefer more time to review the text amendments 
relating to commercial vehicle definitions.   
 
Mr. Khan said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height 
and going forward on all three proposed text amendments.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent said the proposed 
amendments relating to the size of accessory structures are too restrictive.  Mr. 
Krent brought to the attention of the Commission that the 2% growth factor formula 
was added to the proposed amendment on detached accessory structures but not 
attached accessory structures.  Mr. Krent distributed a photograph that depicts a 
neighbor’s view of a large “warehouse garage”.  Mr. Krent said such a building 
would be horrible to the character and continuity of the neighborhood.  Mr. Krent 
also addressed materials.  He said ribbed steel panel material that is used on 
industrial storage facilities does not belong in a residential neighborhood.  He noted 
that the Zoning Ordinance as currently written allows the material.  Mr. Krent said 
he has spoken to neighboring community officials who agree that ribbed steel panel 
material should not be used in residential areas.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck agrees with the comments of Mr. Krent with respect to the size restrictions 
of accessory structures and doors.  Mr. Vleck would like to see materials addressed 
and language added to the Zoning Ordinance that materials must be consistent with 
the residence.   
 
It was noted by the Planning Department and confirmed that the language to 
incorporate the 2% growth factor formula for attached accessory structures could be 
accomplished prior to the City Council Public Hearing.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked for comments from around the table.   
 
Mr. Vleck recommended that all accessory structures be equal to the ground floor 
space, and the construction of attached or detached structures is at the homeowner’s 
discretion.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said that would not work with some of the large existing 
parcels in the City.  He recommended the separation of detached and attached 
structures.   
 
Mr. Khan said the proposed amendments are good to go before City Council and, if 
necessary, revisions to the text could be made in the future.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred with the comments of Mr. Khan.  He said the ordinance should be 
designed for the norm and not the exception, and that the exceptions can go before 
the BZA.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed text is good to go.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is fine with the proposed text.  He questioned the rationale for 
attached buildings being 600 square feet and detached buildings being 450 square 
feet plus the 2% growth factor.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said it works out to be the same number. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Mr. Miller explained the general direction is to provide more of a limit on the attached 
structures in an effort to model traditional home development. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is okay with the proposed text as printed.  He would like to see 
compatible materials addressed in the near future.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is fine with the proposed text as printed.  He would not like to see 
the 2% growth factor on attached accessory structures.  Mr. Schultz said that under no 
circumstances should an attached accessory structure be greater than the size of the 
home.  Mr. Schultz said he would like to see an additional paragraph under 40.56.01 
Attached Accessory Buildings that would state exterior finishes of attached accessory 
buildings shall be similar or compatible with the exterior of the principal structure.  Mr. 
Schultz said he would not support similar language for detached accessory structures.  
 
Mr. Vleck questioned if the latest text revisions have been reviewed by the City’s 
Planning Consultant and the City Attorney’s office.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle, reviewed the 
revisions as of Monday, November 8.  Mr. Carlisle is in concurrence with the revisions 
and stated it is the discretion of individual communities to determine the size of 
accessory structures as a part of the community character.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the following condition.  
 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-134 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor that if there are changes to the 
proposed text by either City Council or City staff, that said recommendations or 
requests be returned to the Planning Commission for its consideration for inclusion 
and resubmission of the ZOTA to City Council. 
 
Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-11-135 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add under Section 40.56.01 
Attached Accessory Buildings, paragraph D, to read:  “The exterior materials on any 
attached accessory buildings shall be compatible with the exterior materials of the 
main dwelling structure.”   
 
Discussion on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan said it is normal to have the same material for an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Wright and other members referenced the photograph submitted by Mr. Krent 
and confirmed that the 3129 Alpine structure is attached and is constructed of 
different material than the house.   
 
Mr. Littman asked the definition of “compatible” and who would be the determining 
party.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the definition of “compatible”. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts suggested using the word “consistent” instead of “compatible”.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned the enforceability of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
“compatible” or “consistent” materials.  He said it is an interpretation, and he would 
assume the determining party would be the Building Department’s plan reviewer. 
 
Mr. Motzny said whenever the words “compatible, consistent, typical” or similar 
terms are used, a problem is created.  The ordinance is vague because it leaves too 
much discretion to the person who has to make a decision.  Mr. Motzny said the 
cure to the problem is to provide standards as to what “compatible” or similar terms 
mean.  Mr. Motzny said whether the ordinance is enforceable or not is whether or 
not some judge says there are sufficient standards to define what “compatible” or 
similar terms mean.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain reminded the members that a Public Hearing in front of City 
Council has been scheduled at the end of the month.   
 
Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

Vote on the original motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the following condition.  
 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck made the following comments on his no vote.   
(1) Section 40.57.02 B – The area of the attached accessory building should be 

equal to the square footage of the house and not half the ground floor print; and 
the 600 square feet should be 800 square feet. 

(2) Section 40.57.02 C – Should be stricken, or the 8 feet should be increased to 
either 10 or 12 feet because it does not include standard conversion vans that 
are used by the physically disabled. 

(3) Section 40.57.04 D – The 450 square feet should be 600 square feet plus 2% of 
the total lot area. 

(4) Section 40.57.06 G – Should be stricken and any other references to garage 
door height should deleted or increased to 10 or 12 feet.   

 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215B) – 
Article 04.20.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial 
Vehicle Definitions 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
that relates to commercial vehicle definitions.  He reviewed the revisions that were 
made after the November 2, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked for comments from around the table. 
 
Mr. Schultz brought to the attention of the Planning Department two typographical 
errors in Section 40.66.00 Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts.  
Two words were inadvertently omitted from the first paragraph.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that the gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) be increased to 
26,000 pounds, and said the limit of 10,000 pounds is too restrictive.  Mr. Vleck 
explained that the gross vehicle weight is the weight of the truck plus what it can 
haul.  Mr. Vleck would like to see the Commission study the matter further. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is happy with the language as printed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Messrs. Littman and Khan had no comments.   
 
Mr. Strat said 26,000 pounds might be too high.  Mr. Strat said he is not familiar with 
gross weight vehicle ratings.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she is fine with the language as printed. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said residential neighborhoods should be preserved as 
residential and commercial equipment should be stored in another location.  He 
referenced the recent study done by the Planning Commission with respect to the 
storage of commercial vehicles at public facilities.  Mr. Chamberlain said the 
monster garage situation on Alpine was created because commercial vehicles in 
residential areas are required to be stored.  He said it is important to get a handle 
on the definition of commercial vehicles so the vehicles look more like transportation 
vehicles than businesses out for hire.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Strat said he agrees with the comments of Mr. Chamberlain.   
 
Mr. Khan expressed surprise and bewilderment that no one came to speak at the 
Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would like to have more time to study the matter.  He stated, in 
his opinion, that there are vehicles less than 10,000 pounds that qualify as 
commercial vehicles.  Mr. Schultz said it is interesting that no one was present to 
speak at the Public Hearing tonight, in light of the fact that City Council considers a 
lot of commercial vehicle appeals.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is definitely in favor of tabling the matter.  He referenced a portion 
of the definition of commercial vehicle “…or for other purposes to generate income”, 
and said any vehicle used to get to work could be considered a commercial vehicle.  
Mr. Vleck said the restriction of one commercial vehicle per household should be 
increased to the number of licensed residents per household.  He addressed the 
format of the Public Hearing notice and recommended that it be re-publicized to 
specifically state the matter under consideration and the proposed modifications.   
 
Mr. Wright said that defining a car that is used to get to work as a commercial 
vehicle is a real stretch.  Mr. Wright is satisfied with the proposed language as 
printed.   
 
Mr. Littman said he would prefer to review the matter further and would like to have 
input from the public who would be affected by the ordinance. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said the definition of commercial vehicles was discussed 
extensively at previous study meetings.  He said the Commission could study the 
matter ad nauseam and it wouldn’t change that much.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 20 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-11-136 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to 
Commercial Vehicle Definitions, be amended as printed on the Proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the following typographical 
corrections: 
 

1. Under Section 40.66.00 Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential 
Districts, first paragraph, first sentence, add the word “vehicle” after the word 
“commercial” and add the word “pounds” after the words “ten thousand 
(10,000)”.   

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Wright 
No: Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the City and Village Zoning Act states the Planning 
Commission’s responsibility is to forward a report to City Council on proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendments.  He suggested the failed motion and an 
amended motion stipulating what occurred would satisfy the requirement to report to 
City Council.  Mr. Motzny confirmed that the members could move to reconsider the 
item and further move to have the item studied at a future study session.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-137 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission reconsider ZOTA 215B for future 
action.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-138 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Commission reschedule additional conversations and 
consideration of this item at the December 7, 2004 Special/Study Meeting and 
decide at that time when it would attempt to put forward a recommendation to City 
Council.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 21 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Discussion followed on steps to follow in the review process.   
 
• Research/obtain information on gross vehicle weight ratings. 
• Provide pictures of trucks in relation to height and weight. 
• Get input from residents impacted by commercial vehicles in residential districts; 

i.e., business owners and neighbors. 
• Involve residents through Public Hearings and televised City Council meetings. 
• Clarify language in Public Hearing notices and re-advertise Public Hearings. 
• Advise organizations (i.e., COTHA) of study and Public Hearings. 
• Advise commercial businesses (i.e., contact names from Member Vleck) of 

study and Public Hearings. 
• Obtain definition of commercial vehicles from surrounding communities; i.e., 

Bloomfield, Farmington Hills, Sterling Heights.  
• Obtain definition of commercial vehicles and relevant ordinances from suburban 

and urban communities located throughout the United States. 
• Review restrictions as relates to blue-collar workers. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215C) – 
Article 43.74.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial 
Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
that relates to commercial vehicle parking appeals.  He reviewed the revisions that 
were made after the November 2, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study 
Meeting.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-139 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That ZOTA 215C be tabled to the December 7, 2004 Special/Study 
Meeting for more discussion.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 22 - 
 

Vice Chair Chamberlain stated that all the comments made in the previous tabling 
action of ZOTA 215B would also apply to ZOTA 215C.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that appropriate Public Hearing notices would be sent.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that paragraphs C and D of Section 43.74.01 reflect both 
outdoor and indoor parking. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that to his knowledge commercial vehicle appeals are not 
permitted.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
John Dudek of 1071 Winthrop, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dudek addressed the 
proposed rezoning of the existing Clark Station located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington (agenda item #7).   
 
Mr. Dudek was advised of City procedures relating to rezoning requests, site plan 
approval, special use requests, engineering and Board of Zoning Appeals.  Further, 
Mr. Dudek was advised that the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
(MDEQ) is the appropriate channel to address any environmental concerns.  
 
It was the recommendation of Vice Chair Chamberlain that Mr. Dudek meet with the 
Planning Director and other appropriate City staff members for further assistance 
and clarification on the proposed matter.   
 
Mr. Dudek questioned if the 28 residents who signed the resident petition were 
provided an explanation as to why the resident petition was not distributed to the 
Planning Commission members prior to the August 10, 2004 Public Hearing.  Mr. 
Dudek said that, to date, he has not received any communication from the City to 
this regard.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said that question should be directed to City staff.   
 
Mr. Strat encouraged Mr. Dudek to continue his endeavor through the various City 
channels of review and approval.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented that the 28 residents have been heard because that was the 
basis that City Council referred the matter back to the Planning Commission.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller advised the members that City Council authorized City Management to go 
forward with the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  Interviews with potential consulting teams are 
expected to take place in late January 2005.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 23 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Gary Chamberlain, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\11-09-04 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 10, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, November 10, 2004, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:05 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice 
 Robert Crawford 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 David A. Lambert (Arrived at 12:20) 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag (Arrived at 12:22) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
 Steve Gasper, UBS 
  
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 11 - 042 
Moved by Crawford 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 13, 2004 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Lambert, Szerlag 
 
OTHER BUSINESS - DEFERRED RETIREMENT REQUEST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 11 - 043 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board Approve the deferred retirement request of Ludmila Messer, 
10/10/04, 20 years, 10 months of service. 
 
Yeas:  All 5 
Absent: Lambert, Szerlag 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  - PRIOR GOVERNMENTAL SERVICE 
 
The Board Received and filed the request of Timothy J Daniels. 
 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01k



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft November 10, 2004 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT – JUNE 30, 2004 
 
Steve Gasper of UBS reviewed the June 30, 2004 investment performance results with 
the Board.  The Board will review the investment composition of portfolio positions and 
make necessary adjustments. 
 
INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 
 
The Board reviewed our current statement of investment objectives and investment policy 
guidelines.  The amended statement will be placed on the December 8, 2004 Agenda for 
review and adoption.   
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 11- 044 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Crawford 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be sold: 
 
Cardinal Health; Conagra; Conexant Systems and CTS Corp. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
Absent:  
 
 
The next meeting is December 8, 2004 at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:55 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2004\11-10-04 Minutes_Draft.doc 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT NOVEMBER 11, 2004 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, November 11, 2004 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-001 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Nancy Wheeler and Lauren Andreoff be excused. 
Yes:  4—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-002 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of October 14 2004 be approved with the correction 
of signature line Joanne Allen, Chair be replaced with Audre Zembrzuski, Vice 
Chairman. 
Yes:  4—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-003 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Gregory 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01l



 2 

RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  4—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
Information and Procedures for Exhibitors 
The policy was reviewed.  Griffen asked that the Meeting Room Policy be reviewed at 
the next meeting. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-004 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2005 Library Closing Dates be approved as presented. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Gregory, Griffen 
No:  1—Zembrzuski (Wanted to be closed Fourth of July Weekend and   
         open Labor Day Weekend) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-05 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2005 Board Meeting Dates be approved indicating that the 
July and August meetings would be held if needed. 
Yes:  4—Allen, Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The Library ranked as the number one library in Michigan for libraries serving over 
50,000 in population according to the Hennen’s American Public Library Ranking Index.  
The Library was awarded a Citation of Excellence by the Library of Michigan Foundation 
at the recent MLA Conference.  A picture of the Library’s Peace Garden entrance will be 
featured in the 2005 Sirsi calendar. 
 
Board Member comments.   
Gregory reported that he attended the SLC Trustees meeting and heard a presentation 
about MelCat.  He also reported that the Gulf Beaches Public Library allows non-



 3 

residents to purchase a 3 month library card for $10.00.  He also said that that library 
has a display of books selected by a librarian with the librarian’s picture and a short 
biography. 
 
Zembrzuski suggested that the Library have a program for children at which they can 
buy cloth book bags and decorate them. 
 
Also suggested was the idea of giving away pencils or other inexpensive items with the 
library printed on them during National Library Week.   
 
SLC Report – Gregory reported that he will assume the office of President of SLC.  The 
By-Laws were reviewed. 
 
Friends of the Library – No report 
 
Gifts. 
None. 
 
Informational Items.   
November TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
11 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.  Victor Lenivov asked the Board if they would think about if they 
would be interested in participating in a day and evening of activities similar to Detroit’s 
Noel Night. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:10 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 17, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on November 17, 2004 at 7:00 PM at 
City Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  The meeting was 
called to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Min Chong 

Juliana D’Amico  
Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi 
Maniesh Joshi  
Andrew Kalinowski  
Jessica Kraft 
Monika Raj 
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale 
YuJing Wang 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 
Emily Burns (excused) 
Manessa Shaw 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2004-11-020 
 Moved by Chong 
 Seconded by D’Amico 
 RESOLVED, That the minutes of 10/27/04 be approved with changes. 
 Yes: All - 10 
 No: None  
           Absent 3 – Bozimowski, Burns, Shaw 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. City Event: Tree Lighting; Tuesday 12/7 @ 7:00 PM 

“Toys for Tots” Drop Off Point: Flyers for distribution.  If each TYC member shares 7 flyers, 
there will be 91 people to whom the TYC has promoted the event (7 X 13). 
Volunteer Opportunity: City Tree Lighting: work 6:40 PM to 8 PM: Distribute song books and 
refreshments.  Sign-up sheet circulated. 

5. December Meeting: 
Meet the Mayor: Brainstormed Topics and Questions; also introduction questions 
Holiday Basket of Groceries for an Underprivileged Family: sign-up sheet circulated 

6. 2005 Community Kaleidoscope: TYC invited to help host the event 
Sun , 1/23/05 12-4 PM at the Community Center 
Polo Shirts with TYC Logo - $21 each 
It was agreed that the TYC wants to purchase polo shirts. 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01m



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 17, 2004 
 
 

 2

Resolution # TY-2004-11-021 
 Moved by Kalinowski 
 Seconded by Chong  
 RESOLVED, That the shirts shall be navy blue with a white logo. 
 Yes: 6 - Kalinowski, Chong, Raj Joshi, Joshi, Wang, 
 No: 4 - D’Amico, Herzog, Kraft, Vitale 
           Absent 3 - Bozimowski, Burns, Shaw 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  

Resolution # TY-2004-11-022 
Moved by Joshi 
Seconded by Kraft 
RESOLVED, That member Burns is excused. 

       Yes: All - 10 
       No: None  

 Absent 3 – Bozimowski, Burns, Shaw 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Youth Council Comments 
 
Joshi: Inquiry re: Internship program with the Chamber and High Schools 

 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED December 15th 7:00 P.M. 

@ the Community Center 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:42 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Catherine Herzog, Co-chair 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



DRAFT 
 

TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, November 23, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 8:47 pm. 
 
Present: 

Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     
 

Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart (absent)  
Dhwani Mehta (absent) 
Bob Preston 

Resolution # TD-2004-05-29 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the October 25, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution #TD-2004-05-30  Motion to approve slate of officers (JC/MG) 

a. Chairman- Bob Berk (JC/MG) 
b. Vice Chairman- Kessie Kaltsounis (JC/CW) 
c. Treasurer- Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski (MG/BH) 
d. All Festival Committee event positions with the exception of Ethnic Issues Advisory 

Board Representative 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-31 
 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Jim Cyrulewski   
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.   
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:52 pm.   

bittnera
Text Box
J-01n



 
 
_____________________________ 
Bob Berk, Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, November 23, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston  
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley 
Bill Hall 
Tom Kaszubski 
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Bob Berk 
 

 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Tom Clark 
Marilyn Musick 
Sandy Macknis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Jeffrey Super 
Tarcisio Massaini

Absent:  Leonard Bertin   Jeff Stewart 
   Bob Bishop    Dhwani Mehta 

Bob Broquet     
 
City Staff Present:

Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick 

   Tonya Perry 
   Gerry Scherlinck 
   Cindy Stewart      
 
Minutes 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from October 25, 2004. 
 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Cele Dilley 
Approved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
As of 10/31/04 
Revenue: $114,777.06 
Expenditures: $136,851.89 
 
City Finance Director asked when City would get sponsor check.  Cheryl will request check 
week of November 29, 2004 from Committee Foundation Treasurer. 
 
Asked Jeff Biegler to have copy of financial report sent to each advisory committee member. 
 
Correspondence 
 
--November Meeting Notice 



--Community Kaleidoscope participation letter turned in 
--Letter from TYA regarding Youth Recognition Dinner.  Jim will submit one for Dhwani 
Mehta. 
 
Events Chairpersons 
 

1. MFEA Convention Summary – information handed out regarding sessions attended 
and ideas learned.   
At the convention silent auction, balloon company puts up item for 7 balloons.  Troy 
Daze won for bid of $279 ($2100 value) 
 

2. Suggestion list review moved to end of agenda 
 

 
Old Business 
 

1. Corporate Sponsor Update demographic information received today.  Meeting with 
Pepsi December 14 or December 16. 

 
2. Printing Specs – Cindy Stewart will get prices 

 
New Business 
 

1. Fee changes – proposed memo.  Board will discuss this at January meeting.  Jim 
increased prices by 10% and included rationale for increases.  Look over fees and be 
ready to approve at January meeting. 

 
2. Preliminary Request memo to be finalized at January meeting. 

Question regarding Boulan Park food concessionaire.  According to his contract, he 
can be open but does not have exclusivity and his employees must purchase parking 
passes. 
 

3. TYA Nominees: Dhwani Mehta 
 

4. Action Item List 
 
Trailer is not suitable for our use.  Jim’s company will donate $256 from the sale to 
Committee Foundation for Troy Daze. 
 
Can we get a banner to identify our headquarters as Troy Daze Trailer? 
  

Suggestions for 2005 
 

• Create an office manager position. - Approved. 
 
• Naturalization Ceremony – has grown larger, remove from EthniCity and put under 

control of City Community Affairs Department. - Approved. 
 



• Volunteer Committee – Jeanne Stine will not be involved due to family and council 
commitments. Combine student and adult volunteers under one committee.-Approved. 
 

• EthniCity – always looking for additional assistance.  Tom K has been approached by 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board to take a more active role.  The EIA Board will be 
meeting with JoAnn Preston in January. 

 
• Need help with volunteer committee 

 
• Need chairperson for Photography Contest 

 
• Alison Miller is moving to Maryland.  Megan Cyrulewski would probably not do both 

new car show and teen event.  Troy Youth Council is interested in helping with an 
event – good fit would be teen event. 

 
• Pancake Breakfast – still need a sponsor.  Two groups have expressed an interest so 

we will follow-up to bring this event back. 
 

• Sandy Macknis volunteering for volunteer committee. 
 

SUGGESTION LIST 
 
Administrative 
 

• Revisit objectives of festival during February/March Meetings 
• Have a retreat to brainstorm new ideas 
• History time-line at special meeting? 
• Obtain grant information for specific events – not sure what to do now 
• Revise demographic to exclude income level info,not a good idea – we included it and 

people responded 
• Increase number of booth parking passes printed – yes 
• Create separate activity for Naturalization Ceremony and separate budget – yes 
• Have at least ½ of McManus lot for committee parking – discuss under operations 
• Allow McManus lot for community parking – Thursday and Friday refer to operations 
• In July meeting packet, include volunteer need sheet and time slots, info re: coupons 

available, and review at July meeting – yes.  Send this to volunteer committee to 
adjust. 

• Give chairpersons food coupons to hand out – rules are that chairpersons give to their 
own volunteers based on “volunteer perk sheet” 

• Treasurer will hand out any checks, ride passes or meal tickets at designated hours - 
will make signs. 

• Find organization to take photos with wizard or walk arounds as fundraiser with 
percentage going to festival.  Try and find organization to handle this. 

• Cindy will look into new costumes and cost 
• Realign jobs and define job descriptions. 
• Eliminate hay bales inside tents – done.  Reduce number ordered to 150 



• Have formal contract with Knights of Columbus, Troy Jaycees, Pancake Breakfast 
Sponsor for their events regarding fees and rules. 

• Meet with school district personnel to discuss volunteer requirements for today’s 
students.  Also work with Troy Youth Council. 

• Analyze improvements for Thursday’s activities and combine with suggestions #2 & 3. 
• Inform chairpersons that City will only cut checks once per month.  Get check requests 

in early. 
• Chairpersons must use proper forms for check requests. 
• Committee chairs will be only ones to hand out vouchers to volunteers and only ones 

to get ride passes for use by family members. 
• Go out for quotes for trophies – order all through one company 
• Review by-laws – go over manual  
• Create an application for volunteers and parental approval form for volunteers under 

18 years old. 
• Lt. Scherlinck asked if we have thought about screening volunteers 

 
 

Amusement Rides 
• In ride contract, indicate they cannot use baseball concession bathroom electrical 

plugs 
• Shorten the hours for Saturday pay-one-price (11-5 p.m.)  Let vendors address this in 

specs. 
 
Miscellaneous  

• To chairpersons dealing with revenue or expenses, treasurer handed out 2004 data 
and is looking for approximate 2005 amounts by December.  Fax back to Cheryl at 
248-952-1732 

• Confirmation by Mike Gonda October 10, 2005 end of festival party at San Marino 
Club 

 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:47 p.m.   



November 29, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
Subject: Agenda Item – Report and Communication 

Concession Stand Operations Report 
 
Listed below is the annual report from the concessionaire for operations in 2004.  This was the 
first year of a five-year contract with a different vendor from the 2003 season, but one that had 
the contract for many years prior to 2003 – Russell Chavaux.  Contract terms include: the 
contractor pays a percentage of the gross receipts less Michigan sales tax, with a minimum 
annual payment by the contractor.  Gross Sales and payments made to the City as follows: 
     

Russell Chavaux Sport Orion Express Russell Chavaux 
2004   2003   2002 

Total gross   $ 84,425.35  $ 58,535.05  $139,235.67 
 
Total gross less tax  $ 79,359.83  $ 55,311.10  $ 131,354.40 
 
Guarantee %    X 12% $ 9,523.18    x 10% $   5,531.11   x 15% $   19,703.16 
or Money Guarantee  $ 12,000  $ 10,000  $    15,000 
(whichever is higher) 
 
Aquatic Center Total  $   8,160  $   7,800  $   13,723.39 
 
Parks Total   $   3,840  $   2,200  $     5,979.77 
 
TFAC Attendance  36,047   38,578   53,542 
 
TFAC Closed Days  21   23   15 
 
Evaluation Score*  266   294.5   No official evaluation tool 
 
 
Total gross sales were up slightly in 2004 compared to 2003, but were still less than when the 
current vendor was in full operation in 2002.  Concession sales were also slightly up at the city 
parks – Firefighters Park, Flynn Park, and Boulan Park.  The concession was not open for the 
majority of the adult summer soccer season, but was open for the Soccer City Classic on Labor 
Day weekend (it was cancelled by Troy Youth Soccer League in 2003). 
 
* Also attached is the contractor evaluation.  Based on the contractor evaluation, staff 
recommends that the city continue with the current vendor and make a concerted effort to 
continue with an open line of communication between the vendor and the city.   
 
Attachments 
 
CKA/sja 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



holmesba
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



holmesba
Text Box
J-03c



holmesba
Text Box
J-03d



holmesba
Text Box
J-03e



holmesba
Text Box
J-03f





holmesba
Text Box
J-03g



holmesba
Text Box
J-03h



holmesba
Text Box
J-03i



holmesba
Text Box
J-03j



holmesba
Text Box
J-03k





holmesba
Text Box
J-03l



holmesba
Text Box
J-03m



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







holmesba
Text Box
J-07



TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 22, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Class C “quota” licenses 
 

 
 
 

On November 8, 2004, two applicants for Class C “quota” liquor licenses 
appeared before the Liquor Advisory Committee.  One applicant, Troy Robin, Inc. 
(“Troy Robin”) seeks to open a Red Robin restaurant at 5460 Corporate Drive, the 
former site of the now-defunct Cooker’s restaurant.  A second applicant, Bravo 
Development, Inc., d/b/a Cucina Development, Inc. (“Bravo/Cucina”) also requests a 
license in association with opening a new restaurant in the South Mall, Somerset, 
2800 W. Big Beaver Road.  The Committee recommended approval of both of these 
requests.  In the past, some members of City Council have expressed concern about 
a complete elimination of the allocated quota licenses, and have inquired about the 
potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license applicants once the 
quota licenses are depleted.       
 

“Quota” Licenses 
 

 Approval of the Troy Robin and Bravo/Cucina requests would exhaust the 
City’s current allotment of Class C licenses.  As you may know, state law allows 
issuance of one on-premises consumption liquor license for each 1,500 of population 
or major fraction thereof; these are commonly known as “quota” licenses.  A 
governmental unit’s population is usually determined by the federal census occurring 
every ten years.  If Troy’s population grows at historically documented rates during the 
next six years, it is anticipated that under the next census (2010), the City will probably 
be granted some additional quota licenses by the state Liquor Control Commission 
(“Commission”).   
  

Escrowed Licenses 
 

 In the interim, there are other avenues by which subsequent applicants may 
secure licenses.  An applicant may purchase an escrowed license from another 
licensee located in Oakland County.  An escrowed license becomes available when a 
licensee goes out of business or otherwise ceases operations.  The license remains 
the property of the original licensee, but is not in active use.   For example, the Class 
C liquor license for Cookers is now in escrow, and has become an asset of Cooker’s 
bankruptcy estate, which will likely be acquired by one of its creditors.   As of this 
writing, the Commission advises that there are 67 escrowed licenses available in 
Oakland County.  Potential future liquor license applicants in Troy could purchase an 
escrowed license from any Oakland County community.  The acquisition of an 

bittnera
Text Box
J-08



escrowed liquor license would require the payment of “market rate” to the original 
licensee.   

 
Resort Licenses 

 
In the event there are no escrowed licenses available for purchase, an 

applicant in Troy may seek a resort license.  In order to qualify for a resort liquor 
license, the Commission must determine that the proposed licensee’s business and 
operation is geared towards the attraction and accommodation of tourists and visitors 
to the resort area.   Neither the statute nor the administrative rules geographically 
define what the Commission may consider to be a “resort area”.  However, it is clear 
that the resort licensee must have a primary purpose other than the sale of alcohol.   
In addition, a resort license applicant must make a capital investment of at least 
$75,000 in the associated real property, leasehold improvements, and fixtures.  If the 
resort licensee goes out of business, the license then reverts to the Commission.  No 
resort license will be granted if there are escrowed licenses readily available1 for 
purchase by the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland 
County that could likely be purchased at market rate.   

   
 

Resort Economic Development Licenses 
 
This license requires a finding by the Commission that the applicant’s business 

and operation, in addition to being geared toward attraction of tourists, reflects a 
capital investment of at least $1,500,000, and forbids on-premises casino gambling.  It 
is not transferable and must be returned to the Commission if the applicant ceases 
operations. This license will not be granted if escrow licenses are readily available to 
the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland County that could 
likely be purchased at market rate. The original law allowed the Commission to grant 
20 such licenses for the years 2001 and 2002, and the statute was amended to 
extend the period through 2003 and 2004.  It is anticipated that continued revisions 
will ensue in similar two-year intervals.  

 
 Development District Licenses 

 
Additionally, the Commission may issue a Development District Class C 

license for a full-service restaurant located in a development district with a population 
of 50,000 or less.  Troy’s Downtown Development Authority (DDA) may qualify as an 
eligible development district.  The eligible licensee must be a restaurant, located within 
the district, that is open to the public at least ten hours daily, five days per week, seats 
at least 25 people, and has a minimum of 50% of its gross sales from food on 
premises.  In order to be considered for this license, the DDA must hold a public 

                                            
1 The Liquor Control Act defines “readily available” to mean “available upon a standard of economic 
feasibility” applicable to the applicant’s specific circumstances.  Issues to consider include the fair market 
value of the license, the size and scope of the proposed operation, and the impact of mandatory 
contractual terms governing the sale of the license.  MCLA 436.1531(18)(b). 



hearing to establish that the issuance of the development district liquor license would 
prevent further deterioration with the district, and promote economic growth therein.  
City Council would also need to agree with the DDA determination.  This license 
would only be transferable within the development district, and only one such license 
could be issued per applicant.  If sales of food for on-premises consumption fell below 
50% of the gross receipts in any licensing year, the license would be revocable by the 
Commission after due notice and proper hearing.  As with the resort and resort 
economic development licenses, the development district license is not available 
unless there are no quota or escrowed licenses readily available.  As previously 
stated, there are currently 67 escrowed licenses that could likely be purchased at 
market rate.  The Commission would approve a maximum of two such licenses in a 
city with a population over 50,000 persons, such as Troy. 

 
 

Other Licenses  
 
State law also authorizes the Commission to grant on-premises licenses for 

use by, or upon the campuses of, public universities with enrollment of at least 10,000 
students.   It is unclear whether these provisions would have any application within the 
City of Troy.  There are also licenses available for applicants meeting criteria 
inapplicable to the City, such as location in a rural area with poverty or unemployment 
rates exceeding the statewide average. 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
If Troy’s supply of quota liquor licenses is depleted, then all future license 

applicants will need to purchase one of the escrowed Oakland County licenses at 
market rate.  Given the vicissitudes of the current economic climate, it is unlikely that 
there will be a complete lack of readily available escrow licenses between now and 
the year 2010.  We would be pleased to answer any questions you may have.      

 
 

  
   



bittnera
Text Box
J-09


















	AGENDA: December 6, 2004
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  a) Auditor’s Presen

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Minutes:  Special and Regular Meetings of November 29, 
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No City of Troy Pr
	E-4  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sid
	E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Paul & Helen 
	E-6  Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Const
	E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Tro
	E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low Bidde
	E-9  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Mahmoud and N
	E-10  Request for Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Si
	E-11  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Thien Van Le
	E-12  2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1
	E-13  Private Agreement for Jonna Retail, Project No. 03.920
	E-14  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Wat

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appoi
	F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host  -
	F-3 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Signs/Agreements, Sylva
	F-4 Troy v. Switlicki et. al

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood – Scheduled for De
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater – Scheduled for Dec
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R – Scheduled for Dece
	Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West S
	Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – The Eastern Half of A

	G-2 Agenda Items for Future Consideration
	a) Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Octob
	Library Board/Final – October 14, 2004
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2004
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 25, 2004
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 26, 2004
	Youth Council/Final – October 27, 2004
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 2, 2004
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 3, 2004
	Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Novem
	Library Board/Draft – November 11, 2004
	Youth Council/Draft – November 17, 2004
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – November 23, 2004

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Concession Stand Operations Report

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from Larson Middle School PTO to Detective Jim Mork, 
	Letter from Alliance Mobile Health to Lt. Tom Houghton, Than
	Letter from Troy Families for Safe Homes to Chief Craft, Tha
	Letter from Troy Community Coalition to Chief Craft, Thankin
	Letter from COTHA to Sergeant Ostrowski, Thanking Him for Hi
	Letter from Clackamas County to Chief Craft, Thanking His Pa
	Letter from Schroeder Elementary Cub Scout Den 2, Pack 1010 
	Letter from Paul DeGregorio, Commissioner – U.S. Election As
	Letter from Jeffrey D. Werner, Bloomfield Township Chief of 
	Letter from Ken Aud, Area Manager for the Department of Corr
	Thank You Note from Vivian Brokenshire to MaryAnn Hays in Ap
	Letter from Richard G. Patterson, Chief of Police for the Bi
	Letter from JoJo Cosman, Manager of Corporate Training Servi

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ende
	J-7 Correspondence: Michael W. Reaves, President – Michigan 
	J-8 Memorandum, Re: Class C “Quota” Licenses
	J-9 Correspondence: Tom Krent - 3184 Alpine, Re: Suggested Z

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Monday, December 20, 2004 Regular City Council
	Monday, January 10, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, January 24, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, February 7, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, February 21, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, March 7, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council





